ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
JUNE 15, 2023

REGULAR MEETING 6:30 PM
ORANGEVALE COMMUNITY CENTER
6826 HAZEL AVE. ORANGEVALE, CA 95662

NOTE: The Board of Directors may take up any Agenda item at any time, regardless of the order listed. Action
may be taken on any item on the Agenda.

1.

2.

8.1

8.2

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC DISCUSSION

Any person may address the board upon any subject within the jurisdiction of the Orangevale Recreation
& Park District with each speaker being limited to three minutes. However, the Chairperson can impose
reasonable limitations to the maximum time per person and per agenda item to allow the Board to
complete its business. Any matter that requires action will be referred to staff or committee for a report
and action at a subsequent meeting.

MINUTES
a. Approval of minutes of the Regular Meeting May 18, 2023 (pg. 1-7)

CORRESPONDENCE

a. Confidential Envelope — Attorney Billing (May 2023):

b. Ads in the May 12 & 26 issues of the Orangevale View to promote upcoming programs (pg. 8-9)

¢. An article in the May 12 issue of the Orangevale View about the upcoming Summer Palooza weekend
at Orangevale Community Park (pg. 10)

d. An article in the May 12 issue of the Orangevale View about the OVparks 40" anniversary celebration
during the Summer Palooza on Sunday, June 18 (pg. 11)

e. A brief article in the May 26 issue of the Orangevale View with OVparks thanking area volunteers for
their contributions during the Big Day of Service on May 6 (pg. 12)

CONSENT CALENDAR: Reading/Opportunity to Pull Items for Discussion/Board Action

Consent items are considered routine and are intended to be acted upon in one motion, without
discussion. During this portion of the meeting, the Consent Calendar will be read aloud. Prior to approval,
the Chairperson will give the Board, staff, and public the opportunity to pull any item for discussion. The
remaining Calendar will be acted upon. Any pulled items will then be heard and acted upon individually.

CONSENT MATTERS GENERAL FUND

a. Ratification of Claims for May 2023 (pg. 13-14)
b. Budget Status Report for May 2023 (pg. 15-17)
¢. Revenue Report for May 2023 (pg. 18)

OLLAD CONSENT MATTERS

a. Ratification of Claims for April 2023 (pg. 19-20)
b. Budget Status Report for April 2023 (pg. 21-22)



Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors Agenda

June 15,2023

Page 2

83

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

KENNETH GROVE CONSENT MATTERS
a. Ratification of Claims for May 2023 (pg. 23)
b. Budget Status Report for May 2023 (pg. 24)

NON-CONSENT MATTERS GENERAL FUND
Ratification of Claims for May 2023 (pg. 25)

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Administration & Finance — This committee met on May 19. See the meeting recap (pg. 26-27)

b. Maintenance & Operation — No Report

¢. Recreation Committee — This committee will meet on June 23 at 10am at the Community Center

d. Personnel & Policy — No Report

e. Government — No Report

f. Planning Committee —This committee met on May 26 at 10am at Shady Oaks. See the meeting recap
(pg. 28-30). This committee met again on June 9, and the recap notes will be provided at the
July 20 Board of Directors meeting.

g. Trails Committee — No Report

h. Ad Hoc — No Report

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
a. Monthly Activity Report — May 2023 (pg. 31-37)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS
a. Approval of Resolution 23-06-704, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Preliminary Budget for the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 38-60)
b. Public Hearing: Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD)
- Susan Barnes of SCI Consulting Group

1. Approval of Resolution 23-06-705, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 61-67)

2. Approval of Resolution 23-06-706, Resolution Approving the Engineer’s Report, Confirming the
Diagram and Assessment, and Ordering the Levy of Assessment for Fiscal Year 2023/24 for the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD) (pg. 68-123)

c. Public Hearing: Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
- Susan Barnes of SCI Consulting Group

1. Approval of Resolution 23-06-707, Resolution Adopting the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and
Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 124-128)

2. Approval of Resolution 23-06-708, Resolution Approving the Engineer’s Report, Confirming the
Diagram and Assessment, and Ordering the Levy of Assessment for Fiscal Year 2023/24 for the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD) (pg. 129-151)

d. Approval of Resolution 23-06-709, Resolution Amending the District Salary Schedule (pg. 152-154)

e. Approve improvements to Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course identified by District and the Disc Golf Club
as priorities (pg. 155)

d. Swimming Pool project timeline and update (pg. 156)

f. Driveway/Trail project timeline and update (pg. 157)

g. Arcade Cripple Creek Trail project update (verbal)

DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS

ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA




Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors Agenda
June 15,2023

Page 3

a. Presentation of certificate recognizing installation of a memorial bench at Shady Oaks Disc

Golf Course
b. Determine if July 20 meeting will be live-streamed.

16. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: As presiding officer, the Chair has the authority to preserve order at all Board of Directors meetings,
to remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making
personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally
abusive while addressing said Board, and to enforce the rules of the Board.

People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance with
physical accessibility. Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you require
accommodations, please contact the Orangevale Recreation & Park District main office at (916) 988-4373.

Directors can be reached at: director@ovparks.com

Sharon Brunberg Manie Meraz Lisa Montes Arica Presinal Mike Stickney



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors
May 18, 2023

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District was
held on May 18, 2023, at the District Office. Director Stickney called the meeting to order at

6:32PM.
Directors present: Stickney, Brunberg, Montes
Directors absent: Meraz (arrived 6:37PM), Presinal
Staff present: Barry Ross, District Administrator
Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR Superintendent
Horacio Oropeza, Park Superintendent
Jason Bain, Recreation Supervisor
Melyssa Woodford, Admin. Services Supervisor
3. PLEDGE OF The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.
ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF On a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director Montes, the
AGENDA agenda was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney,
Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There were no Nays or
MOTION #1 Abstentions. Directors Meraz and Presinal were absent.
5. PUBLIC No one wished to address the Board during public discussion.
DISCUSSION
6. MINUTES a) Approval of Minutes of April 13, 2023 (pg. 1-13): On a motion by
Director Brunberg seconded by Director Montes, the minutes were
MOTION #2 approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Brunberg, &

Montes voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors
Meraz and Presinal were absent.

7. CORRESPONDENCE a) Ads in the April 7 & 28 issues of the Orangevale View to
promote upcoming programs (pg. 14-15):
Admin Ross shared the advertisements promoting OVparks
upcoming programs.

b) An article in the April 7 issue of the Orangevale View about the
OVparks Summer Open House (pg. 16)
Admin Ross shared the Orangevale View article regarding the
OVparks open house scheduled for April 22.

Minutes, May 18, 2023
Page 1 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 1



8. CONSENT b) On a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director Montes,

CALENDAR the consent calendar was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with
Directors Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There

MOTION #3 were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors Meraz and Presinal were
absent.

8.1. CONSENT a) Ratification of Claims for April 2023 (pg. 17)

MATTERS b) Budget Status Report for April 2023(pg. 18-20)
GENERAL FUND ¢) Revenue Report for April 2023 (pg. 21)

8.2. OLLAD a) Ratification of Claims for April 2023 (pg. 22-23)
CONSENT b) Budget Status Report for April 2023 (pg. 24-25)
MATTERS

8.3. KENNETH GROVE a) Ratification of Claims for April 2023 (pg. 26)

CONSENT b) Budget Status Report for April 2023 (pg. 27)
MATTERS
9. NON-CONSENT None discussed.
MATTERS
GENERAL FUND

10. STANDING a) Administration and Finance: This committee will meet on
COMMITTEE May 19 at 10PM at Community Center.

REPORTS

b) Maintenance and Operation: No report.

¢) Recreation Committee: No report.

d) Personnel & Policy: No report.

e) Government: No report.

f) Planning Committee: This committee will meet on May 26 at
10PM at Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course.

g) Trails Committee: Trails Committee: No report.

h) Ad Hoc: No report.

11. ADMINISTRATOR’S  a) Monthly Activity Report — April 2023 (pg. 28-39):
REPORT Admin Ross advised that approximately 40 volunteers participated in
the annual Creek Week Cleanup held on April 1 at the Orangevale
Community Park. Several bags of garbage were cleaned out of the
creek.

Minutes, May 18 , 2023
Page 2 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 2



12. UNFINISHED
BUSINESS

13. NEW BUSINESS

MOTION #4

Minutes, May 18 , 2023
Page 3 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

On April 27 OVparks staff participated in the quarterly safety
meeting. Heat illness prevention and stress management were the
topics discussed.

Supt. Von Aesch advised of preparations for upcoming new
employee paperwork to process.

Park Supt. Oropeza advised that the Big Day of Service was
successful with 700 volunteers participating despite the rain early in
the day. Twenty-five trees were planted throughout the District. He
extended appreciation to all the staff and volunteers that participated
in the event. The Board of Directors suggested publishing a thank
you to all the volunteers in Orangevale View and on social media
sites. Irrigation is back on in the parks. The Park Maintenance staff
assisted the Orangevale History Project with landscaping and
irrigation at the Orangevale History Museum site anticipated to open
on July 15.

Recreation Supervisor Jason Bain advised TigerShark practice is
currently underway. Swim lessons begin June 12.

None discussed.

a) Approval of Resolution 23-05-702 Resolution of Intention to
Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report., and Providing for Notice of
Hearing for the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (OLLAD) (pg. 40-95):

On a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director
Montes, the Resolution 23-05-702 Resolution of Intention to
Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of
Hearing for the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (OLLAD) was approved by a vote of 4-0-0

with Directors Stickney, Meraz, Brunberg, & Montes voting Aye.
There were no Nays or Abstentions. Director Presinal was absent.

b) Approval of Resolution 23-05-703 Resolution of Intention to
Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of
Hearing for the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (pg. 96-117): Admin Ross advised this
resolution allows them to move forward with permission to
advertise in the Citrus Heights newspaper and the Orangevale
View.

Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023

Page 3



MOTION #5

Minutes, May 18, 2023
Page 4 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director
Brunberg, the Resolution 23-05-703 Resolution of Intention to
Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-24, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of
Hearing for the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District was approved by a vote of 4-0-0 with
Directors Stickney, Meraz, Brunberg, & Montes voting Aye.

There were no Nays or Abstentions. Director Presinal was absent.

Review hardcopy and digital Activity Guide options as a cost-
savings measure (pg. 118-119):

Staff have periodically reviewed cost increases for printing and
mailing the Activity Guide and are concerned about the
consistent increase in fees over the last couple of years. Print
costs have doubled since 2019, as well as a rise in the postage
and design cost. Due to the rise in cost and more accessibility to
online options, some other Districts have discontinued printing
and mailing of their Activity Guide.

Our current community members were surveyed to see how they
enroll and if they use the hard copy. Responses were split down
the middle between use of the hard copy vs online.

The following options have been considered:

1) Create bi-annual guides rather than tri-annual guides.

By printing two issues per year rather than three, staff feels it
would have a slight to moderate negative impact on the success
of our programs. Marketing would be lessened, adding new
programs in a timely manner would be hampered, and most
programs would be expired during the final two months of each
issue.

- Fiscal Impact: Savings could range between $4,000-$7,000
annually. Lost revenue is likely but unknown.

2) Print & mail a smaller amount of guides.

We would mail a marketing postcard to all District residents
notifying them that our new Activity Guide is on our website
(include a QR Code for easy access). Residents wishing to
continue receiving a hardcopy will be given the opportunity to
request that and be placed on the Activity Guide mailing list. We
would then have copies printed and mailed to them. This would
decrease some costs while still allowing community members
that do not use online options to have the information provided to
them.

- Fiscal Impact: Saving could range between $12,000-$16,000
annually. Lost revenue should be minimal.

Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 4



Minutes, May 18, 2023
Page 5 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

d)

e)

3) No longer print or mail the full guide.

Consider printing only a marketing postcard (with QR Code) to
all District residents that directs them to our website to view our
new digital Activity Guide. The postcard would not give the
option of a hardcopy, but we would print and mail copies to
customers who call and ask for one.

- Fiscal Impact: Saving could range between $21,000-$26,000
annually. Lost revenue is likely during the first year, but
unknown.

4) Make no changes.

Staff recommend scheduling a meeting with the Recreation
Committee to further review and discuss these options and bring
a recommendation to the full Board of Directors at the June 15
BOD meeting.

Director Stickney mentioned that the Summer Activity Guide
looks great. He was very impressed with the quality and display
of the guide.

Supervisor Woodford advised that she begins planning and
coordinating the Fall Activity Guide next week. Therefore, a
decision as soon as possible would be beneficial.

Admin Ross extended appreciation to Supervisor Woodford for
all her efforts regarding this topic.

Swimming Pool project timeline and update (pg. 120):

Greg Foell has completed the Front-End documents for us, which
are needed for the formal bid packet. The tentative dates for the
bid process will need to be confirmed with Aquatic Design
Group, who will be involved in the pre-bid walk-through and
other steps in the process. Admin Ross anticipates hearing back
from ADG to confirm dates next week. The bid packet must be
posted twice for thirty days in an adjudicated newspaper. A
contractor is anticipated to be selected in early August for a start
of the project in September. Our Legal Counsel provided us with
document templates. Admin Ross to advise when the bid packet
is posted. The permit is on hold with the County until a
contractor is selected at which time the contractor will proceed
with permit processing.

Driveway/Trail project timeline and update (pg. 121):

The County completed their Initial Review of the plans on

May 3. They require additional details for the plans. Because
the project is over one acre, there are additional processes we are
subjected to. We are looking into separating this into two
projects: a Driveway project and a Trails project. Admin Ross is
seeking clearance from the State Grants Project Manager before
proceeding.

Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 5



14. DIRECTOR AND
STAFF COMMENTS

Minutes, May 18, 2023
Page 6 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Greg Foell has completed the Front-End documents for us, which
are needed for the formal bid packet. The tentative dates for the
bid process hinge on the County process. Admin Ross is also
verifying what dates work with our Architect, who will be
involved in the bid process. Our Legal Counsel provided us with
document templates. The bid packet will likely be ready to
advertise within 4-8 weeks.

f) Arcade Cripple Creek Trail project update (verbal):
Crusader Fence Company completed the Streng Park fence
during the first week of May. The demo work on the fences for
the four Orangevale property owners along the trail is scheduled
for this week and next. Temporary fencing will be installed until
the new fences are completed. The trail construction has not yet
reached Sundance or Streng parks. The installation of the
wrought iron and redwood fencing for those homes is being
scheduled and will likely take two weeks to install.

Admin Ross reminded of the dedication ceremony by the Orangevale
History Project for the Central California Railroad sign which will be
held on Saturday, May 20 at 2:00PM. One of the OVparks Board of
Directors will say a few words at the dedication.

Supervisor Bain advised that although April projections were not met,
May revenue reflects the Open House registrations received which
was quite successful.

Supervisor Woodford advised that summer program registration is
doing well. New programs offered include Junior Pickleball, Zumba
Gold, StretchLab, and Mushy Love Mushroom Growing. Plans are
being implemented to offer Bingo once a month for the senior
community. In addition, Tropical Escape and Carving Memories
events are planned for the seniors. Participation in Collette Vacations
has been going well. Seven travelers from OVparks are currently on
the Best of Ireland tour.

Park Maintenance Supt. Oropeza advised that a technician inspected
the pool pump to assure it is operating correctly. A flail mower
attachment has been acquired to assist with the fire breaks. Special
thanks extended to all the volunteers and staff for their participation
in this year’s Big Day of Service. Their assistance was quite
valuable to the success of the day.

Director Meraz inquired if the driveway and trail project will be
ADA compliant. Admin Ross and Park Maintenance Supt. shared
that the area has accessibility in other areas. Admin Ross to verify
with Sacramento County of any ADA requirements on this project
and advise the BOD of the outcome.

Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 6



Director Stickney advised that the engineers report must be published
for thirty days and allow for public comment prior to presenting for
approval at the July Board of Directors Meeting.

Director Montes shared excitement with how the Big Day of Service
event went and looking forward to the upcoming Summer Palooza
with the OVparks 40 Anniversary Celebration. Exclusive Exteriors
has completed the concrete work contracted. The electrician will have
electrical repairs completed by June 8. Director Montes will not
attend the next BOD meeting on June 15. The thank you article for
the Big Day of Service participants can be published in the next
Orangevale View if received tomorrow.

Director Brunberg expressed appreciation to the staff for their
assistance in the preparation and completed work during the Big Day
of Service.

15. ITEMS FOR NEXT a) Preliminary Budget for FY 2023-24 will be presented for approval
AGENDA

b) Public Hearings for Orangevale and Kenneth Grove Landscaping
and Lighting Assessment Districts and Resolutions to approve the
Engineer Reports to order and levy the assessments for Fiscal Year
2023/24. If needed, this may be provided for approval at a Special
BOD Meeting or at the July 20 BOD meeting.

¢) Determine if July 20 meeting will be live-streamed.
The BOD determined live-streaming will be necessary if SCI
Consulting will be in attendance.

16. ADJOURNMENT With no further business to discuss, the general meeting of the Board
of Directors was adjourned at 7:25p.m. On a motion by Director
MOTION #6 Brunberg, seconded by Director Montes, the adjournment was
approved by a vote of 4-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Brunberg,
Meraz, and Montes, voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions.
Director Presinal was absent.

Mike Stickney, Chairperson

Minutes, May 18 , 2023
Page 7 of 7

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 7



Mens 3 on 3 Hoops
Ages: 3549 & 50+
W 5177112 7:00-8:30pm
Fee: $42/$45 NR

------------------------------------------------------

New! Group Stretch Class with Stretchlab
- Moming  Ages:18+  Afiemoon

Fee: $36/$39 NR Fee: $36 / $39 NR

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

New! Intro to Mushroom Growing
Ages: 18+ -
W 5/240r6/7 6:30-7: A5pm
Fee: $52 / $55 NR

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Social Dancing
- ChaCha Ages: 18+ Salsa
M 6/5-6/26 7:00-8:00pm M 6/5-6/26 8:00-9:00pm
Fee: $43 / $46 NR Fee: $43 / $46 NR

Summer Theatre Workshop

Wizard of Oz Youth Edition U&
Ages: 8-18
M-F 6/12-6/30 9:00am-2:00pm

Fee: $353 / $356 NR
Audlﬁons will be held the first day of the workshop

N. A. of A. Al Sports Camp

Jr. Academy
- Ages: 46 )
M-F 6/19-6/23 9:00am-12:00pm
Ages: 7-13 ‘Fee: $159/$162 NR
M-F 6/19-6/23 9:00am-12:00pm
Fee:$159/$162NR

W 524 8459:30am W 524 12:00-12:45pm

Parks Make Life Better!®

LlPBO

6826 Hazel Ave, Orangevale
(916) 988-4373 « OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreatimtfﬁs 202%oard of Directors Meeting June 15, 20 20

Page 8



National Academy of Athletics
Tee-Ball (‘amp
-Ages: 46 -
6/12-6/16 9:00am-12:00pm
Fee: $159 / $162 NR

" -Baby Ballet Pre Ballet :

Ages walking-3 - Ages: 36
- 6/5-7/3 9:00-9:30am 6/5-7/3 9:30-10:15am
~ Fee: $47/ $50 NR Fee: $159 / $162 NR

Social Dancin
Cha Cha Ages: ?g g Salsa

M 6/56267008000m M 6/56/26800.900pm

Fee:$43/$46NR Fee: 3431546NR |
g.".i!ulnol on -.,ap.-waai;gazaué}ngoé-iés sssasan : pay,
JointhemeiIhourmrgstersumerdaycamp'
Ages: 3-5
: Weekly Sessions Available from 6/13-8/1
: TuW/Th 9:00-11:30am
e 000 por woek ($33 forweek 4)

New! Intro to Musaroom Growmg
w 6:30-7:45pm

Fee: $52/ 855 NR per dlass
~Summer Theatre Workshop
9 Wizard of Oz Yough Edition

Ages: 8-1
s M-F 6/12-6/30 9:00am-2:00pm _
Auditions will be held the first day of the workshop, 6/12

Fee: $353 / $356 NR
 Parks Make Life Better!®

HPBO

L__Gst Connectsd @OVparks |
6826 Hazel Ave, Orangevale
(916) 988-4373 » OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & EENY INEAJXE 26, 8688 of Directors Meeting g : 20

Page 9



W0o8Z00TedIeWINSAOGRST ] [TeUId 10

WOD VZOO'TVAUHININNSAO MMM JE

9)18oM TeIOYJO NO 0} SUT[UO 08 ‘sUoT}
-eorpdde aosuods 10 apered ‘Topuda 393
‘JUSWIUIR)IS)US pUB Spueq- oY} yoiees
-3I ‘guoAd oY} JNOQE oIoW UILS] OF,

~ (fearuxed o3 38 00'9E$)
0008 o1e spueqisum peseyoind
S0UBAPY ‘SUOIJEO0] pue sdnoid oY) [
0] W00 eZ0O[edIOUITINSAO MMM JISTA
‘o pue Ionbry N %77 oI siosuods
pue ‘sygoxd-uou ‘sjooyos [BOO[ ino JO

Auew wogj aseyoand sourApe I0J 9[q8

-[feA® oIe SpuEq ISLIM OPLI perwTuf)
j00°6$ 9aeg [P$ ode s}npy pue sIota

-9§ %3 SPTY 10J G§ ST 8Y) 0} UOISSTHIPY -

‘[ooyog ATejusmwoly sye( Uselr) pury
-9 enueAy YeQ JO yjnos jsn enue
-Ay Meqd QITL “Yred Ayunwuio)
o[easduer() oyJ, Je A[[eo0[ peY oIe
SONIAIJOR BZOO[RJ Jewiuing AQ °YlL
"M0[9q aY3 [Te noqe

peoy "Ae( sioyje, Jo Jouoy Ut ooy Ut
198 £o1) — spep Inok JuLiq spry ‘senl
-IAT}0R POJUSLIO-A[IWIE] BIJXS JO S0
“YI0¥ SHIBJAQ [9IBIq9[e0 am ‘Aepung
"qoury] BULISR] 9AT)

-BU AS[[B/ SSBIY) PUB JST3aE SUIPI0ODI
S[[IAYSeN pue 19eAH UOSIV % 19eAH
ry] Wea) 9fim pue pueqsny SuLjesy
BTWIOJE)) U0y Jo 4no A30q YIION
‘pueg A0 YIION OYJ, SISUNpeay
pue I0ATY jesung oY) SuLmjes] ‘oY
&, spoy g '] pue Anjuno) 1 [T,
e §T JYSmu Lepainjeg °SOIIAIJOR UNJ Jo
s30] pue soured eAey s pue wd § 03
uoou ZT wioxj uado oq [[IM I9UI0Y] SPTY
Iead ST, "U00U ZT 18 I9WI0Yf Spryf Jo
Buruado oY) puE ‘JULWEUINO) S[OYUI0D
[eUonTpEI} INO ‘WIk § Je s)IB)S speled
oY} pue weg je suideq uUnI unj ayj,
‘Aepanjeg Uo 9o UT 198 ATeJI|IU S UOT)

U IN0 Ul POAIAS SARY IO SAIJOR AT

oYM 9803 [[V "opeled pue uny unyg Jg
on[g 2 MTUM POy Y3 YiIm Jo Sursyory
LNTAH DI 293 ST y3LT oy ‘Aepmieg

"}SB0O J50M
9} U0 S9INQLI) SUTNULZ jsow 8y} jJo
auo se Auew £q pewre[a0ad "oty emod
a1800q sex9, AS10UQ-ySTy ® 53] 9pNn3
198 pus 8 ‘vorssed YIIm PpOULIOf
-18g *JOL ZZ 3o d1nu oY) 03 dMqLYy
Buiked jo UoISIA 9Y3 YIIM 6002 JO ITE}
oy} ut pawriog "dO.L ZZ ©3 °nquiy [ed
-snw ® 81 SJOHDZZ "Pueq SdOHDZZ
stour[pesy Juumnjes - J0Y-U-¥o0Y,,
powioy) ST JUSUIUTEIIRIUS & AepLij
‘9J1S UO S9SSAUISN] PUB I9)JeId [B00]
Jo s30] pue Suruedo [eATUIED Y3} YHM
wd 0:F e Suraurdag uolyeIqa[ed Aep
-00IY} oyj Jo IO M pue ‘IYSIN
Suruad(),, A[[eroUzo ST Y9 sunp ‘Aep
-] 'sIsuUT[pesy paInjes) sweu 3iq
SuTysEWwS SWIOS PUB JUS[E} [BIO] YIM
posjoed-wmref st dn-our -SJIBOA SH],

"SOpLIJo My [BA |

-[UIed B pue ‘pooj snonydwmios ‘Jusul

-UTeLIoIUO OAT[ ‘SYJ00q (G I0A0 yJIM |

ITe] JOPUSA/FRID © ‘SOIIAIE DI
-uny yyuM Aep Jouioy] SprY, [eweds
pue uny ung g e ‘eUer] Jorquealy)
umop opered e Ym 939[dmIod JUBAS
poyoed-Tepus[eo © ST BzoO[ed JIOW
-wng AQ ‘YI|T eunp ‘Aepung ys3noIyy
‘191 eunp ‘Aepriy Woly 1esk sTY} PIOH

*A[rure] o[oym oY} 10§ sousLredxe
jea1d € 1 *iANTd ¥ ALIHM qdy.
peway], "Uo1BIqe[8d BZOO[Ed Iowwng

a[eAsSURI() }S0Y 03 PIIIOXD dIE PLIS( ||

JIeq pue UoTeaIdny oressduri() oy
pue dnoxr) juomaSeUE]y SIUSAY [V

"SOTJIATIOR PUE ‘JUS[e} ‘YUSTIUTEIOUO |

jo dn-ourf saeed sryj 10§ Surpymq-stf
JUSMISNOXS I8oU SMBID JUdAS 9} SV |

VZOO'IVd dIININAOS 404
AVANTTVO dNOA AV

103°2200[ed ISWUINSAC MMM

L1 ANNC /S dpeied

Q1LY 9] INAT

yied Ayunwwod efeasbuesy

Page 10

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



Join the Orangevale Recreation &
Park District on Sunday, June 18,
2023 from noon-4:00 p.m. for their
40th Anniversary Celebration taking
place at Orangevale Summer Paloo-
za. This event will feature fun-for the
entire family!

+Interactive Kids Activities
* Specialty Family Entertainment

*Program Displays

+Food Trucks

*Vendors

Event Programming:

+12:00 p.m. Welcome & Event Kick-
off

+12:20 p.m. DJ and Activities
+1:30 p.m.  Magic/Variety Show
+3:00 p.m. - School of Rock ‘

»4:00 p.m. Guilty As Charged

*Programming and Entertainment
are subject to change with little or no
notice.

The Orangevale Recreation & Park
District has partnered with the Or-
angevale Summer Palooza to bring a

" day filled with fun for the entire fam-

OVPARKS 40th

celebrate!

ANNIVERSARY from page 4

ily, which includes various
performances and vendors.

The 40th Anniversary Cel-
ebration will begin at noon at
Orangevale Community Park
(near the horse area). World
Class Equine performances
from the Boots & Bling Drill

Team, Capital City Aerialist,
Nu Balance Vaulters, and
DJ Curtis Mixing Entertain-
ment will begin following the

“event kick-off.
In addition to the perfor-

mance programming, the
event will also feature infor-
mation and displays pertain-
ing to programs offered by
OVparks for the community

For More Information about
schedule of activities visit.
Www.ovsummerpalooza.com

ORANGEVALE VIEW MAY 12, 2023

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Board of Directors Meeting

# and surrounding area
! neighbors. Food trucks
! and vendors will be
~ available for delicious
bites and local busi-
ness and craft booths.

The OVparks 40th An-
niversary Celebration
is sure to be fun for the
entire family. We look
forward to seeing our
community on .June
18th at Orangevale
Community Park to

June 15,2023 Page 11



OVparks Thanks '.
Volunteers for Big
Day of Service

What a difference volunteers make!
OVparks is grateful for the 150 vol-
unteers who helped complete 11
projects within Orangevale’s parks
- during the Big Day of Service event

-on Saturday, May 6. On behalf of
‘OVparks Board of Directors and
‘staff, we thank the volunteers for
‘making these parks better for ev-

eryone.

~ Orangevale Community
- Center Park:
Spread 25 yards of bark; Plant 44
newplanm Plant 4 trees; Construct

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

3 new picnic tables; - anew
set of bleachers; Landscaped the
Orangevale History Project build-

Pecan Park:
Replanted the butterfly garden; In-
stalled a new park sign; Added new
decomposed granite and other re-
pairs to the dog park; Plant 6 trees.

. Orangevale Community Park:

Added planters and decorative rock

to the Shady Oaks entrance; Added

over 1,000 feet of irrigation and
planted 12 trees to the Shady Oaks
Dise Golf Course.

Youth Center Park:

Plan%ed2uws

June 15,2023

Page 12



GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31,2023

CLAIM# ACCOUNT # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907001916 20202100 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  BOOKS/PERIODICALS/SUBSCRIPTION 216.66
1907001916 20203800  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 161.16
1907002814 20203900 BARRY ROSS ) ~ |[EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 16.24
1907002828 20203900 SUSAN MYREN EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 43.62
B - 59.86
1906999221 20206100 ROTARY CLUB OF ORANGEVALE ~ MEMBERSHIP DUES 180.00
1907009655 20206100 NATIONAL RECREATIONAND P |MEMBERSHIP DUES i 700.00
1907009654 20206100 CALIF PARK & RECREATIONS ~ MEMBERSHIP DUES . 870.00
- . 1,750.00
1906999199 20207600 BURKETTS OFFICE SUPPLY IN | OFFICE SUPPLIES ] 579.59
1907001916 20207600  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT OFFICE SUPPLIES 40.89
I 620.48
1907001916 20208100 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT ~ POSTAL SERVICES ] 290.00
1906992901| 20208500 PRINT PROJECT MANAGERS IN PRINTING SERVICES 8,935.00
1906999311) 20219700 |AT&T TELEPHONE SERVICES ] 3.48
1906999280, 20219700 |SPRINTPCS "TELEPHONE SERVICES ‘ 112.56
1907009527 20219700 | COMCAST i i "TELEPHONE SERVICES , 650.13|
1907009525, 20219700 |COMCAST TELEPHONE SERVICES , 628.57|
1907009520 20219700 |AT&T | TELEPHONE SERVICES ] 1.42]
. . - 1,396.16|
1907009653 20226200 |JJR ENTERPRISES INC OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE S 173.05
1906999205 20259100 |STREAMLINE SOFTWARE INC OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 200.00
1906999203 20259100 |STREAMLINE SOFTWARE INC OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 200.00
| . 400.00
1907009650, 20259101 |N3X MSP INC i _IT SERVICES 1,128.00
1907009650, 20281202 |N3X MSP INC SOFTWARE . 498.00
1906992903 20285100 |[KARIMASTERS RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~1,200.00
1906992902 20285100 |HOOMAN GHAZANFARI RECREATIONAL SERVICES 800.00
1906992900, 20285100 |CARMICHAEL RECREATION& P ~ RECREATIONAL SERVICES 14,411.22
1906992898 20285100 |TERRY MASTEN ~ |RECREATIONAL SERVICES o 180.00
1906992897 20285100 |BRENDAN CHASE | RECREATIONAL SERVICES 2,422.80
1906999216 20285100 |LAUREN BAYHA RECREATIONAL SERVICES 400.00
1906999210, 20285100 |KEVIN LOGUE o 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~800.00
1906999201, 20285100 |CIVICPLUS INC 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES 9,324.39
1906999231, 20285100 |RICHARD KOWALESKI RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 264.00
1906999230 20285100 |STEVEN MIRANDA ~ 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES 872.95
1906999227 20285100 |GAIL KENNEY | RECREATIONAL SERVICES 966.00
1906999226 20285100  ADRIAAN JANSEN VAN VUUREN ~ RECREATIONAL SERVICES 2,107.50
1906999225 20285100 |ALLGOOD DRIVING SCHOOL RECREATIONAL SERVICES 123.25
1906999224 20285100 |ALISON LLOYD RECREATIONAL SERVICES 1,672.00
1906999222 20285100 'RESCUE TRAINING INSTITUTE RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 535.50
1907001916 20285100 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT ~  RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 714.00
1907002808 20285100 TERRY MASTEN o \RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 162.00
1907002133 20285100 TERRY HOWARD 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~ 1,134.00
1907002811, 20285100 STEPHANIE TADLOCK 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~216.00
1907009671 20285100 GREATER SACRAMENTO INVEST |RECREATIONAL SERVICES 2,607.80
1907009682 20285100 HANDSTANDS INC 'RECREATIONAL SERVICES 216.30

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 13



GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31, 2023
CLAIM# ACCOUNT # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

1907009686 20285100 |YMCA OF SUPERIOR CALIFORN RECREATIONAL SERVICES . 336.00
1907009656 20285100 |NATIONAL ACADEMY OF ATHLE RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 1,896.00
1907009668 20285100 |GREATER SACRAMENTO INVEST  RECREATIONAL SERVICES 1,955.85
l_ ) | 45,317.56
1907001916 20285200 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES ) 1,591.35
1907001916, 20285200 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT TAX ACCRUAL ‘ 0.75
1907009517 20285200 CAPITAL ONE NA RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES | 15057
. 1,742.67
110921992 | 20296200 SACRAMENTO COUNTY PARKING |QR BILLING May-2023 ORANGEVALE F 3.50
1907002130 30322000 C T TECHNOLOGY FIN SERV BOND/LOAN REDEMPTION 366.35
1907001916 42420200 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 389.72
1906999254 43430300 GOLD COUNTRY TRACTOR INC VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT | 1,480.05
1907001916 43430300 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT EQUIPMENT 1 260.00
[ ) ~ 1,740.05
1907002132 50557100 STATE OF CALIFORNIA ~ |[FINGERPRINT SERVICES 192.00

I =il = |_ _ - -

I | [
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 14



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
MAY 2023

Account Budgeted Current Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2022/2023 Expenditures Date Available % Left
1000 SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
10111000 Salaries & Wages, Regular 921,250.00 68,618.00 801,471.51 119,778.49 13%
10112100 Salaries & Wages, Extra Help 424,200.00 19,311.98 322,119.47 102,080.53 24%
10112400 Salaries, Board members 12,000.00 500.00 6,700.00 5,300.00 44%
10121000 Retirement 296,100.00 22,231.00 259,350.04 36,749.96 12%
10122000 Social Security 91,300.00 6,705.88 85,833.20 5,466.80 6%
10123000 Group Insurance 260,720.00 19,867.01 215,788.86 44,931.14 17%
10124000 Worker's Comp. Ins 49,500.00 55,883.49 (6,383.49) -13%
10125000 Unemployment Insurance 18,150.00 268.96 6,884.91 11,265.09 62%
10128000 Health Care/Retirees 0.00 - 0.00 | #DIV/0!

SUB-TOTAL 2,073,220.00 137,502.83 | 1,754,031.48 319,188.52 15%
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
20200500 Advertise/Legal Notices 2,300.00 1,595.44 704.56 31%
20202100 Books/Periodicals/Subscrip 2,000.00 216.66 2,688.47 (688.47) -34%
20202900 Business/Conference Expense 4,000.00 2,284.33 1,715.67 43%
20203500 Education/Training Serv. 3,500.00 1,010.00 2,490.00 71%
20203600 Education /Training Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203700 Tuition Reimbursement 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203800 Employee Recognition 2,300.00 161.16 2,236.16 63.84 3%
20203802 Recognition Items 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203803 Recognition Events 500.00 10.00 490.00 98%
20203900 Employee Transportation 2,800.00 59.86 2,295.98 504.02 18%
20205100 Liability Insurance 121,600.00 121,571.00 29.00 0%
20205500 Rental Insurance 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 100%
20206100 Membership Dues 14,000.00 1,750.00 14,587.95 (587.95) -4%
20207600 Office Supplies 6,500.00 620.48 4,816.80 1,683.20 26%
20207602 Signs 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20207603 Keys 350.00 - 350.00 100%
20208100 Postal Services 6,500.00 290.00 8,241.89 (1,741.89) -27%
20208102 Stamps 2,000.00 306.00 1,694.00 85%
20208500 Printing Services 26,000.00 8,935.00 24,239.57 1,760.43 7%
20210300 Agricultural/Horticultural Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20210400 Agricultural/Horticultural Supply 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20211200 Building Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20212200 Chemicals 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20213100 Electrical Maint. Service 400.00 - 400.00 100%
20213200 Electrical Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20214100 Land Improv. Maint. Services 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20214200 Land Improv. Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20215100 Mechanical System Maint. Ser 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20215200 Mechanical System Maint. Sup 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20216200 Painting Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20216700 Plumbing Maint. Service 400.00 - 400.00 100%
20216800 Plumbing Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20218100 Irrigation Services 500.00 - 500.00 100%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 15




Account Budgeted Current Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2022/2023 Expenditures Date Available % Left
20218200 Irrigation Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20218500 Permit Charges 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 100%
20219100 Electricity 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20219200 Natural Gas / LPG/ Fuel Oil 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20219300 Refuse Collection / Disposal Servic 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20219500 Sewage Disposal Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20219700 Telephone Service 13,000.00 1,396.16 13,943.65 (943.65) -7%
20219800 Water 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20219900 Telephone System Maint. 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20220500 Automotive Maint. Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20220600 Automotive Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20221200 Construction Equip Maint Sup 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20222600 Expendable Tools 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20223600 Fuel & Lubricants 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20226100 Office Equip Maint Service 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20226200 Office Equip Maint Supplies 3,500.00 173.05 1,685.87 1,814.13 52%
20227500 Rents/Leases Equipment 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20228100 Shop Equip Maint Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20228200 Shop Equip Maint Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20229100 Other Equip Maint Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20229200 Other Equip Maint Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20231400 Clothing/Personal Supplies 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20232100 Custodial Services 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20232200 Custodial Supplies 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20244300 Medical Services 200.00 522.36 (322.36) -161%
20250500 Accounting Services 7,000.00 5,979.60 1,020.40 15%
20250700 Assessment/Collection Service 19,500.00 17,138.02 2,361.98 12%
20252500 Engineering Services 26,000.00 16,205.70 9,794.30 38%
20253100 Legal Services 20,000.00 594.00 19,406.00 97%
20256200 Transcribing Services 0.00 - 0.00 | #DIV/0!
20257100 Security Services 4,500.00 2,236.00 2,264.00 50%
20259100 Other Professional Services 75,000.00 400.00 8,520.36 66,479.64 89%
20259101 Computer Consultants 14,500.00 1,128.00 13,003.00 1,497.00 10%
20281201 PC Hardware 7,000.00 189.65 6,810.35 97%
20281202 PC Software 7,000.00 498.00 4,476.40 2,523.60 36%
20281203 PC Supplies 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20281900 Elections 34,000.00 29,106.90 4,893.10 14%
20285100 Recreational Services 148,000.00 45,841.56 170,507.57 (22,507.57) -15%
20285200 Recreational Supplies 37,000.00 1,742.67 25,950.65 11,049.35 30%
20289800 Other Operating Exp - Supplies 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20289900 Other Operating Exp - Services 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20291100 System Development Services 3,000.00 3,270.48 (270.48) -9%
20296200 GS Parking Charges 200.00 3.50 70.00 130.00 65%
SUB-TOTAL 648,550.00 63,216.10 499,283.80| 149,266.20 23%
3000 OTHER CHARGES
30321000 Interest Expense 29,100.00 29,006.25 93.75 0%
30322000 Bond/Loan Redemption 44,200.00 366.35 42,808.73 1,391.27 3%
30345000 Taxes/Licenses/Assess Trans 1,600.00 1,211.46 388.54 24%
SUB-TOTAL 74,900.00 366.35 73,026.44 1,873.56 3%
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 16




Account Budgeted Current Expeditures to Funds

Number Expenditure Account 2022/2023 Expenditures Date Available % Left

4000 FIXED ASSETS

41410100 Land 0.00 - 0.00

42420200 Struc. & Improvements 720,000.00 389.72 64,077.19 655,922.81 91%

43430300 Vehicles/Equipment 50,000.00 1,740.05 10,958.85 39,041.15 78%
SUB-TOTAL 770,000.00 2,129.77 75,036.04 694,963.96 90%

5000 INTERFUND CHARGES

50557100 Fingerprinting Service 2,200.00 192.00 2,080.00 120.00 5%
SUB-TOTAL 2,200.00 192.00 2,080.00 120.00 5%

79790100 Contingency Appropriations 0.00 - 0.00 0%

Deposit into Reserves 0.00 - 0.00 0%
GRAND TOTAL 3,568,870.00 203,407.05 | 2,403,457.76 | 1,165,412.24 33%
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 17



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

REVENUE STATEMENT
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
MAY 2023
Account 2022/2023 | Realized Collection YTD
Number |Revenue Account Budgeted This YTD Uncollected %
Revenue Period Balance Balance | Collected
91910100 |Prop. Taxes - Current Secured 1,600,685 1,591,206.48 9,478.52 99.41%
91910200 |Prop. Taxes - Current Unsecured 54,400 54,455.08 -55.08| 100.10%
91910300 |Supplemental Taxes Current 38,400 44,026.98 -5,626.98| 114.65%
91910400 |Prop. Taxes Sec. Delinquent 12,605 9,745.19 2,859.81 77.31%
91910500 |Prop. Taxes Supp. Deling. 1,945 3,724.09 -1,779.09] 191.47%
91910600 |Unitary Current Secured 14,500 16,323.82 -1,823.82] 112.58%
91910800 |Prior Year Supple-Deling .- 0.00 0.00
91910900 | Education Rev. Augment. Fund - 0.00 0.00
91911000 |Prop. Tax - Sec. Deling. Roll - 0.00 0.00
91912000 |Prop. Tax - Sec. Redemption 140 174.88 -34.88
91913000 |Prop. Tax Prior - Unsecured 1,105 499.79 605.21 45.23%
91914000 |Penalty Costs - Prop. Tax 500 363.46 136.54| 72.69%
91919900 | Taxes - Other - 0.00 0.00
SUB-TOTAL TAXES 9100 1,724,280 0.00| 1,720,519.77 3,760.23 99.78%
94941000 |Interest Income 14,000 14,655.00 -655.00] 104.68%
94942900 |Building Rental Other 125,000 7,719.94| 120,566.14 4,433.86] 96.45%
94943900 |Cell Tower Leases 48,500 3,958.17 43,539.87 4,960.13] 89.77%
94944800 |Rec.Concessions Final 9 21,000 550.00 17,629.72 3,370.28] 83.95%
94945900 |Other Vending Devices - 0.00 0.00
94949000 |Concessions - Other - 0.00 0.00
95952200 |Homeowner Prop. Tax Relief 14,000 10,594.69 3,405.31 75.68%
95952900 |In-Lieu Taxes 220,000 5,301.86] 214,698.14
95959504 |Fiscal Relief for Independent Specia - 0.00 0.00
95956900 |State Aid - Other Misc. Programs - 0.00 0.00
96963313 |Miscellaneous Fees 1,000 21.00 1,539.81 -539.81| 153.98%
96964600 |Recreation Service Charges 550,000 | 198,982.67| 543,321.66 6,678.34| 98.79%
96969700 |Security Services 1,000 47.87 47.87 952.13 4.79%
96969903 | Sponsorships/Scholarships - 0.00 0.00
97973000 |Donations & Contributions 2,000 150.00 2,425.00 -425.001 121.25%
97973200 |Recreation Contributions - 0.00 0.00
97973300|Orangevale Clubs g 0.00 0.00
97974000 |Insurance Proceeds 900 140.95 759.05 15.66%
97979000 |Revenue - Other 1,500 2,137.30 -637.30| 142.49%
SUB-TOTAL OTHER MISC. INCO 998,900 | 211,429.65| 761,899.87| 237,000.13 76.27%
TOTAL BUDGET AMOUNT 2,723,180 211,429.65| 2,482,419.64| 240,760.36 91.16%
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 18




OLLAD EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31, 2023
CLAM# | ACCOUNT# VENDOR DESCRIPTION | AMOUNT
1907001916 = 20207600 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT ~ OFFICE SUPPLIES 104.50
| 1907009541 '{ 20210300 |NORTHERN CALIFORNIA INALL AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SER' 412.50
| 1906992892 20210400 |NIMBUS LANDSCAPING MATERI AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SUP| 59.81
| 1907002122 20210400 |HERITAGE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 'AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SUPI 193.47
) 253.28
| 1906992893 20212200 |AQUA SOURCE INC CHEMICAL SUPPLIES - 5,973.66
1906999262 20212200 |AQUASOURCEINC 'CHEMICAL SUPPLIES 380.55
| 1907009532 20212200 |SCP DISTRIBUTORS LLC CHEMICAL SUPPLIES 70.47
A - 6,424.68
1906992894 20213200 |TOLLEFSON AND ASSOCIATES ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 95.95
1906998887 20214100 |EASYSTUMPS TREE SERVICES LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S 1,600.00
1906999253 20214100 |R&B QUALITY TREE CARE INC LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S 600.00
1907009537 = 20214100 |RORY MERRILL LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S 22,535.00
] B B 24,735.00
1907001916 20214200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S| 2,291.03
1907001916 20214200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT TAX ACCRUAL ] 106.10
1907002122 | 20214200 |HERITAGE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S 245.66
1907009646 | 20214200 |NIMBUS LANDSCAPING MATERI LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE S 81.56
. 2,724.35
1907001916 20215200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT MECHANICAL SYSTEMS MAINTENANCE ~ 438.65
1907001916 20215200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT ~~ TAX ACCRUAL ‘ 31.85
] - - - | 47050
1007009530 20216200 | THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO PAINTING SUPPLIES 197.07
A i
1907009536 20216700 |ROV ENTERPRISES INC PLUMBING MAINTENANCE SERVICES 465.06
1906999264 = 20218200 |SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY IRRIGATION SUPPLIES 1,752.31
1907002122 20218200 |HERITAGE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY IRRIGATION SUPPLIES 410.55
1907009531 20218200 |SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY IRRIGATION SUPPLIES 376.38
1907009649 20218200 |HERITAGE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY IRRIGATION SUPPLIES - 563.28
[ I o _ 3,102.52
1906999281 = 20219100 |SMUD ELECTRICITY - 5,005.88
1300837487 | 20219100 |CLEAR CHANNEL (BUS STOP REIMBUF ELECTRICITY -300.00
] ) | - 4,705.88
1907002121 20219200 |PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC NATURAL GAS/LPG/FUEL OIL 7,801.72
1906999279 20219300 |ALLIED WASTE SERVICES OF 'REFUSE COLLECTION/DISPOSAL SERV 1,733.31
1907002123 20219500 |UNITED SITE SERVICES OF C SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES | 201.75
| 1907002126 20219500 | UNITED SITE SERVICES OF C SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES 201.75
1907009519 20219500 |COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES | 819.46
T _ ) B 1,222.96
1907001916 20219800 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT WATER 28.54
1907009523 20219800  ORANGEVALE WATER COMPANY WATER ) 294756
. — 2,976.10
— ) ! I———— ——— —_—— = —
1906999259 20220500 | NAZIR GROUP AUTO MAINTENANCE SERVICES 195.04
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 19



OLLAD EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31, 2023
1906999258 20220500 NAZIR GROUP 'AUTO MAINTENANCE SERVICES 1 239.21
| 1906999257 | 20220500 NAZIR GROUP AUTO MAINTENANCE SERVICES ; 202.76
o | 637.01
1907001916 = 20223600 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT 'FUEL/LUBRICANTS 1,789.40
1906999261 = 20227500 GUY RENTSINC ) 'RENT/LEASE EQUIPMENT 314.52]
1907009542 = 20227500 GUY RENTS INC RENT/LEASE EQUIPMENT ) 98.39
o 412.91|
71907001916 | 20228200 | US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT 'SHOP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUP 816.37
1907001916 = 20228200 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT TAX ACCRUAL 0.54
S 816.91
1906999199 = 20232200 BURKETTS OFFICE SUPPLY IN 'CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 529.57|
1906998885 = 20232200 HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAIN 'CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 257.36
) - 786.93
1906992890 20259100 NEIGHBORLY PEST MANAGEMEN OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 186.00
1907002128 | 20259100 | NEIGHBORLY PEST MANAGEMEN  OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ~ 95.00
1907009539 20259100 | GREGORY A FOELL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,003.48
1907009540 20259100 |NEIGHBORLY PEST MANAGEMEN OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 186.00
| 1,470.48
1907009648 42420200 |CRUSADER FENCE CO STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 11,473.00
L | ] ] ]
| N R o B |
L — .
| I L _ ]
- L I .
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 20



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - OLLAD ASSESSMENT
BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
MAY 2023
Account Budgeted Current | Expeditures to Funds
Number |Expenditure Account 2022/2023 | Expenditure Date Available |% Left
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
20203500  [Education/Training Service 3,000.00 1,359.66 1,640.34 55%
20206100 |Membership Dues 800.00 - 800.00 100%
20207600 |Office Supplies 500.00 104.50 308.70 191.30 38%
20207602 |Signs 1,000.00 1,171.00 (171.00)| -17%
20207603 |Keys - 1,000.00 170.21 829.79 83%
20210300  |Agricultural/Horticultural Service 12,500.00 412.50 4,612.50 7,887.50 63%
20210400  [Agricultural/Horticultural Supply 12,000.00 253.28 8,087.78 3,912.22 33%
20211200 |Building Maint. Supplies 8,500.00 8,198.72 301.28 4%
20212200 |Chemicals 30,000.00 6,424.68 28,021.69 1,978.31 7%
20213100 |Electrical Maint. Service 4,500.00 - 4,500.00 100%
20213200 |Electrical Maint. Supplies 2,000.00 95.95 467.46 1,532.54 77%
20214100 |Land Improv. Maint. Service 47,500.00| 24,735.00 32,585.00 14,915.00 31%
20214200 |Land Improv. Maint. Supplies 34,500.00 2,724.35 19,913.06 14,586.94 42%
20215100 |Mechanical System Maint. Ser 9,500.00 1,804.72 7,695.28 81%
20215200 |Mechanical System Maint. Sup 3,000.00 470.50 931.38 2,068.62 69%
20216200 [Painting Supplies 1,500.00 197.07 449.00 1,051.00 70%
20216700 [Plumbing Maint. Service 1,000.00 465.06 465.06 534.94 53%
20216800 |Plumbing Maint. Supplies 2,500.00 296.86 2,203.14 88%
20218100 _[Irrigation Service 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20218200 [Irrigation Supplies 16,000.00 3,102.52 8,558.72 7,441.28 47%
20218500 |Permit Charges 4,000.00 3,075.00 925.00 23%
20219100 |Electricity 70,000.00 4,705.88 58,547.33 11,452.67 16%
20219200 |Natural Gas / LPG/ Fuel Oil 24,000.00 7,801.72 27,330.86 (3,330.86)| -14%
20219300 |Refuse Collection / Disposal Servic 23,500.00 1,733.31 19,143.85 4,356.15 19%
20219500  [Sewage Disposal Service 14,200.00 1,222.96 12,727.05 1,472.95 10%
20219700 |Telephone System 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 100%
20219800 |Water 66,000.00 2,976.10 58,131.33 7,868.67 12%
20219900 |Telephone System Maintenance 2,000.00 1,332.00 668.00 33%
20220500 |Auto Maintenance Service 5,000.00 637.01 3,061.90 1,938.10 39%
20220600 |Auto Maintenance Supplies 5,000.00 4,334.84 665.16 13%
20221200 |Construction Equip. Maint. Sup. 500.00 18.31 481.69 96%
20222600 |Expendable Tools 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 100%
20223600 |Fuel & Lubricants 21,000.00 1,789.40 22,412.71 (1,412.71) -7%
20227500 |Rent/Lease Equipment 4,000.00 41291 729.08 3,270.92 82%
20228100 |Shop Equip. Maint. Service 1,500.00 581.15 918.85 61%
20228200  [Shop Equip. Maint. Supplies 7,500.00 816.91 6,720.09 779.91 10%
20229100 |Other Equip. Maint. Service 1,500.00 858.90 641.10 43%
20229200 |Other Equip. Maint. Supplies 3,000.00 1,201.53 1,798.47 60%
20231400 _ [Clothing/Personal Supplies 3,500.00 2,911.03 588.97 17%
20232100 |Custodial Service 0.00 - 0.00 |#DIV/0!
20232200 |Custodial Supplies 19,500.00 786.93 11,382.25 8,117.75 42%
20250500 |Accounting Services 3,000.00 3,286.80 (286.80) -10%
20252500  |Engineering Services 15,100.00 13,320.22 1,779.78 12%
20253100 |Legal Services 10,000.00 2,403.00 7,597.00 76%
20257100 |Security Services 23,000.00 18,425.86 4,574.14 20%
20259100 |Other Professional Services 38,000.00 1,470.48 22,176.41 15,823.59 42%
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 21




Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Account Budgeted Current | Expeditures to Funds
Number |[Expenditure Account 2022/2023 | Expenditure Date Available (% Left
20289800  |Other Operating Expenses Sup. 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 100%
SUB-TOTAL 565,600.00 63,339.02 411,513.02| 154,086.98 27%
3000 OTHER CHARGES
30321000 |Interest Expense 0.00 - 0.00 0%
30322000 |Bond/Loan Redemption 0.00 - 0.00 0%
30345000 |Taxes/Licenses/Assess Trans 1,300.00 60.00 1,240.00 95%
SUB-TOTAL 1,300.00 - 60.00 1,240.00 95%
4000 FIXED ASSETS
42420200  [Struc. & Improvements 328,000.00 11,473.00 11,668.37 316,331.63 96%
43430300  |Equipment 0.00 - 0.00 | #DIV/0!
SUB-TOTAL 328,000.00( 11,473.00 11,668.37 316,331.63 0%
GRAND TOTAL 894,900.00 74,812.02 423,241.39| 471,658.61 53%
Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 22




KENNETH GROVE EXPENDITURES

FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31, 2023
CLAIM#  ACCOUNT# VENDOR DESCRIPTION | AMOUNT
[
| 1907009523 20219800 ORANGEVALE WATER COMPANY  WATER 44.56
1907001916 20223600 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT FUEL/LUBRICANTS 160.00
| B
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 23



BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - KENENTH GROVE ASSESSMENT

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
MAY 2023
Account Budgeted Current Expeditures Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2022/2023 | Expenditures to Date Available |% Left
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
20200500 Advertise/Legal Notices 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20207600 Office Supplies 100.00 - 100.00 100%
20207602 Signs 50.00 - 50.00 100%
20210300 Agricultural/Horticultural Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20210400 Agricultural/Horticultural Supplies 80.00 - 80.00 100%
20219800 Water 750.00 44.56 624.42 125.58 17%
20223600 Fuel & Lubricants 800.00 160.00 640.00 160.00 20%
20250500 Accounting Services 600.00 633.60 (33.60) -6%
20252500 Engineering Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0%
20253100 Legal Services 100.00 - 100.00 100%
20256200 Transcribing Services 0.00 - 0.00 0%
20259100 Other Professional Services 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20289900 Other Operating Exp - Services 452.00 - 452.00 100%
20291500 COMPASS Costs 150.00 - 150.00 100%
20296200 GS Parking Charges 0.00 - 0.00 0%
SUB-TOTAL 5,582.00 204.56 2,898.02 2,683.98 48%

4000 FIXED ASSETS
42420200 Struc. & Improvements 0.00 - 0.00 0%

SUB-TOTAL 0.00 - - 0.00 0%

GRAND TOTAL 5,582.00 204.56 2,898.02 2,683.98 48%

Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 24




KENNETH GROVE EXPENDITURES

FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MAY 31, 2023
CLAIM# | ACCOUNT # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907009523 20219800 |ORANGEVALE WATER COMPANY  WATER 44.56
- . )
1907001916 | 20223600 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT FUEL/LUBRICANTS 160.00

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

- Board of Directors Meeting

June 15,2023

Page 25



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP
FRIDAY, MAY 19, 2023
10:00 AM

MEETING LOCATION:
Orangevale Community Center
6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662

1. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m.

Roll call: Director Brunberg, Director Stickney, Administrator Ross, Finance/HR Superintendent
Von Aesch, Park Superintendent Oropeza, Recreation Supervisor Bain

2. PUBLIC DISCUSSION
Any person may address the committee; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff
and/or committee/Board of Directors for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.

3. MINUTES
None discussed.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None discussed.

5. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion of District Employee Salaries and Benefits
Administrator Ross presented the 4.9% Western States CPI for April. After a discussion on the
District’s overall healthy budget and the cost to cover a similar COLA for staff, the Director’s advised
staff to bring a 4% COLA to the full board in June for approval.

B. Capital Replacement, Capital Projects, and ADA Projects Discussion
1. Recap Priorities from April 13 BOD Meeting and Funding Amounts and Sources
Director’s and staff reviewed and discussed each project listed on the 1.6m proposed 23/24 Capital
Improvements list, including the driveway and pathway connecting the Community Center (CC) and
new property, the swimming pool repairs, new boulders/posts/cables at Arcade Cripple Creek, new
roof at CC, two HVAC units at CC, a new roof at Kidz Korner, parking lot repairs at various sites,
concrete/ADA work at the Youth Center and Community Park, a shade structure at CC (with joint
funding), a new floor at the swimming pool, and tennis court maintenance at Almond Park. Directors
recommended stretching the parking lot resurfacing over two or three years depending on the actual
costs for the pool and driveway. Additionally, if these bids come in lower than projected, to use funds
to create more pickleball courts. With a confirmation that 20% is in reserves and the importance of
each item, Director’s approved to bring the list to the full board. Administrator Ross will create a
timeline for easy reference.
2. Roofing Needs
Administrator Ross led a discussion reviewing the roof inspection and budget report provided to the
District by The Garland Company who inspected the rooves of the Community Center, Kidz Korner,
and the Youth Center in March and April. The committee agreed to prioritize the replacement of the
Community Center’s metal roof along with the Kidz Korner roof for the upcoming fiscal year. The
committee intends to recommend a new metal roof for the community center that is designed for
attaching solar panels.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 26



3. Adding Solar Energy and Rebates with the Inflation Reduction Act

Administrator Ross led a discussion reviewing the energy feasibility analysis provided to the District
by Syserco Energy Solutions. The primary focus is on solar energy, but it also includes the health of
our HVAC units, and gaps within our building envelope that causes heat and air conditioning to
escape. Three options for adding solar panels at the Community Center were provided. Two options
involve outside financing, and one option involves entering into a Power Purchase Agreement without
the need for outside financing. The Directors expressed opposition to additional outside financing.
The District is interested in green energy and anticipates adding solar panels to the roof in the future.

C. Discussion of the 2022/23 Preliminary Budget
Administrator Ross presented the Preliminary Budget for all three funds and staff and Directors
reviewed each line item for all budgets.

1. General Fund (332A)
a. Expenditures - . Directors requested increasing the budget for the recreation services line by
$3,000, reducing the legal services line by $3,000, and for staff to research potential savings in
the telephone services line.
b. Revenue — There were no suggestions for changes in the revenue projections.

2. OLLAD (374A)
a. Expenditures - Staff will review all security cameras and research for adequate coverage for
the new buildings and bring to the full board. The committee requested adding 315,000 to the
equipment line for the upgrade in security camera equipment. Staff advised the costs of
chemicals were significantly higher than in years past. Directors recommended an increase in
the FEC Police budget line be considered for inflation.
b. Revenue — There were no suggestions for changes in the revenue projections.

3. Kenneth Grove (374B)
a. Expenditures — Directors advised staff to allocate expenses to KG where appropriate.
b. Revenue — There were no suggestions for changes in the revenue projections.

D. Timeline for the 2023/24 FY Budget Process
The Preliminary Budget will be presented at the June 2023 BOD Meeting. The Final Budget will be
presented at the August 2023 BOD Meeting for final approval.

E. Schedule Next Meeting
The next Finance Committee Meeting will be scheduled once the bids are received for the pool and
driveway projects.

6. DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS
Director Brunberg requested that staff use the “Changes” column of the Preliminary Budget to reflect
the difference between the budgeted amount of the current fiscal year and the projected amount for the
upcoming fiscal year. She also asked for the pages to be numbered to help streamline discussion and
reduce confusion.

7. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA
Administrator Ross will create a projects timeline and staff is to bring a comprehensive review of our
current security cameras and a proposal for coverage for the new buildings.

8. ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 11:37 a.m.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 27



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP
FRIDAY, MAY 26, 2023
10:00 AM

MEETING LOCATION:
To begin near entrance of SHADY OAKS DISC GOLF COURSE
7208 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Committee Vice Chair Meraz at 10:00am. In attendance were
Director Manie Meraz, Administrator Barry Ross, Superintendent Horacio Oropeza, Casey Burgess
(President of the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Club), and Jennifer Knisley (Co-Owner of Final 9 Pro Shop).
Committee Chair Michael Stickney arrived at 10:03am.

2, PUBLIC DISCUSSION
Any person may address the committee; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff
and/or committee/Board of Directors for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.
No additional members of the public participated in the meeting.

3. MINUTES
Review of minutes/recap of the Planning Committee Meeting from March 2, 2023
Minutes were provided for reference.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
There was no unfinished business to address.

5. NEW BUSINESS
a. Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course
- Identify improvement projects for the course
Casey and Jennifer expressed their appreciation for the planting of several trees near hole #18, and
for the colorful planters at the entrance. We then identified projects that we would like to see within
the course with the goal of finding common interests that we could prioritize and address collectively.

The general project areas included: moving and replacing tee pads; adding basket locations;
removing, repairing, and/or replacing benches, restroom building; practice putting area; soil erosion
& compaction; signage. The group then walked the course from holes #1 - #8.

Hole #1:

Restrooms: Staff explained that the District’s master plan is to replace the existing restroom building
with a new and modern building. Based on a recent survey, the community isn’t yet ready to help fund
the master plan. The group discussed an option to remodel the restrooms with the Club providing
volunteer skilled labor and the District providing supplies and guidance.

Tee Pad: Director Stickney expressed concern about the tee pad being in a low area where there is
water runoff and evident soil erosion. He suggested moving the tee pad back several yards. This
would get it out of that runoff area and move it closer to the picnic shelter. To move this tee pad
would require some irrigation adjustments, the relocation of benches, the relocation of the large
Shady Oaks sign, and would require the removal of one large tree limb.

Benches: There are two metal benches with back supports. The seat of the longer bench is damaged
and a safety concern and would need to be repaired or replaced. The shorter bench is still in good
condition. The committee considered options of the District and Club splitting the costs for benches
with the District taking the lead on the installation with the potential of volunteer labor from the Club.
Action Items: 1. Jennifer and Casey are to speak with Bruce Knisely (co-owner of Final 9) about this
option for his insight; 2. Horacio and staff are to move the Shady Oaks sign to a location closer to the
picnic shelter as agreed upon by the District and Final 9; 3. Barry is to have a tree expert advise on
the removal of the large limb and if the tree would survive this; 4. Horacio is to seek cost estimates for

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 28



new park benches (not necessary to have a back support); 5. Casey is to make a list of the tee pads
most in need of attention, prioritizing them in the order they should be addressed, 6. Casey is to make
a list of damaged/unsafe benches that need to be removed or replaced.

Hole #2:

Soil: This hole is mostly barren of trees and vegetation and has obvious soil erosion and compaction.
There was expressed desire to bring in additional soil.

Basket Location: There was a suggestion to add a basket sleeve between and to the left (north) of the
two current basket locations.

Hole #3:
Tee Pad: Casey pointed out how the tee pad concrete is worn down. When dirt, sand, or water is on

the pad it can become slippery. This is one example of a tee pad that would need to be replaced or
somehow repaired.

Hole #4:

Tee Pad: Casey noted the desired location where the Club would like to place the tee pad. It would
add about 75 feet to the distance of the hole. Making this move would require the clearing of a small
amount of vegetation, the removal of a dead tree, the removal of the existing tee pad, and the
removal/replacement of benches. The Committee agreed that this would be a good change for the
course and are ready to recommend the approval of this change.

Basket Location: Casey noted the desired location for a third sleeve for a new basket location. He
considered the safety of park walkers. The location would result in the eventual loss of a moderate
amount of vegetation.

Hole #5:

Benches: There is one metal bench with a damaged seat that poses safety concerns. This bench needs
to be repaired or replaced.

Action Item: Horacio is to look at this bench and determine the cost-effectiveness of replacing the seat
bench section with the back support section, and then cutting off the back support braces to make this
a seat bench only (without a back support). Is this more cost-effective than the purchase of a new
metal seat bench?

Hole #6:

Benches: There was discussion to remove or replace one bench and change the location of another.
Soil: The Club feels this hole has experienced the greatest amount of soil erosion. It appears that a
significant cause of erosion stems from drainage from the Pasteur Middle School at a higher elevation
that is being directed by a large drainage pipe down into the fairway of this hole. The erosion is
posing some safety concerns as well as potential damage to tree root systems. Recommended
solutions included: a. extend the drainage piping into the creek; b. create some water retention basins
to reduce runoff; c. split the drainage pipe so the runoff is diverted and less severe; d. a combination
of the above.

Action Item: Barry is to contact the San Juan Unified School District to bring this concern to their
attention and initiate a solution. Barry is to begin by contacting their Facilities Director and follow
up with a more formal letter if needed. Jennifer offered to help in this process.

Hole #7:

Soil: The amount of soil erosion on this hole is minimal in comparison to hole #6. This hole also has a
drainage pipe coming from the school, but Casey noted that he doesn’t see any significant amounts of
water coming from this pipe.

Hole #8:

Tee Pad Area: There is a wooden retaining wall box area with a bench near the tee pad. The
retaining wall is no longer holding up and needs to be repaired or replaced.

Action Items: Casey stated that the Club is willing to make repairs. The Committee agrees to this
with the submittal of an improvement application. Barry will send an application to Casey.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 29



Other:

Practice Putting Area: The southern 30 feet of the retaining wall has failed and is causing a safety
concern. Casey agrees it is in need of repair, but feels it is a lower priority than most other items
discussed.

Action Item: Staffis to remove the damaged section of wood retaining wall and is to bring in soil to
create a gradual grading of the slope and not replace the retaining wall.

Pathway: Many children are dropped off in the parking lot and they walk to the middle school through
a gap in the fence that separates Shady Oaks and the school. There was discussion about either
creating a DG pathway to encourage this route or closing the gap in the fence to discourage it.

Casey, Jennifer, and Horacio each needed to leave the meeting at 11:45am. We agreed to meet again
to walk the remaining holes of the course.

Discuss cost estimates for the improvement projects: Tabled for another time
Discuss priorities for improvement projects: Tabled for another time

- Discuss tentative timelines for improvement projects: Tabled for another time
- Discuss other potential plans for the park: Tabled for another time

Tennis/Pickleball Courts: Director Stickney, Director Meraz, and Administrator Ross then went to
the tennis/pickleball courts.

Bench: The bench outside the court entrance gate is old and damaged. Staff if to get pricing for a new
bench.

Signage: There are a few laminated signs that are zip-tied to the fence near the entrance gate. Staff is
to get pricing for a kiosk or a bulletin board to be installed so we can improve the messaging and
appearance of this area.

b. Rollingwood Open Space
- View storm damage and plan for removal of fallen trees

This item was tabled for a future meeting

6. DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS

7. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA
Walk the remaining 10 holes of the disc golf course

8. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 12:15pm. The next meeting is scheduled for Friday, June 9 at 10:00am at
Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course.

NOTICES:

1. As presiding officer, the Chair has the authority to preserve order at all meetings, to remove or cause the
removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, impertinent, or
slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive while addressing
said meeting, and to enforce the rules of the meeting.

2. People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance
with physical accessibility. Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you

require accommodations, please contact the Orangevale Recreation & Park District main office at (916) 988-4373.

Directors can be reached at: director@ovparks.com

Sharon Brunberg Manie Meraz Lisa Montes Arica Presinal Mike Stickney

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 30



STAFF REPORT

z ‘& DATE: 6-15-23
TO: Board of Directors
OVrarks

%}C ﬁﬁr‘%})’ﬁ% FROM: Barry Ross, District Administrator
PARK DISTRICT SUBJECT: MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT — MAY 2023

ADMINISTRATION

¢ On the week of May 1, the old chain link fence at the south end of Streng Park was replaced with a
new redwood fence.

* On May 6, about 160 volunteers worked to complete several projects at Orangevale Community
Center Park, Youth Center Park, Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course, and Pecan Park as part of the annual Big
Day of Service that was organized by the Orangevale-Fair Oaks Community Foundation.

e On the week of May 8, damaged concrete sections were replaced with new concrete at Orangevale
Community Park. Most of the work was conducted at the Pavilion stage area near the Horse Arena.
There were also sections of the concrete pathway that were replaced. This work helped make the park
more safe and enjoyable for our visitors.

e On May 20, there was a dedication of a new informational sign at Orangevale Community Park. The
sign was created and donated by the Orangevale History Project and it commemorates the California
Central Railroad which in the 1860’s ran through what is now Community Park. OVparks staff installed
the sign.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 31



RECREATION Monthly Report: May 2023

May Enroliment Attendance Gross Revenue
Active Adults
Bridge 46 S 92.00
Mens 3 on 3 Hoops 16 S 623.00
Mid-Day Movie
Zumba Gold 3 S 90.00
Active Adults Sub Total 65 $ 805.00
Aquatics
Full Moon & Sunset Paddles 3 S 267.00
Kayaking for Boomers 1 S 89.00
Learn to Kayak Lake & Calm Waters 1 S 89.00
TigerSharks 224 S 34,930.00
Aquatics Sub Total 229 $ 35,375.00
Classes
Internet Drivers Education 5 S 145.00
Intro to Mushroom Growing 3 S 147.00
Kids Night Out 7 S 189.00
RT! Pediatric CPR & First Aid 1 S 80.00
Stir cooking Classes - Sunset Chef 9 S 270.00
Ukulele Fretters 25 S 25.00
Classes Sub Total 50 3 856.00
Events
Craft Fair 36 S 2,088.00
Events Sub Total 36 $ 2,088.00
Sports & Fitness
Aikido - Teen/Adult 6 S 938.00
Aikido - Youth 9 S 745.00
Byers - Kinder Gym 1 $ 103.00
Chen Tai-Chi Chun 11 S 550.00
Karate - Preschool 4 S 840.00
Karate - Shotokan Grange Hall 2 S 470.00
Karate - Shotokan Youth Center 8 S 1,880.00
Pickleball 101 8 S 560.00
Pickleball - Youth 3 S 60.00
Pilates Reformer 8 S 680.00
Turns n Tumble Baby Ballet 12 S 396.00
Turns n Tumble Pre Ballet 17 S 562.00
Zumbini 6 S 240.00
Sports & Fitness Sub Total 95 S 8,024.00
Trips
The Best of Ireland 1 S 3,808.10
Calaveras Big Trees Sate Park 14 S 1,750.00
Trips Sub Total 15 $ 5,558.10
GRAND TOTAL 490 $ 52,706.10

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

June 15,2023

Page 32



May Gross Revenue Recap - May OTC (over-the-counter) revenue for combined recreation and
facility rentals ended at $207,155 which is $72,155 above the projected amount. May recreation
revenue came in at $198,660 which is $78,660 above the projected amount. The May facility
revenue came in at $8,495 which is $6,505 below the projected amount. Please note the revenue
referenced here includes prepayments for future programs while the revenue figures listed in the
chart above represent revenue attributed to programs occurring in May.

2022-2023 ORPD Recreation & Facility Revenue
Net vs projected - Monthly View

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000 N
$50,000 |
$- —. .
JULY AUG SEPT oCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE
mmmm Net Revenue $30,683 | $59,198 | $45,910 | $41,138 | $33,617 | $8,572 | $73,072 | $55,211 | $48,247 | $61,085 | $207,155| $6,789
==0==Projected Revenue | $55,000 | $46,000 | $55,500 | $36,000 | $16,000 | $6,500 | $60,000 | $50,000 | $55,000 | $75,000 |$135,000| $85,000
2022-2023 ORPD Recreation & Facility Revenue
Net vs Projected - Monthly Cumulative View
$800,000
$700,000 —
$600,000 T e ol alpl
$500000 [ - e —
$400,000 === — ’ - —
$300,000 e — —
$200,000 = — = | : S
$100,000 [ B N O O OB O —
$- JULY | AUG SEPT ocCT NOV | DEC | JAN FEB MAR | APRIL | MAY | JUNE
mm Net I_?el/em& _ $3p,683 $89,881 ‘_$135,791 $176,930 $210,546|$219,1191‘$292,191 $347,401 $395,648 $456,733 $663,8887$670,67Z:
—o—iProjgcte_d Revenue | $55,000 ‘$101,0(_)0‘_$1 56,500 $192,5_00 $208.500!$215,000?$275,000 $325£00 $380,000|$455,000 $590.00Qi$675,000_}

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page

33



Fulton-El Camino Park District Police Department
Monthly activity report for: Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Reporting Period: May 1-31, 2023

Almond Park

Warning:  5/15/23 16:42 CVC5200(a) only one license plate displayed on vehicle
CVC4000(a) No current registration
CV(C5204(a) Current registration tabs not properly displayed

Norma Hamlin Park
No issues to report.

Off Property

No issues to report.

OV _Community Center
Notice To Appear  5/6/23 15:45 PC594(a) Vandalism Mis Individual caught in park spray painting
graffiti on wall
Call For Service: 5/14/23 13:36  Report of alarm in boys pool restroom. Checked pool area. All was
locked and secured. No one in or around pool area. Cleared as false.

OV Community Park
Notice To Appear 5/25/23 16:40 PC13700 Domestic violence definition =~ Mis

PC273(a) Child endangerment Mis
Notice To Appear 5/25/23 16:54 CVC12500(a) Unlicensed driver Mis
CVC16028(a) No insurance Inf

CVC4000(a)  No current registration  Inf
Call For Service: 5/6/23  13:45 Reported to conduct a welfare check on individual in the park.
Individual left the area before arrival
Parking Citations:  5/28/23 15:10 CVC4000(a)  no current registration
5/28/23 15:18 CVC4000(a)  no current registration

OV Community Park (Disc Golf)
Parking Citations: 5/6/23  15:10 CVC4000(a)  no current registration
Parking Citations: 5/25/23 16:23  CVC4000(a)  no current registration

Palisades Park
No issues to report.

Pecan Park

Notice To Appear  5/21/23 17:59 CVC24603(c) Inf Driver cited for burned out side tail light

Call For Service: 5/21/23  18:54 911 hang up call from phone mapping to the park. No duress heard.
Upon call back by dispatch, determined everything was ok.

Warning:  5/29/23 17:41 SC09.36.061(a)(4) Dog off leash. Warning issued due to no prior contact

Sundance Nature Area
No issues to report.

Youth Center Park
No issues to report

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 34



OvParks Photos of Interest: May 2023

Spring Craft Fair

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 35



Arcade Cripple Creek Trail

Woodmore Qaks Corridor near 7-Eleven

Woodmore Oaks Corridor approaching Streng Park

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 36



Arcade Cripple Creek Trail

Entering Sundance Park from Fair Oaks Blvd

Crosswalk area entering Tempo Park from Fair Oaks Blvd. (Sunrise District)

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 37



OVears
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 23-06-704

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, STATE
OF CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE GENERAL FUND PRELIMINARY
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and
reserves were reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2022/2023; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year
2023/2024, be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(1) Salaries & Employee Benefits $ 2184933
(2) Services & Supplies 603,200
(3)  Other charges 74,900
(4) Fixed Assets 1,182,000
(a) Land 0
(b) Structures & Improvements 1,152,000
(c) Equipment 30,000
(5) Expenditure transfers 4,000
(6) Contingencies
(7)  Provision for reserve increases 200,000
TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 4,249,033

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure
program will be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance
Available and Property Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is
hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail
the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing for the

2023/2024 fiscal year:

ON AMOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this

15th day of June 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 38



O;I iV“ —— ATTEST:
PARKS Clerk of the Board

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT ATTACHMENTS:

Financing Requirements Summary Schedule
Expenditure Detail Schedule

Revenue Detail Schedule

Long-Term Loan Schedule

Fixed Asset Schedule

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 39



o

L

: Preliminary Budget Message - 2023 /24

e

—

J f PARKS With the three previous fiscal years (2019/20, 2020/21, and 2021/22)
ORANGEVALE being negatively impacted by COVID-19 restrictions, we experienced no
RECREATION & obvious setbacks related to the virus in fiscal year 2022-23. We had no
PARK DISTRICT facility closures or mandates for face coverings and social distancing that
effected our program participation levels. We will continue the new fiscal
year with the mindset that we will operate at the healthy levels we

experienced this current fiscal year.

-
\ N

p

For the past few fiscal years, the District has been interested in starting
capital projects that would add new recreation facilities and infrastructure
to our parks as desired by our community through the master plan process.
The District realizes that additional funding is needed in order to add most
of these new facilities. The District had a survey conducted in September
2022 which showed that there was not enough support from our property
owners to pass a new assessment. High inflation in 2022 was a primary
factor. Until a new survey is done, the District is now turning its focus
primarily on capital improvement projects that address deferred
maintenance. A list of identified projects that are being included for funding
in this Preliminary Budget are shown at the end of this report as Exhibit A.

Revenue: Though the final numbers are not in yet, our revenue from
Recreation Programs & Services will far exceed our initial budget
projections. We will forecast similar results for 2023/24. We have reached
our projected 5.3% property tax revenue increase in this 2022/23 fiscal
year. We have not yet received the County’s projection for growth in
property tax revenue for 2023/24 so we will include a conservative 2%
increase in this preliminary budget. Another important source of funding
will come from the Prop 68 Per Capita Grant ($199K) for the driveway and
trails project at Community Center Park. We also anticipate COVID relief
funding of about $200,000 to help offset our lost revenue due to the
pandemicin 2020 & 2021. This funding comes from the federal government
and is being distributed to counties. The County of Sacramento will be
allocating some of this funding to special districts in the coming weeks and
months.

Expenditures: Though inflation has been gradually declining for several
consecutive months, it has had a negative impact on what we have paid for
services and supplies. Liability insurance has increased nearly 60% in three
years, primarily due to California wildfires. Gas, water, and chlorine (pool)
cost increases have also challenged our budget. We intended to complete
two large projects (swimming pool renovation and driveway/trails
construction) in fiscal year 2022/23. Due to delays, we are moving these
6826 Hazel Avenue projects into the new 2023/24 fiscal year. Following are some key factors

Orangevale, CA 95662 related to staffing that will shape our upcoming budget.

916-988-4373

OVparks.com E

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 40



4 JL( 1. We recommend maintaining 13 full-time staff positions for the 2023 /24
b{ ,-—‘\ . .

N\ X Preliminary Budget.

) VPARKS 2. The Board of Directors approved a 5% salary adjustment for seven of the
ORANGEVALE nine full time job categories as justified by a salary survey. This increase
RECREATION & will be applied to the salaries of 11 of the 13 full time staff effective the
PARK DISTRICT first day of the pay period that includes july 1, 2023.

3. The Finance Committee is recommending a 4% COLA for all full-time staff
effective the first day of the pay period that includes July 1, 2023. This is
justified by the Consumer Price Index increase of 4.9% for this area over
the past 12-month period.

4, After nine consecutive years with a minimum wage increase, there is no
increase expected for 2024.

5. We have not yet received projections from the County regarding increases
in health insurance rates. As is our common practice, we have included a
7.5% increase as a placeholder in the Preliminary Budget.

6. As salaries increase, other benefits that are tied to salaries will also show
an increase. Those benefits include retirement, Social Security, worker’s
compensation, and unemployment insurance.

The District is budgeting for 13 important capital improvements in the new
fiscal year with a potential cost of up to $1.78M with funds coming from the
General Fund, OLLAD, Park Development Fees, and In-Lieu Fees. See
Exhibit A for the list of projects and other details.

The Orangevale Recreation & Park District looks forward to another year of
serving the community in a variety of ways to meet their recreational,
leisure, health, and wellness needs through safe, welcoming, and enjoyable
programs and facilities.

Barry Ross
District Administrator

6826 Haze! Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 41



Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Exhibit A

Prioritized Capital Improvement Projects for FY 23/24

Capital Improvement Project Cost Est. Budget Acct Est. Timeline

1 Driveway at Community Center Park $92K $50K = Gen Fund Aug-Nov 23
$42K = Park Dev

) Pathways/Trails at Community Center Park $130K - $257K | All = Park Dev. July-Dec ‘23

3 Swimming Pool Repairs $760,000 $412K = Gen Fund | Sept *23—Feb ‘24
$228K = OLLAD
$120K = In Lieu

4 Arcade Cripple Creek Trail: Boulders and $18,000 $18K = OLLAD July-Dec 23

post & cable
5 New Roof at Community Center $330,000 $330K = Gen Fund | Fall ‘23
(metal roof only)

6 | Replace 2 HVAC Units at Community Center $47,000 ea. $94K = OLLAD Fall/Winter *23/°24

7 New Roof at Kidz Korner $40,000 $40K = OLLAD Fall <23

8 Parking Lot Repair $95,000 $95K = OLLAD Spring ‘24

(all parks except Comm. Center)

9 | Youth Center Park Concrete and ADA Work $50,000 $50K = OLLAD Fall/Winter ‘23/°24

10 | Ongoing Concrete Repairs at Community Park $20,000 $20K = OLLAD Spring ‘24

11 Shade structure at Outdoor Stage of $5,000 $5K = Park Dev. Feb-Apr 24

Community Center
12 New Flooring at Pool Building 15,000 $15K = OLLAD Feb-March ‘24
13 Almond Tennis Court Maintenance 9,000 $9K = OLLAD Sept-Nov ‘23
TOTALS | $1.66M - $1.78M | Gen Fund = $§792K
OLLAD = $569K
Park Dev = $304K
In-Lieu = $120K
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 42




000'TIC L20°L9Y 09880V 09880t E dduejeg pung 334 *A3Q YJed - IZEE
000°€9 EYTELT 826°€9T 826°€9T B aduejeg pund uonReNPaq jded nar Ul - )88
2€6'S 7€6'S 7€6'S T€6'S : BAIDSIY |eJIUID) - BAOID) YIDUUB) - G1LE
19122 19122 vZL'9T £9T°0C 8LT'VT adue|eg pung pu3 Jed\
285°S (866'T) V8S’E 785 (9vST) 896°C bIS‘S *dwy jo31dn) B salddng g S331n13S - SasUIAX3
285G 785°S 785°S 9€S°S pIS‘S sanuanay||
191°22 £91°02 [Z7X]: S65°LT 8LZPT 3dupjog puny 1034 bupuubag)
ANN4 TVYINID - dA0ID YIBUud) - GPLE
€TL'91T ETLTIE ETL'TIE ETL'TIE 9AIBSTY |EIUID - AVTIO - VPLE
68192 9St°2SS 6T6°06T 815°C1S PETTYT djuejeg punj pu3j J1es)
009'660'T 9TEEES 006'v68 9TL'ESY 8EZ'ST8 sasuadx3 jpjoL
000'68Y% (000'062) 0008€ 000'8Z€ (8cv'222) S 8ev'LTT uawanosdw) jended
00€T (ovz'T) 09 00T (00T) - 00€'T 1s2193u/uondwapay puog - sadieyd 12410
00£'609 (vve‘oL) 952'S6¥ 009595 (r8L'CET) 9TL €Sy 005'98S saljddng 13 s201A436 - sasuadx3
EEE'ELS PSTELS T0E‘ELS E£r1'99S 8£8TLS $3NUIAJY
9SH°TSS 8ISZIS 8ISTIS 160°00v PESVBE 3supjog pund 103, bujuubagl
ANNd TVYINIO - aVT10 - YPLE
YT0‘sye vT0°sys ¥10'stS ¥10°SYS $TO0‘stS BAI3S3Y |eIdUID) - VZEE
(eLL'vT2) 109's0Z (€86'92) (0o6s‘2€2) 208'S6Y 886892 (vT8‘9ze) dwy jeade) '3 spueig/nary uj ‘gd $sa7 [e3oL
(850°26T) 986°LTY 14 SNOJA3IG > 10 < AdUD|DG pund pu3 JDAL
ZZ8VET €989 S61'781°T €98°EES 002906 £SS6LET ESE'ELY 3oupjog pund pu3 1034
£€0°610Y 0S.°€28 0zZr'svLT 0£8°89S°E 666°09€ ISS‘8YET 0S5'60L°T sasuadx3 |pjoy
uswisnipy Jes, Jold
006092'T £7/'859 LLE°88T 001°LP8 Teseet 6/8°€ST 00v'9L2 juawanosdw) [eude)
00T‘€09 SETL8 ST¥'19S 055819 ¥76°0CT 97T'80F 0ST'67S sa11ddng 18 sa21A49S
£€6'V3TC 68°LL 8TE'S66'T 072°€L0C YSSLTT vy '98L‘T 000v06'T sHjauag 1 soue|es
09€°T00°E (8r1'sT) 290°8vS°T 08TseLC 10Z°sys £E5'99LC 9EETZT'T anuanay |v3oi
06065 768v€E 762'T6S 00t95S 189°6¢CT 189°£8S 000'8S¥ ISINI/S934 "29Y/331AI3S 40y sdBIeY)
0008EY (869'512) 20€°8T 000'vET L18°18C L18'T0E 000'ST SYILJOH/SIuRIO/N3IN U]
00SC1C (sve) SST'80C 005'80C T€E‘S9 7€881¢C 00S'€ST 1ay10/1sas9u)/s|eauay
068°65L'T ££09 ETE0EL'T 08T'vTL'T T1€79 LYTLS9'T 9E8V65'T uonexe]
S6H°28T°T £SS6LET £SS6LET £95°T96 £95°'T96 3aoupjog pund 1034 butuuibag
AaNNd TYY3INIO - VZEE
vz/ee ve/ee 1ano0Aae) 353 €2/ (3744 Janohue) e/t e/
0V 153 198png-a.d [x4[44 198png Vv 153 193png z/te lendy 193png

994 JuawdolaAa( Yied ‘uonedipaq jded nall Ul ‘ancds Yiauuay ‘qy 110 ‘pund [elsuan

PZ/€Z A4 01 22/1T A4 - 13n0huie) |ENJDY SA 198pNng
J2U3SIJ j4ed pue uollessday 0_m>omcmh0

Page 43

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



SLIN3NNDO0A 139dNg AYVNINITEHd

SLIN3INND0A LNdNI 139aN4d ¥202-€20Z Ad ALNNOD OLNIWVHOVS
139ang AYVNINITF¥d ¥202-€20¢ aViA 1VOSId

10141SI1d MdVd ® NOILVIHOTd FTVAIONVHO

Page 44

June 15, 2023

- Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



LINIT ¥3ANNAE3A0
LINIT OL 193rans SNOLLYIHd0dddV -

LIWIT SNOILVIAdOdddY  €£0'6v2'Y

9€8'6.Y $ €921 $ - $

60S'2¢L') 3

STviol -

(821°69) $ €29¥2'L $

S6v'Z8lLl $

J1aVIIVAY
JONVIvd NN

43H1O -

- IONVHGWNNONI 000002

¥L0'S¥S = -

¥10°6¥S

IVHANEO -

JONVYIvVE S3SVIEO03IA  SASVIHONI
aNNd a3tsnravy

(cco'evy) $

(€29°2vZ'1)

SG

(09€71.00°¢)

¢¢/10/L 4O SY

SAANIIST 000't

JONVIve 3TNA3IHOS ALIND3 ANNA -

0002814

ONIONVNIH FT1aVIIVAY TVLOL
SA3300dd NVOTWHI1-ONOT A3 LVINILST
3SY3IHO3A 19V HVAVY JONVIvVE ANNd

000°0€

RN EEEEE[CR - AToNE
INIWNIHINOIH AdvV.L3OaNg TvLIOL

S3AYISTY JIHLO
SIAYISTY VHINIO

SISVYIYONI FAUISTY 04 SNOISIAOHd

S3ILIGOWWNOD Y3HLO0 - 08 103rg0
S3IONIONILNOD HOd SNOLLYIYdOdddY - 62 LO3Ard0
1N0 YO NI SY34SNVHL ANNSVHLNI - 09 103rd0

NI SH34SNVHL SANNS - 65 1O3rdo
1NO SY34SNYHL SANNA - 06 LO3ra0

S13SSY d3X!d - 0¥ 133ra0 V101
IN3INGIND3 - €¥ LO3rdo0

d3SVIHO3A 38 OL SIAGISII TVIOL 006'v.

ESSERREIEINERERRETITe]

- 3SVY3IHO3A JONVIINNONI

- 3SV3HO3IA SIAGISTA TVHANIO

Q3SV3I™O3A 39 O1 SIAYISIY  002'€09

INN3ATY GILVAILST  €€6'V8L°C
SINIWIHINOIY 139aN49 IHL ONIONVNIJ 40 SNYIW

000°2S 1}

009°}

0og'es

SINIWIAOHANI ANY STANLONHLS - ¢¥ 103rdo
$ NOLLISINDOV ANV - L ¥ 123rgo
S13SSY a3Xid - 0¥ 103rdo

S3SN ONIONVNIA ¥3H10 - 0¢ 103rd0 V101

va/SINIW3oanr

SINIJWSSISSY

$ TVdIONIAd
ANV LS3d3.NI

SININAVLIY

JSV3T ANV NVOT

S3SN ONIONVYNI4 ¥3HL0 - 0¢ 103rdo
S3IMddNS ANV SADIALTS - 02 LO3Ard0

S1I143N39 33A01dNT ANV S3IFVIVS - 01 103rdo

FINLIANIAX3 40 LO3ra0 Ad SNOILYIHHOdddY

| abeq

VvZeE ANNL TVHINID ¥O4 3TNAIHIS SINIWIHINDIY ONIONVNIL
1O0I41SIa MHVd ? NOLLVI™HOIY FTVAIONVEO

139aNg AUVNINITI¥Nd ¥202-€202 ¥VIA TVOSId

Page 45

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 005 00} 00S v0l 0 SLN3AT NOILINDODO3H| €08€020C
0 0 005 0 005 89 0 SW3LI NOILINDOO3Y| 20820202
0 0 00€C 00€T 00€T 62l GoE'l NOILINDOO3Y IIA0TdNI| 0080202
0 0 00S 0 005 0 0 ININ3SHNGNIZY NOILINL|  002€£0202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3NddNS ONINIVYL ® NOILYONA3|  009€0202
0 (00g) 000€ 005} 005€ 0 0 S30ING3S ONINIVEL B NOILYONA3|  00S€0202
0 (00g] 005 000°¢ 000 0€5C 0 3SNIdX3 IDONIUIINOO/SSANISNG| 00620202
0 006 006C 00 000 628'l €9Ty SNOILdIYDSENS/STVOIQ03d/SM008a| 00120202
0 0 00€T 00€2 00€2 0 ¥90C S3DILON VO VONISILY3AAY| 00500202
0 __ SLL'LLL £€6'¥81°2 82€'566'} 0Z2'€L0T ovb'osl’l ¥9Z‘865°L 01 309{q0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S334I13d - ¥V HLTV3H| 00082104
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S33IL3Y - 34VO IVAN3A| 0002101
0 (ostot) 0008 009°L 05181 116 66.'8 1SOD ¥3AOTJWI - SNIINS|[ 00052101
0 00S°€} 000°€9 ¥88°GS 005'6% 6160V z6v'cy 1S00 43A01dWI - SNI dNOD SHIMJOM|  000¥Z10L
0 (02277 000'€Se 009°6e2 02,092 gSt'ere S15°0ve 1S00 ¥IAOTJAI - SNI dNOHD|  000€2L0L
0 00294 005°20} 00086 00€°16 901728 6v.'GL 1S00 Y3AOTdWI - IHASYO| 00022101
0 06822 066'€Z€ 000°€62 001962 21’852 vzl'eee 1S00 Y3A01dWI - INIWIHILTYE| 00012101
0 0 00021 0006 0002} 005°L 0096 AGN3dILS SY3aW3N advod| 00vZLi0L
0 (002°61) 000°S0¥ 69G°28¢ 00z ¥y 00Z°LLE 108712 d13H Vd1X3 - SIOVM % SARVIVS| 001ZL10L
0 €61°L6 ePrZIOL GL9C16 052126 11v'Tz8 v8L'ELL S3IA0THNT ¥VINOIY - STOVM B SIIFVIVS| 000LLLOL

LOI4LSIA M¥Vd B NOLLYINOIN ITVAIONVHO VZee
uom_u:m mwmtmtu uwmv:m wijaid sjen)oy ‘3s3j uwm—u...m s|en)oy s|enjoy :O_aa__._umwn_ waj|
leutd $2-€Z Ad ¥Z-€2 Ad €2-2Z Ad €2-2Z Ad ZT1Z Ad 12-02 Ad JuswHwWWoD

aNNd TYEENID - ¥2E€ aNOd

10111S1d MAVd 8 NOILVI™¥OIY FTVAIONVEO
139aNg AUVNINITT™d ¥2-€20C Ad - 3TNA3IHOS TIV.L3A FANLIANIdXS

Page 46

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 00Ss 0 00S 0 0 S3INddNS FONVNILNIVIN ONIGWNNTd| 00891¢0C
0 0 00 0 ooy 0 0 JOIAEIS JONVNILNIVN ONIGANTd| 00491202
0 0 008§ 0 00S 0 0 S3ANddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DINYES ONILNIVd| 00191202
0 0 00s 0 00s 0 0 AlddNS FONVNILNIVIN WALSAS TYOINVHOAW| 00¢S1L20C
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 FOIAYIS IONVNILNIVIN WILSAS TvOINVHOINW| 00151202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3ANddNS IDNVYNILNIVN INIJWIAOHLWI ANV|  00¢t120C
0 0 00S 0 00S (sz1'e) 0 JDINETS FIONVYNILNIVIN LINTFWIAOHANI ANVT|  00Lvrleoe
0 0 00S 0 009 0 0 S3INddNS IONVNILNIVIN TVOIdLO3 13|  002€1202
0 0 00¥ 0 00 0 0 J2IAY3S ONYNILNIVIA TvVOI4LO313| 00L€L20e
0 0 008 0 00S 0 0 SIVOINTHO| 002clc0c
0 0 00§ 0 00S 0 0 S3INddNS IONVYNILNIVIN ONIAliNg| 00¢1h1ieoe
0 (009) 00s 0 000°'L 0 0 SAINddNS TvANLINDILAOHVENLINOI-EOY|  00¥0L20C
0 0 008 0 005 0 0 30IAY3S TYENLTINDILHOHIVENLINDIEOV|  00€01202
0 0 0009z ove've 00092 66€°L 12°12 S3IDINYIS ONILNIYd| 0058020C
0 (00v) 009°t 00S 000C 266 GG SAAVLS| 20180202
0 009 001°L 055°8 0059 8ve'y jie14 S3DIAYIS TVLSOd| 00180202
0 (0s) 00€ 0 0S¢ 0 0 SAIM| €09.0202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 SNOIS| 20920202
0 (00¢g) 0029 00v's 0059 G209 6107 S3NddNS 301440| 00920202
0 009 009'7L 065'PL 00071 €e0'cl 8e9'L1L S3aNA dIHSY3aW3aIN| 00190202
0 (006°Z) 0 0 005 29 0 JONVYHNSNI TVINIH| 00550202
0 00681 00S‘0¥1 1256°121L 009°LZl 80086 orz's8 ADNVHNSNI ALITIGVIT| 0015020C
0 0 008z 0092 0082 z6e' Log’L NOILVLHOdSNYHL IFAOTdNT|  006€020C
jabpng sabueysn jebpng wiald sjenjoy ‘33 jebpng s|enjoy sjen)oy uonduasag way|
leutd $2-¢€Z Ad vZ-€Z Ad €2-2C Ad €222 Ad ZZ-lZ Ad 12-02 Ad jusuiuwiod

aNad TVIENED - YZEe aNOd

LII{1SIa MHVd ® NOLLYI™NOFY FTVAIONVHO
139ang AYVNINITF™d ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNA3IHOS TIv.Li3d FANLIANIdX3

Page 47

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3NddNS FONVNILNIVIN LNINWAIND3 ¥3HLO| 0026220C
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 JDIAY3IS FONVNILNIVN LNJFWdINDI H3IHLO| 0016220C
0 0 00Ss 0 00S 0 0 S3ITddNS FONVYNILNIVIN LNJNJIND3 dOHS|  0028¢20¢
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 3OIAYIS JONVNILNIVIA LNJFWHINDI dOHS| 00182202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 LININGIND3 SASVYITVSLINIY| 008.¢202
0 (00s) 000°'¢ 008°L 00G°¢ 2:]%4 046°L S3INddNS FIONVNILNIVIA LNIWJIND3A 301440| 00292202
0 (00g) 00s 0 000°L 0 0 IDIAYAS FONVYNILNIVIN LNIWDINOT 301440| 00192202
0 0 00s 0 00S 0 0 SINVOIHaN1 ® 13and| 009€220¢
0 0 00s 0 00S 0 0 S7001 3718vAN3dX3| 0092¢c0C
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3INddNS LNIVIN dIND3 NOILONYLSNOD| 00212202
0 0 005 0 00S 0 0 S31TddNS IONVNIALNIVIN IAILONOLNY| 00902202
0 0 00S 0 00s 0 0 3OINYIS FJONVNILNIVIA SAILONOLNY| 00502202
0 0 00S 0 00s 0 0 IONVNILNIVN WILSAS INOHAAT3L| 00661¢0C
0 0 000} 0 000°L 0 0 d31VM| 00861202
0 00S¢C 005Gl 0G€'Sl 000°cl 9G1°CL 609°C) AJIAY3IS INOHd31AL| 00261202
0 0 00§ 0 00S 0 0 JOINY3S TvSOdSIA IDOVMIS| 00561202
0 0 008 0 005 0 0 IDINYTS TVSOSIA/NOILOITIOO ISN43d|  00€61202
0 0 005 0 00S 0 0 0 713N4 / 9d1/ SVYD IvdNLYN| 00261202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 ALIDIFLO3TE| 00161202
0 (00s't) 00S°L 0 000t 0 0 SIADHUVHO LINY3d| 00581202
0 0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3AINddNS NOILONYLSNOD| 0028120¢
0 0 00§ 0 009 0 0 SADINYIS NOILONYLSNOD| 00181202
19bpng sabueys  jabpng wnpld  sjen)oy ‘is3 jebpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduasaq wayy
leuld 2-€Z Ad ¥C-€C Ad €2-¢Z Ad €2-22 Ad CCIC Ad 12-02 Ad usujuwod
aNNd TVIENID - ¥ZEE aNad

LOIM1SIa MHVd ? NOILVIHOTFY FTTVAIONVEO
139aNg9 AUVNINITIYd ¥2-€20C Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1IvLi3A FANLIANIdXE

Page 48

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 002 001 00z S61 9g SIDUVHO ONIMYVd SO 00296202
0 3 00 VEA3 000 €96 €96°C JDIAY3AS INTWJOTINIA WILSAS| 00116202
0 0 0002 00071 000 0 00V SIDIAYTS - ISNIJXT ONILVHIALO H¥IHLIO| 00668202
0 0 000 000°L 000 .z €el S3IMddNS - ISNIdXT ONILVHIHO ¥IHLO| 00868202
0 0 000°2€ 000ZE 000°2€ $80°GE 6971 S3ANJINS TYNOILYIYO3IY| 00258202
0 00025 000700z 005661 0008t | €vE'SLl 16%°001 SIDINY3S TYNOILYIHOIY| 00158202
0 (000°%€) 0 L0162 000'v€ 0 188'1 (SNOILDTTA) SADIAYIS NOILYHLSIOTIY| 00618202
0 0 0007 005 0002 002 1991 S3ITddNS Od|  €0218202
0 (000t 0009 000G 0002 9v8°C 6€0°C IAVMLIOS Od| 20218202
0 (000°t) 0009 002 0002 819 956 IYVYMANVYH Od| 10218202
0 0 00Sv1 00EL 00571 0€L'S €0r'0l SINVLINSNOD ¥3LNdWOD| 10165202
0 (00072S) 000°€C 0058l 00062 LI¥'S €LYL SIDIAYTS TYNOISSIIOHd HIAHLO| 00165202
0 (009) 000 00L2 005 108 0 SIDIAYIS ALIEND3S| 00125202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DIAYIS ONIGIHOSNVHL| 00295202
0 (000°g) 000G} 005} 000'02 0 (spzol) SIDIAYIAS TVOIAT| 00LESZ0C
0 (000°02) 0009 90291 00092 0 0 S30IAY3S ONIYTANIONT| 00525202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDIAGTS VHNLOILIHOYY| 00615202
0 0 00561 00561 00561 6788l 1¥E'8L SIDIAYIS NOILOITIOO/ININSSASSY| 00105202
0 0 000Z 086'G 00072 9.€'S 9.€S S3DINYAS ONILNNOODV| 00505202
0 001 00€ 056 002 0 €2 3IDIAY3S TWOIQaN|  00evreoT
0 (00s) 008 0 000} (2] 0 S3IddNS TvIA0L1SND| 002z2€202
0 0 000°L 0 0001 0 0 S3IDIAYTS VIAOLSND|  0012€202
0 0 0007 0007 0002 126 886 S3IAdNS TYNOSHIJ/ONIHLOTO|  00¥1€202
jabpng sabueysn 19bpng wijald s|en)oy i3s3 196png sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosaqg wajj
[euld $Z-€Z Ad ¥Z-€Z Ad €222 Ad €2-22 Ad 21T A 12-0Z Ad wsuwwod

aNOd TVEINID - ¥ZEC aNOJd

1I141SI1d MHVd '? NOLLVIHOIN FTVAIONVHO
139dNg AYVNININI™EC ¥2-€202 Ad - FTNAIHOS T1IVL3A FANLIANILX3

Page 49

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 008‘L 000 000y 00z zSL'L 9l¥'L 65 109lqo

0 008°} 0007 0007 002C 6L 91’1 JOINGTS ONILNIIDYIONIA]  0012550S
0 (000°02) 000°0¢ 65601 000°0S 0 0 £¥ 3100lq0

0 (o0o0'02) 000°0€ 6560} 00008 0 0 H3HLO - INGWINDA/SATOIHIA]  00S0EPEY
0 000°ZEY 000251°L 000°001 00002 0 100°8¥ Zy 9lqo

0 000Z€P 0002GH'1 00000} 000°022 0 1008Y s3yuNLoNd1S| o00cozrey

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SONIQTING| 00L0Zv2h
0 0 0 0 0 0SE‘L (1) L¥ 19900

0 0 0 0 0 0se’l (19) anNvi| 00L0LPLY
0 0 006'vL 8Lb'EL 006'¥L LIE1SL 0£°151 o€ 199fqo

0 0 009°t %A 009°1 GeL'l 6£G°) SINIWSSISSV/OITXVL] 000SH£0E
0 0 00Z 7Y 00Z'sy 002 %P 8/E°91L1 868011 NOILdNIa3d NVvO/ANOd| 0002Z£0€
0 0 00lL62 900'6¢ 00162 $98°ce 2€6'8¢ 3SNAdX3 LSIHUILINI|  00012€0¢€
0 (ose‘sy) 00Z°€09 SLP'19S 0S5°‘8v9 9ZZ'80v Zys'18e 0z 39lq0

jabpng sebueyn j1ebpng wijald  s|enjoy '1s3 18bpng s[enjoy sjenjoy uonduossaq way|

leuty $2-£Z Ad ¥2-£Z Ad £2-22 Ad £2-2Z Ad 221z Ad 12-0Z Ad JusuIWIWOY

aNnd TYVYENID - VZee aNnd

10111S1a MHVd '® NOILVI™OFY FTVAIONVIO
139ang AYVNINITI™C ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS TIv.iad FANLIANIdXE

Page 50

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 €91'089 ceo'eve'y ozL'svL'e 018895 155°8ve‘e 209°080° Vv 2€¢ TVLOL aANNd
0 €91°089 €€0°6PZ'Y 0ZL'SPLT 0.8°895°C Lss'sve’s 209°080°C 2€€6€€6 ¥3ALNID ANNA
0 000°002 000°00Z 0 0 0 0 6.100[90
0 __ 000002 000002 0 0 0 0 SAAYASTIY TVHANTD
0 __ 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILVIEdOYddY AONIONILNOD| 00106264
1ebpng sabueyn jobpng wijaid sienyoy ‘I3s3 jobpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosaq we)
leulq $2-€Z Ad ve-€2 Ad €2-22 Ad €2-22 Ad 22T Ad 12-02 Ad usungiwwod

aNnd TYEENIZD - ¥ZE€ aNad

1OR11SIA MAVd ? NOLLVI™HOAY FTVAIONVIO
139aNg AYVNINITTYC ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNA3IHOS TIV13A FANLIANIdIX3

Page 51

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



aNNd TvH3N3D - VZee aNNnd
101d1SId MdvVd ® NOILVIHO3H FTVAIONVHO

139aNg AYVNINITIYd ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1IVL3A INNIAZA

[000%) | [fo000E ™) [f000%szD |[fo00szD |[ez0%ED) [ezzve I H3HLO VINH ONIGTING] — 0062¥6%6 |
_ (00s) __Somé: __nmmo.v: __Soo.v: __Awwv.mv __Amnm.wg _ﬁ ANOONI hmm_mm_._.z__ 0001¥6v6 _
$ __as.mm_ $ __smw,mmh: $ __s‘s.oﬁ.: $ __acu._ﬁ.: a\__:v—.soi $ __Ea.omm.: $ _ 16 393[90

A LA L LA LR LI il L
_ 0S __Smi __8@9 __soe __aoov __ANE __ S3ILTVYNId XYL n_omn__ 0001616 _
_ 502 __soe __aoe __GS.: L_Gona __m: ) __ O3SNN ¥d XV1 n_oE_ 000€1616 _
_ 0 __av: __GE :aE __SE __Amo: __ 1dN3a3d XV.L n_omn__ 00021616 _
_ (oo€) __Sow.v: __?Nm,o: __Som.qc __Smw.v: __Awmh.m: ; AYVLINN XVL >._.m_mn_oxn__ 00901616 _
_ (6s6) __Som.mv __?N\._Q \__Sgh 3] __Svm_ 1) __85, 3] __ "ONIT3A 31ddNS XV1 >._.m_m_n_omn__ 00501616 _
_ S0L°} __886: __SE.@ __Goo,ms __amw_o: __st_uz __ "ONI13a a3¥N03S XV.L >Em_n_omn__ 00v01616 \_
_ (0097s) Eoooiv __:No,§ |__a$.we _—Gﬁ.mmv __amm.tu __ dnsS ¥NO Xv.1 n_Omn__ 00£01616 _
_ 00z'4 __som.ma __va.xu :a@.va _mmmm.ua __ (829°29) __ O3SNN ¥NO XVL n_oma_ 00201616 _
_ (Giece) __88.8@. V) :88;8_: __Gwo.ooo.: __Gw@,mrm. b __63.55 __ 23S ¥NO XV1 n_Omn__ 00101616 _

L1DI1SIA ¥uVd 2 NOLLVI¥OIY FTVAIONVHO  Vzee

196png feutd sobueypy  1ebpng ‘wiield  S[EMOY 1S3 19Bpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduoseq wa)|
v2-€Z Ad £2-22 Ad £2-22 Ad 221z Ad 12-02 Ad JusWWIWOD

Page 52

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



O e e Jewes e e ] seso
_ 0 __ 0 __88,: H__a$ __88.: __ame __ 0 L_ S30INY3S >tx:om_m_ 00,69696
E [o00e) [f000s8S) [f000s88) |[foo0'oss) [(ze€Tosg) [(eezeor) | SOHO FOIAYSS NOILVIHOH]  009¥9696
_ 0 __ 0 __88.: __sﬁ_: __88.: __amo.e __S@m.e _ﬁ $334 ¥3HLO w:om_z<._._m_ow_s__ €1££9696
[ e e [eww Jewve Jw e ] seeso
E [E IE [0 IE [(600052) [0 |[LSIa NI 504 433 QNGO VS| 096656
S LA LA LA N R LR s
_ 0 __ (000%02) __88;&3 __aom.a __aoo.omu __as.oi _ﬁo __ Y34SNVAEL N3 z__ 00625656
_ 0 __ 0 __sooe: __soo.m: __88«: __amw.ms __G%_N: __ 431134 XV1 dOYd mm2>>om__>_o_.__ 00225656
_o __88.3 __aom.ﬁs __Ammv.momv __aom.wos __am»éu __a‘nm;u: _ v6 399(d0
o A LA R | L i W
o A LA LA LI R R bl Wi
0 _ 0 __Soo,rmv __Soo;mv __Soo.& __Gom.mwv __Ammw.rwv __ (6 T¥NI4) NOISSIONOD .omE_ 008t¥616
0 005F (000°Z¥) (005°ZY) (005°8¥) (G0EZY) T6e€03) (S¥IMOL T130) SISVITANNOYS|  006EVEYE
196png [euld sabueyy  jebpng -wyeid  s[emoy 1s3 196png sjenjoy sjenjoy uondiosaq way|
v2-€Z Ad ¥2-€Z Ad £2-2Z Ad €2-2Z Ad ze-1z Ad 12-0Z Ad JusWWWOD

aNN4 TvH3N39 - vZee annd
L1O141SIAd MHVd @ NOILVIHOIY FTVAIONVHO

139dN9g AYVNINIT3¥d ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1Iv1i3A INN3IAIA

Page 53

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



10141S1d HHVd @ NOILYVIHO3Y FTVAIONVHO

aNN4 TVY3INEO - vZee aNNnd

139aNg AYVNINITIYd ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS T1IVL3A INNIAIA

_ 0 __sﬂ.e.s __aon.so.e __aoo.uvmi __aﬂ.mﬁ.s __c.nmdﬁ.s __:262.5 _ vZee v.LOL aNN4

_ 0 __3265 __amm.so.e :ag.wemﬁ __ss.nﬁ.s __:mmdmhu __:ﬁ.me,u _ 2ee6€€6 ¥31NIO ANNA

K o | LR Lk | — —

_ 0 : 0 __ 0 : 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ 1S1a dS - Sa3300¥d IS 13SSV| 00298686

A R i L s o B

o A LA LA LA LI LR S|
0 _oe __So_x: ::IQ.% __88_: __Smi __SE,: __ S3NN3A3A mm__._Bm:om_zS.m_ow__\,__ 0006.6.6 ;
0 _ 0€9 __Snﬁ __:3. __SoQ __Ammmv __Sm: __ Sa33004d m_oz<m_3wz__ 000v.6.6

0 (00¢) [fo0e2) [tserd) (00072 (15672 (GF7Y) | SNOILNEIILNOO/SNOILVNOA| 0008626
Twmas e R Tmar wma maea e ronduesea "

jJusWWIWO)

Page 54

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



LONG-TERM LOAN SCHEDULE

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
1 DESCRIPTION FUND PAYMENTS BALANCE DUE
Pecan Ave. Property Purchase (INTEREST) 332A 0.00 0.00
fecan Ave. ProPerty Purchase (PRINCIPLE) 332A 0.00 0.00
Pecan Avenue Property (Final payment made in 2021) 332A 0.00 0.00
TOTAL of LONG TERM DEBT: 0.00 0.00

Shackelton Woods formerly referred to as Grant Property.

2 DESCRIPTION FUND PAYMENTS BALANCE DUE
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave Property Purchase (INTEREST) 332A 27,722.50 230,798.80
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave I_Droperty Purchase (PRINCIPLE) 332A 40,000.00 823,000.00
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave Property 332A 67,722.50 1,053,798.80
TOTAL of LONG TERM DEBT: 67,722.50 1,053,798.80

Orangevale Community Center Park formerly Regency Baptist Church
Interest rate is 3.25%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 55



Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Reserve Fund Allocation - Fiscal 2023/24 Preliminary

Orangevale Recreation and Park District -
General Fund 332A
Reserve Fund Category

Unrestricted
Assigned

Capital Replacement - Swimming Pool @ 7/1/14 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/15 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/16 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/17 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/18 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/19 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/20 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/21 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/22 200,000

Swimming Pool @ 7/1/23 0
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/14 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/15 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/16 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/17 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/18 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/19 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/20 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/21 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/22 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/23 150,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/14 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/15 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/16 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/17 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/18 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/19 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/20 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/21 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/22 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/23 50,000
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/14 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/15 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/16 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/17 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/18 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/19 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/20 145,014

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

June 15, 2023

Page 56



Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/21 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/22 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/23 145,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/14 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/15 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/16 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/17 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/18 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/19 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/20 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/21 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/22 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/23 345,014
2013/14 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/14 559,600
2014/15 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/15 370,086
2015/16 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/16 441,900
2016/17 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/17 429,800
2017/18 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/18 344,300
2018/19 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/19 399,500
2019/20 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/20 643,750
2020/21 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/21 628,750
2021/22 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/22 488,214
2023/24 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/23 Est. 845,690
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2014 132,287
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2015 144,691
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2016 181,736
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2017 309,467
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2018 301,657
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2019 639,362
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2020 517,325
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2021 306,681
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2022 473,353
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2023 Est. 533,863
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD)
Reserve Fund Category

Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/14 595,063
Increase/Decrease 2014/15 -67,743
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/15 527,320
Increase/Decrease 2015/16 13,034
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/16 540,354
Increase/Decrease 2016/17 138,134
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/17 678,488
Increase/Decrease 2017/18 43,091
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/18 721,579
Increase/Decrease 2018/19 104,416
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/19 825,995

Page 2 of 5
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

June 15, 2023

Page 57



Increase/Decrease 2019/20 -55,658
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/20 770,337
Increase/Decrease 20/21 11,009
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/21 781,346
Increase/Decrease 21/22 112,427
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/22 893,773
Increase/Decrease 22/23 Est 39,938
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/23 Est 933,711

Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District 374B
Reserve Fund Category - used for the Kenneth Grove Landscape

Unrestricted
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/14 34,319
Increase/Decrease 2014/15 -387
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/15 33,932
Increase/Decrease 2015/16 -26,042
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/16 7,890
Increase/Decrease 2016/17 4,204
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/17 12,094
Increase/Decrease 2017/18 4,110
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/18 16,204
Increase/Decrease 2018/19 6,892
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/19 19,521
Increase/Decrease 2019/20 3,575
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/20 23,096
Increase/Decrease 2020/21 431
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/21 23,527
Increase/Decrease 2021/22 2,568
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/22 26,095
Increase/Decrease 2022/23 Est. 1,998
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/23 Est. 28,093

Developer In-Lieu Fees - 88C
Reserve Fund Category as per Govt. Code Section 66477

Restricted @ 7/1/12 89,314
Developer Deposits and Interest 2012/13 618
Reduction 2012/13 as per Resolutions 0

Restricted @ 7/1/13 89,932
Developer Deposits and Interest 2013/14 114,718
Reduction 2013/14 as per Resolutions -8,806

Restricted @ 7/1/14 195,844
Developer Deposits and Interest 2014/15 6,125
Reduction 2014/15 as per Resolutions 0

Restricted @ 7/1/15 201,969
Developer Deposits and Interest 2015/16 63,696
Reduction 2015/16 as per Resolutions 0

Page 3 of 5

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 58



Restricted @ 7/1/16

265,665

Developer Deposits and Interest 2016/17 7,269
Reduction 2016/17 as per Resolutions -175,000
Restricted @ 7/1/17 97,934
Developer Deposits and Interest 2017/18 1,509
Reduction 2017/18 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/18 99,443
Developer Deposits and Interest 2018/19 28,657
Reduction 2018/19 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/19 128,101
Developer Deposits and Interest 2019/20 15,606
Reduction 2019/20 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/20 143,707
Developer Deposits and Interest 2020/21 20,221
Reduction 2020/21 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/21 163,928
Developer Deposits and Interest 2021/22 9,315
Reduction 2021/22 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/22 173,243

Park Development Fees - 332 |

Reserve Fund Category as per Govt. Code Section 66000 et seq.

Restricted @ 7/1/12 62,518
Developer Deposits and Interest 2012/13 202,306
Reduction 2012/13 -15,736

Restricted @ 7/1/13 249,089
Developer Deposits and Interest 2013/14 271,536
Reduction 2013/14 0

Restricted @ 7/1/14 520,624
Developer Deposits and Interest 2014/15 112,495
Reduction 2014/15 0

Restricted @ 7/1/15 633,120
Developer Deposits and Interest 2015/16 89,230
Reduction 2015/16 0

Restricted @ 7/1/16 722,350
Developer Deposits and Interest 2016/17 105,978
Reduction 2016/17 -75,000

Restricted @ 7/1/17 753,328
Developer Deposits and Interest 2017/18 88,002
Reduction 2017/18 -360,000

Restricted @ 7/1/18 481,330
Developer Deposits and Interest 2018/19 66,914
Reduction 2018/19 -103,574

Restricted @ 7/1/19 444,670
Developer Deposits and Interest 2019/20 73,509
Reduction 2019/20 -136,806

Restricted @ 7/1/20 381,373

Page 4 of 5
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

June 15,2023

Page 59



Developer Deposits and Interest 2020/21 66,691

Reduction 2020/21 0

Restricted @ 7/1/21 448,064

Developer Deposits and Interest 2021/22 58,975

Reduction 2021/22 -40,012

Restricted @ 7/1/22 467,027
Page 5 of 5

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 60



\7
OVrarks

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 23-06-705

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ADOPTING THE ORANGEVALE
LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves were
reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2022/2023; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2023/2024,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

1) Salaries & Employee Benefits $
(2) Services & Supplies 609,300
3) Other charges 1,300
4) Fixed Assets 489,000
(a) Land
(b) Structures & Improvements 474,000

(c) Equipment 15,000
(5) Expenditure transfers

(6) Contingencies

(7) Provision for reserve increases

TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 1,099,600

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program will
be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and Property
Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues, and methods of financing for the 2023/2024 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 15th

day of June 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 61



LN 93AaNN/g93A0
1IN OL 103rans SNOILVIYdOdddvY -
LINTTSNOILYIYdOdddY 009'46L°L  $
206°2he $ 1927129 $ - $ 691798 $ W10l -
(11889) $ 2927129 $ 9G+°2G6 $ JIaVIIVAY
JONVIvVE aNNd
= = ¥3aHIO -
- - IONVIGANONT 00066
cLL e - YT CENEC S
IONVIVE $3svaydad S3SVYIEONI €2/10/2 183 S3IAY3STH :
aNN4d g3Lsnrav IONVIVE  JTINA3IHOS ALINODIANNd -
ooo'6sr  $
000°GlL
(000'v61°1) $ ONIONVNIA 3GV 1IVAV VLOL 000'vL¥
- SA33004d NVOTWIIL-ONO T Q3LVNILST :
(292°129) 3SV3YO3A I 19V IVAV JONVIVE NN
- d3SVIY030 39 O1 S3AE3STY IVIOL  00€°L $
- 3SVIYO3A SIAYTISTY °4aHLO 00€’}
- 3SVIED3a IDONVHGNNONT 0
- ENELRECEERCELEERVCENER)
a3SvII0aa 39 0L SIAYISTY  00£'609  §
(cee'eLq) $ INNIATE A3 LVNILST - $

SINIWIHINOIY 139aN9g IHL ONIONVYNIL 40 SNYIN

‘FONFE3441d VIOL
INIWIHINDIY AWV13DaNg V101
S3AY3SIH ¥IHLO
CENCEEENRIRENED]

S3ASVIHONI 3AHISTE J0d SNOISIAOHd

S3ILIAOWWOD ¥3HLO - 08 LOArd0
SIIODNIONILNOD HOd SNOILYIHdOHddY - 6 LO3rd0
1NO ¥O NI SHIASNVHL ANNJVHLNI - 09 103rdo

NI SH434SNVYL SANN4 - 66 103ra0
1N0 SH3A4SNVYL SANN4 - 06 103rgo0

S13SSV a3Xid - 0¥ 103rd0 V10l

LN3ININD3 - €7 LO3Ardo

SININIAOAI ANV SFHNLONYLS - ¥ 103rdo

NOILISINOJV ANV - L 103rdo
SI3SSV @3xi4 - 0¥ 1O3ra0

S3SN ONIONVNI4 ¥3HLO - 0€ 103rd0 V.10l
SAOVWVA/SLININIOANT
SINIWSSISSVY/SASNIOIVSIAXVL

IVdIONIRId ANV LS3Y3LNI
SINIWAVCIL 3SVYIT ANV NVO

S3SN ONIONVNI4 ¥3HLO - 0 103rdo

S31TddNS ANV S3OIAY3S - 0¢ L03rdo

S1I43aN3g 33A0TdNT ANV S3RJVIVS - 0L 1O03rgo

FHNLIANIdX3 40 103ra0 Ad SNOILVIYdOHddY

(dv1710) vPZ€ ANN 04 3TNAIHOS SINIWIHINODIY ONIONVNIL

JoISIq Yied g uonealoay ejeAsbueliQ

139aNg AJVNINIT3Yd €202-220C JV3A 1vOSId

Page 62

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



000

000°¢L

00089

000°0L

0 8Y8'LL 6sv'cL ALIDIELO3T3| 00161202
0 0 000y 00S'€ 000y oL’ 6€9'c SADUVHO LINY3d 00581202
0 0 000°9L 00041 000°9L Evy'Tl 91681 S3AMNddNS NOILVOIYNI| 00281202
0 0 0002 0 0002 0 0 S3DINGIS NOILYOIEHI oolgleoe
0 0 00s°C 00S 00 €8.L°1 ZLL'L S3INddNS JONVNILNIVN ONIGNNTd| 00891202
0 0 000°L 99 000°L SSi 0s¢ FOIAY3S FONVNILNIVIN ONISBNNTd 0049120C
0 0 00S°L 00S 00g°L €9t'L 2o¥'L S31NddNS ONILNIVd|  0029i20c
0 0 000°¢ 00S'L 000°c 90c'c 89.L°C AlddNS IONVNILNIVN WALSAS TVOINVHOIW| 00251202
0 (00s) 000°6 000°¢ 0056 oL¥'s 808°1 JOIANGIS FONVYNILNIVIN WILSAS IVIINVHOINW 00151202
0 (005) 000'vE 000°62 00S'v€ 089°'1€ LL¥'el S3NddNS FONVNILNIVIN LNIWIAOHLNI ANV 00cricoc
0 (o0s] 000°2¥ 000°L¥ 00S°L¥ ¥66°2¢ 90s°ct FOIAHIS FONVNILNIVIN LNSWIAOHAWI ANV 00171202
0 (00s) 005°} 009 000z 80L g8e S3NddNS IONVNILNIVIN TVOIdLO313|  002€120C
0 (00s) 000t ool 00S'y 0 €9¢ JOIAYAS FONVNILNIVIN TvOId L0313 ooLeLeoe
0 000'9Z 00095 0oo'ee 000°0€ eLv'Le val'ey STVOINIHO|  002ZLzoz
0 00s 0006 0000} 00S'8 GYL'S ovL's S3TddNS FONVNILNIVIN ONIQTINgG| 00211202
0 0 0002t 00o0cl 00021 le'e 99¥'T S3NddNS IVANLINDILIOHVENLINDOEOY| 0001202
0 0 0051 00s'9 00521 €EV'TL €60°'G JOIAYIS TVvHNLINDILIOHIVHNLINOKOY| 0001202
0 {ooz) 008 061 000} S€ 0€0°L SAIM|  €09.020¢
0 0 000} LLL'L 000°t 0 [4303] SNOIS| 20910202
0 0 00S 00¥ 00S €l 66v S3IMddNS 301440 00920202
0 (ooe) 00s 0 008 0 051 S3NA dIHSY=ZaWaN| 00190202
0 0 000°¢ 09g’L 000°c vOLL 964 JOIAY3S ONINIVEL/NOILYONAT|  005£020C
av1io vrie
jebpng feuly sabueyd 1ebpng wijpid  s|enjoy ‘1s3 1ebpng s|enjoy sjenjoy uondiiasaq way
V2-€T Ad Pe-€Z Ad €2-2T Ad €2-CT Ad CC T Ad 12-0Z Ad jusupiwwod

(av110) LO1MLSIA LNFWSSIASSY ONILHOIT ® 3dVISANVYT ITVAIONVYHO - VP.LE ANNA
10111S1A MAVd '® NOILVIYIIY FTVAIONVAIO

139dNg AAVYNIWITF™d ¥2-€20Z Ad - 3TNAIHIS T11V1IA FUNLIANIJX3

Page 63

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 000°0L 000°G 000°0L 692°L 0 SIADIAYIAS vOI1 00lL€520C
0 0 001l 001L°GL 001°GL 120'GL ove‘LlL S3DIAHIS ONIHFANIONT 0092920¢C
0 00y oor'e 182'¢ 000°¢ GG6'C §G6'C S3DIAYIS ONILNNODOV 00505202
0 {00s't) 000'8L 000°GL 005'61 228'v1L SP8'vL S3INddNs vIdo1sno 00¢zecoe
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DIAY3S TVIAOLSND 00lzezoe
0 0 00S‘c ooL'e 005 oSy 068°C S317ddNS TIWVNOSH3Id/ONIHLOTO oovLecoe
0 (00s) 005 008l 000°¢ 186°L €G68°L S317ddNS IONVYNILNIVIN INFWJIND3T ¥3HLO 00z6220C
0 0 0051 000°L 00S°L ze0'e 9z0‘L JOIAY3S FONVNILNIVIN LNJALINDO3 H3HIO 0016220¢C
0 0 00S°2 005°2 005°2 190'G 888'Y S3IMddNS IONVNILNIVIN INIFWJINDT dOHS 0028¢c0e
0 0 005} 004 005} 6.S 99 S3DIAYIS IONVYNILNIVIN LNIFWDINDT dOHS 0018220
0 (00s) 00S't 00S°L 000'¥ 188 062 1NINGINO3 SISYIT/SLINIY 008.¢c0c
0 000 000'¥2 oov've 000°te 2oL'8lL L¥S'elL SLNVOIdan ® 13an4d 009¢€¢c0e
0 (00g) 0052 00s 000°¢ 9Ll 7o'l S7001 3719vaN3dx3 009¢ceoc
0 0 00S 08 008 [44 0 S311ddNS LNIVIN dIND3 NOILONYLSNOD 00z2i2gcoc
0 000t 0009 000°S 000'S 826’ LEV'Y S3IMddNS FONVNILNIVN SAILOWOLNY 00902c0C
0 (000°t) 000t 00S°€ 000°G Shi'e 681°L JDIAY3S IONVNILNIVIN JAILOWOLNY 0050Zc0C
0 (0o0s) 00S°) zee'L 000'C zee’) zee’l JONVNILNIVIN WILSAS INOHJI3L 00661202
0 0 00099 000'%9 00099 €88'ZS 18¥°29 H3LVM 00861202
0 (00s) 000'L 0 00S°L 0 0 3OIAY3S INOHJ3 1AL 0046120¢
0 {002) 00071 002'vL 002'vL oro'yL v6lL'L JDIAY3S TVSOdSIA 3OVM3S 00S6120¢
0 (00g) 000°€C 000°'L2 00S°€e GGY'8L S¥0'le JOIAYIS TVSOLSIA/NOILD3TI0D ISN43d 00€6120C
0 00091 000°0F 000's€ 00072 zer'ee €LL'ET 70 13Nd / 941/ SVO IVHNLYN 00261202
aviiovrie
126png [euiy sabuey) yobpng wyjeid sjenjoy ‘i3s3 jobpng sjenidy s|enjoy uonduosaqg way|
¥2-€T Ad ve-eC Ad €2-2C Ad €2-2T Ad 2e-lT Ad 12-0Z Ad juswiiwwod

(@v110) 1O141S1a LNIWSSISSY ONILHOIT B 3dVISANY1 ITVAIONVYHO - Vi€ ANNS
1ORM1SIA MAVd ? NOLLYI™NOTYH FTVAIONVYHO

139dNg AUVNININIAd $2-€20¢ Ad - 3TNAIHIOS T11vL3d J¥NLIANIdX3

Page 64

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ 0 _ _ 000G}t _ _ 000°SL _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ €¥5'69 _ _ INTGWdINO3[ 00E0EVEY

_ 0 _ _ 000°9¥L _ _ 000v.LY _ 000°8E _ _ 000°82¢ _ _ 0 _ _ L1586 _ FAZEE o)

0 000971 000'VZ¥ 000°8€ 000°82€ 0 116'86 S3ANLONYLS| 00z0Zver
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SONIQTING|  00L0Zvey
0 _ _ 0 _ _ 00¢L 09 _ _ 00¢°L _ _ 0 _ _ 289 0¢€ 109[q0

0 0 00€'} 09 00€L 0 289 SIN3NSSASSV/OIVXVL]  000SvE0E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NOILdW3Ad3d NvO/ANOgG|  0002Z£0€
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ASNIAX3 1STFUFLINI|  00012€0E
0 _ _ 00Lsy _ _ 00£°609 952°G6¥ _ _ 009°59S _ _ 9LL'eSy _ _ 6025V 0z 1039f90

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 STADUVHI ONDIEVA S| 00296202
0 {oog) 00SC 0 000°€ G6ET €95 S3ddNS - ISNIJXT ONILVEIJO §3HLO| 00868202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 "3LNdWOD - STDINYIS TYNOISSIJ0Yd ¥3HLO| 10165202
0 0 000°8€ 000°22 000°8€ €62°0Z 65502 SADIAY3S IYNOISSTIOWd ¥3HLO| 00165202
0 000 00092 00Zve 000°€e €.0°12 GeL'oz SADINGIS ALINND3AS| 00125202

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3OINY3S ONIGIYOSNYEL] 00295202

av1io vyie
jebpng jeulq sabueyn jobpng wijaid s|enjoy "3s3 196png sjenjoy sjenjoy uondussaqg wiay|
¥2-€2 Ad ¥2-€2 Ad £2-22 Ad £€2-22 Ad TT1Z Ad 12-02 Ad jusuniwwo)

(Qv110) LO141SIA LNJWSSISSY ONILHOIT B 3dVISANVY1 ITVAIONVYHO - Vv.€ ANNL
1J0141S10 MAVd '® NOILVIYHIIY FTVATONVHO

139dN4g AAMVNINITF¥d $2-€20C€ Ad - 3TNAIHIS 1vVi3A JHNLIANIdX3

Page 65

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ 0 _ _ 00.°662 _ _ 009'¥61°L _ 91E'ces _ _ 006768 _ _ 9LL'eSY 1_ Tvm.mmw _ V 1€ TV1OL ANN4
_ 0 _ _ 00,662 _ _ 009'v61°L _ 9L£ces _ _ 006'¥68 _ _ gLL'eSy _ _ ¥¥6°529 _ #2£62£6 ¥3LN3ID ANNA
_ 0 _ _ 000°S6 _ _ 000°56 _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 J 62 303[90

0 000°G6 000°G6 0 0 0 0 SIAYISTY TvHANTD

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILYIYdOHddY AODNIONILNOD| 00106262
_ 0 _ _ 000°G1 _ _ 000°S1 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ £75°69 £v100lq0

aviiovyle
196png |euly sabueyn 38bpng wijaid sjen)oy ")s3 jebpng s|enjoy sjenjoy uonduosag way|
¥2-¢2 Ad ¥2Z-€Z Ad £2-ZZ Ad £2-2Z Ad ZTIT AL 12-02 Ad JusuRIWIWoY

(@v110) LO1¥1SIa LNIWSSISSY ONILHOIT ® 3dVISANVYT ITYAIONVHO - VL€ ANNL

1ORILSIA M¥Vd ® NOILVIHOIY FTVAIONVHO

1390dNg AAVNINITI™C $2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHIOS TIVLIA FUNLIANIdXS

Page 66

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



|0 | |(ze) | |(eee’es) | |rsz'eLs) | [(roe‘eLs) | {(ev1a0s) ||(11¥298) _ V ¥.€ TVLOL ONNA

[0 | [(ee) | [(eee’ess) | [(vsz'es) | [(roe'e2s) | [(ev1'o0g) |[(Livz99) | ¥2€£6.€6 ¥ILNIO ANNL

[0 | [(ze) | |(ecv’8os) | |trse8os) | |(rov'gos) | {{os9*198) ||(205°9s) _ 96 109[q0

[0 |[0 | [0 JIE IE [0 [0 | | O OASNOILY3NO3|  009v9696
_ | [f2€) | [€evses) | [(se"898) | [rov'ees) | [fo597798) |[Fz057Z98) | INJWSSISSV VIO3dS[  00€09696
[0 [| 0 | |(o06%) | |(006°y) | |(0086"%) ||(287'Y) || wo6'Y) _ 6320190

[0 |[0 1[0 [0 [[0 [0 [0 | | ¥3HLO WINIH ONIGTING] 00627676
_ |[0 | [006'¥) | [fo06'%) | [f006'%) | [(z8¥'%) |[(706'%) | | JWOONI ISFHIINI]  0001¥6V6

aviio vLlE
39Bpng jeury sebueyn 196png ‘wyesd  S|enjoy s3 19Bpng sjenjoy s|enjoy uopduosag wey|
y2-£2 Ad vZ-€2 Ad £2-2Z Ad £2-2Z Ad zz-1Z Ad 12-0Z A4 uswLILOD

(av110) L1151 LNIWSSIASSY ONILHOIT B 3dVOSANVT ITVAIONVHO - VP.LE ANNA
1ORILSIA MAVd '? NOILVIYHIIY FTVAIONYHO

1390ang AUVNININTAC ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHIS T1IVLIA INNIATAY

Page 67

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



RESOLUTION NO: 23-06-706

7 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
OVPARKS | ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT APPROVING
ORANGEVALE | THE ENGINEER'S REPORT, CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND
RECREATION & | ASSESSMENT, AND ORDERING THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT
PARK DISTRICT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 FOR THE ORANGEVALE

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

' RESOLVED, by the Governing Board (the "Board") of the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District (the "District"), County of Sacramento, State of California, that

f WHEREAS, on July 17, 1991, by its Resolution No. 816, this Board
" ordered the formation of and levied the first assessment within the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District Maintenance Assessment District 1991 (the “Assessment

District”) pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and

_ WHEREAS, the purpose of the Assessment District is for the
| installation, maintenance, and servicing of improvements to the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District, as described in the Engineer’s Report; and

WHEREAS, by its Resolution No. 23-02-699, A Resolution Directing
Preparation of the 2023-24 Annual Report for the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the "Assessment District"),
this Board designated SCI Consulting Group as Engineer of Work and ordered said
Engineer to make and file a report in writing in accordance with and pursuant to the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and

WHEREAS, the report was duly made and filed with the Clerk of the
Board and duly considered by this Board and found to be sufficient in every
particular, whereupon it was determined that the report should stand as the
Engineer's Report for all subsequent proceedings under and pursuant to the
aforesaid resolution, and that June 15, 2023 at the hour of 6:30 p.m. in the Board
Chambers of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel Avenue,
Orangevale, California, 95662, were appointed as the time and place for a hearing
by this Board on the question of the levy of the proposed assessment, notice of
which hearing was given as required by law; and

WHEREAS, at the appointed time and place the hearing was duly and
regularly held, and all persons interested and desiring to be heard were given an
opportunity to be heard, and all matters and things pertaining to the levy were fully
heard and considered by this Board, and all oral statements and all written protests
or communications were duly heard, considered and overruled, and this Board

6826 Hazel Avenue thereby acquired jurisdiction to order the levy and the confirmation of the diagram

Orangevale, CA 95662 and assessment prepared by and made a part of the Engineer's Report to pay the
916-988-4373 costs and expenses thereof;

OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 68



,"'-'-;-\
QVP ARKS NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FOUND, DETERMINED AND
ORANGEVALE ORDERED, that:

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT 1. The public interest, convenience and necessity require that the levy be
made.
2. The Assessment District benefited by the improvements and assessed to

pay the costs and expenses thereof, and the exterior boundaries thereof,
are as shown by a map thereof filed in the office of the Clerk of the
Board, which map is made a part hereof by reference thereto.

3. The assessment is levied without regard to property valuation.
4. The Engineer's Report as a whole and each part thereof, to wit:

(@) the Engineer's estimate of the itemized and total
costs and expenses of maintaining the
improvements and of the incidental expenses in
connection therewith;

(b) the diagram showing the assessment district,
plans and specifications for the improvements to
be maintained and the boundaries and
dimensions of the respective lots and parcels of
land within the Assessment District; and

(c) the assessment of the total amount of the cost
and expenses of the proposed maintenance of the
improvements upon the several lots and parcels
of land in the Assessment District in proportion
to the estimated special benefits to be received
by such lots and parcels, respectively, from the
maintenance, and of the expenses incidental
thereto;

are finally approved and confirmed.

5. Final adoption and approval of the Engineer's Report as a whole, and of
the plans and specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses, the
diagram and the assessment, as contained in the report as hereinabove
determined and ordered, is intended to and shall refer and apply to the
report, or any portion thereof as amended, modified, or revised or
corrected by, or pursuant to and in accordance with, any resolution or

6826 Hazel Avenue 5
order, if any, heretofore duly adopted or made by this Board.

Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 69



'\ 'U,o;:’
-

Pm————___
OVprarks
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

i
i

6. The assessment to pay the costs and expenses of the maintenance of the
improvements for fiscal year 2023-24 is hereby levied. For further
particulars pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting
Act of 1972, reference is hereby made to the Resolution Directing
Preparation of Engineer's Report.

7. Based on the oral and documentary evidence, including the Engineer's
Report, offered and received at the hearing, this Board expressly finds
and determines (a) that each of the several lots and parcels of land will be
specially benefited by the maintenance of the improvements at least in
the amount if not more than the amount, of the assessment apportioned
against the lots and parcels of land, respectively, and (b) that there is

- substantial evidence to support, and the weight of the evidence
preponderates in favor of, the aforesaid finding and determination as to
special benefits.

8. Immediately upon the adoption of this resolution, but in no event later
than the third Monday in August following such adoption, the Clerk of
the Board shall file a certified copy of the diagram and assessment and a
certified copy of this resolution with the Auditor of the County of
Sacramento. Upon such filing, the County Auditor shall enter on the
County assessment roll opposite each lot or parcel of land the amount of
assessment thereupon as shown in the assessment. The assessments shall
be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes are
collected and all laws providing for the collection and enforcement of
County taxes shall apply to the collection and enforcement of the
assessments. After collection by the County, the net amount of the
assessments, after deduction of any compensation due the County for
collection, shall be paid to the Orangevale Recreation and Park District.

9. The moneys representing assessments collected by the County shall be
deposited in the District Treasury to the credit of the improvement fund
previously established under the distinctive designation of the
Assessment District. Moneys in the improvement fund shall be
expended only for bond expenses, maintenance, servicing, construction,
or installation of the improvements.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15% day of June 2023 by the following vote:

AYES :
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CLERK OF THE BOARD

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 70



ENGINEER’S REPORT

Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District

June 2023

Engineer of Work:

‘A
SCiConsultingGroup

Public Finance Consulting Services

4745 Mangels Boulevard
Fairfield, California 94534
707.430.4300
WWW.SCI-Cg8.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 71



This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 72



Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Page i

Board of Directors
Michael Stickney, Chair
Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Arica Presinal, Secretary
Sharon Brunberg, Director
Manie Meraz, Director

District Administrator

Barry Ross

District’s Attorney
David W. McMurchie

Engineer of Work
SCl Consulting Group

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

e —

-
SCiConsultingGroup

June 15, 2023

Page 73



Page ii

This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o ———— T ——
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCliConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 74



Page iii

Table of Cpntents _

INtroduction.......cccivvveeriirenrnnnnnencssssisinsnnenens teereeeseestsssssesesssiesineitsnseeriserseesennsenanes 1
Assessment Continuation ProCedures .........cooevecnnnieinieiiiinn e e 2
Plans & Specifications........ccccecmeemennirecrierennenes teeeserenesennnssenisene cereessanerensscarerrras 4
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Estimate of Cost and Budget........cccccccrerrevnnnnnnan. Sevee ey .. 6
AssessmMENt DIStrCt DEDL .....cccivvieriiie e et e 7
Exemption From Proposition 218..........cccuvmiiiiiiiiniiii et 8
Method of Apportionment ..........ccceeeereiiieirenennen s sisaT SeTRERERa R aE RS RR S versssssennness 10
Method of APPOrtIONMENT.......ccceiviiirerie et e 10
DisCUSSION Of BENETIt .....eceveiiviiviiieenriicrtcse st ete st ssne e teesenesmnesere e seneseessnssaenesasans 10

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space

Authority 13
Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District 13
Beutz v. County of Riverside 14
Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego 14
Bonander v. Town of Tiburon 15
Compliance With CUITENt LaW ......ccccciieviininiiiniiiiiiinc e e 15
SPECial BENETILS .ouuvveiieeeeiiirr et e 16
BENEFIT FACLOTS ..oeiiiiiviiiieecrtiee et esrae e sressns e e s renr et s e e s et e e s sabae s sase s e baesonas s saabaseas 17

Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational areas for
all property owners, residents, employees and customers throughout the

Assessment District. 17
Increased economic activity. 18
Expanded employment opportunity. 19

Enhanced protection of property through reduction of the risk of fire and reduced
cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care and natural

disaster response. 19
Specific enhancement of property values due to Enhanced quality of life and
desirability of the area. 20
Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities, and zones of benefit 23
Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas 25
Improved views 25
General versus Special BeNefit........cccvevevviinieneeneeenenre it 25
Calculating General Benefit........cccvvveccenieniieiecnioiiiinee e 26
Benefit to Property Outside the Assessment District 27
Orangevale Recreation and Park District e ——
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 75



Page iv

Benefit to Property within the Assessment District 28
Benefit to the Public at Large 29
Total General Benefits 29
BeNnefit FINAING ..cocveiiieieeeieec ittt b s e 30
MEthO OF ASSESSIMENT....eicvvveicreieereisiteiirresisrreerrssresessseestseessteesssessssessssesssesessssrneses 31
Assessment APPOrtioNMENT.......c.o.cciiiiiiiiiiiii e 31
Land Use Classes 32
Non-Residential Assessment Units 37
Benefit Factor Index 37
Assessment Per Parcel 37
Benefit Assessment Matrix 38
Assessment.......c.ccceeereneennens TP ST PO TV, (TSR Ra S Sa e e e R oS e e 40
Assessment Diagram......cccoceeremviiiiniieneciiinecnnierananes JREI- cererersssnanes 42
Assessment Roll 2023-24 ..........cccociieviiinees etunsssssessnsasenssassansanaEsasTasEeTannshennsiFTans 45
ENA NOTES ...coeeemeeriieiiiriiinencnennescrsesssisiieisasessassonsseessasanes SSeTTTsTTTTsTssss R ssssassvasaaes G0

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ——
SCiIConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 76



Page 1

Introduction

On June 29, 1992, the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
("Park District") adopted Resolution Number 92-06-51 Ordering Formation of the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District ("Assessment District") to levy
and collect assessments. The Assessment District was initially formed for the following
purposes: (1) to provide funds for the construction of new capital improvements within
the District contained in the District’s Capital Improvement Master Plan consisting of a
community center, swimming pool, soccer and other athletic fields, playground
renovations consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act, restroom construction,
and miscellaneous improvements to the District’s various park sites distributed
throughout the geographical area of the District; and (2) to fund the maintenance,
repair and replacement of the capital improvement projects constructed with
assessment proceeds for the useful life of those capital improvements, which useful life
exceeds the 20-year term of repayment of the bonds; and (3) to pay the cost of servicing
such capital improvements constructed with assessment proceeds including the costs of
water, gas, and other utilities; and (4) to fund the cost of construction and maintenance
of additional capital improvement projects consisting of park and recreational facilities
on a pay as you go basis.

At the time the Assessment District was formed in 1992, the Park District had been
experiencing a revenue shortfall that was due to declining property tax revenues. In
fiscal years 1991-92 and 1992-93 the State of California enacted new legislation shifting
a significant portion of property tax revenue away from special districts such as the Park
District to Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds established in each county
(hereinafter ERAF’s) to help fund the State’s obligation to fund education according to
the requirements of Proposition 98. The Park District lost the amount of $1,012,654 in
property tax revenue in the first year of this tax shift to ERAF’s, which revenue loss
forced the Park District to postpone projects, reduce recreational programs and cut
staffing for park maintenance. This annual property tax revenue loss has continued each
year to the present time.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District i " —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 77



Page 2

Since its formation, the Assessment District has funded the construction of all of the
capital improvements specified in the District’s 1992 Capital Improvement Master Plan
through the issuance of Certificates of Participation in the amount of $4,720,000
secured by a pledge of the assessment revenues (the “Bonds”), and agreed to repay the
principal amount of those Bonds plus interest over a 20-year term from the assessment
revenues levied and collected annually within the Assessment District. Since its
formation, the Assessment District has also utilized a portion of the assessment
revenues to fund the continuing maintenance, repair and replacement of the
improvements constructed with such assessment proceeds as those maintenance
requirements arise. In fiscal year 2014-15 the assessment proceeds will be used to pay
for a portion of the continuing costs of maintenance, repair, and replacement of
portions of the District’s park and recreational capital improvements, and the servicing
of those improvements.

Assessment Continuation Procedures

This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared to establish the budget for the capital
improvements, maintenance and services expenditures that are proposed to be funded
by the proposed 2023-24 assessments, to determine the special benefits received from
the park maintenance and capital improvement projects by real property within the
Park District, and to specify the method of assessment apportionment to lots and
parcels within the Park District. This Report and the proposed assessments have been
made pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the
California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XIIIC and XIIID of the
California Constitution (Proposition 218).

In each year for which the assessments will be levied, the District Board must direct the
preparation of an Engineer's Report, budgets and proposed assessments for the
upcoming fiscal year. After the Engineer's Report is completed, the Board may
preliminarily approve the Engineer's Report and proposed assessments and establish
the date for a public hearing on the continuation of the assessments. This Report was
prepared pursuant to the direction of the Board adopted on February 16, 2023.

If the Board approves this Engineer's Report and the proposed continuation of the
assessments by resolution, a notice of assessment levies must be published in a local
paper at least 10 days prior to the date of the public hearing. The resolution
preliminarily approving the Engineer's Report and establishing the date for a public
hearing is used for this notice.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ——————
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ECiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 78



Page 3

Following the minimum 10-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing
will be held for the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed
continuation of the assessments for fiscal year 2023-24. This hearing is currently
scheduled for June 15, 2023. At this hearing, the Board will consider approval of a
resolution confirming the assessments for fiscal year 2023-24. If so confirmed and
approved, the assessments will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for
inclusion on the property tax rolls for Fiscal Year 2023-24.

———

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e
£CiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 79



Page 4

Plans & Specifications

For fiscal year 2023-24, the District proposes to use the assessment proceeds to pay the
costs of maintaining, repairing and replacing portions of its park and recreational
facilities to ensure that such facilities retain their high quality through the term of their
useful lives after the construction costs of those facilities have been paid.

The work and improvements (“Improvements”) proposed to be undertaken by the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District’s Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
(the “Assessment District”) and the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual
assessment provide special benefit to Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as
defined in the Method of Assessment herein. In addition to the definitions provided by
the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (the “Act”) the work and improvements are
generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and
improvements, including, but not limited to, turf and play areas, landscaping, ground
cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage systems, lighting, fencing, entry
monuments, basketball courts, tennis courts, gymnasium, running tracks, swimming
pools, other recreational facilities, security guards, graffiti removal and repainting, and
labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, at each of the locations
owned, operated or maintained by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District. Any
plans and specifications for these improvements will be filed with the District
Administrator of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District and are incorporated
herein by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the design and construction of recreational
improvements, including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling,
cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights,
playground equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and
usual maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair,
removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life,
growth, health, and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming,
spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish,
debris, and other solid waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and
other improvements to remove or cover graffiti.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District el e —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 80



Page 5

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District - :M
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 81



Page 6

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Estimate of Cost and Budget

Total
Budget
Project Budget Fiscal Year 2023-24
1  Capital Improvement Projects
Total Capital Improvements $489,000
2  Maintenance and Service Expenditures
A Agricultural Supplies and Senices $24,500
B  Utilities $216,000
C  Chemicals $56,000
D  Securty $25,000
E  Fuel $24,000
F  Other Expenses $200,700
G  Other Professional Senices $38,000
Total Maintenance and Senice Expenditures $584,200
3  Incidental Expenditures
A Engineering/Accounting Expenditures $15,100
B  Legal Senices $10,000
Total Incidental Expenditures $25,100
4  Debt Service
A Interest Expense $0
B  Bond Principal Repayment $0
C  Tax/Lic/Assessments $1,300
Total Debt Senice $1,300
5 Salaries and Benefits
A Salaries and Benefits $1,056,000
Total Costs for Installation, Maintenance and Servicing for Fiscal Year 2023-24 $2,155,600
Total benefit of Improvements $2,155,600
Single Family Equivalents (SFEs) 13,534
Benefit received per SFE unit $159.27
Less:
District Contribution for General Benefits $1,077,800
District Contribution toward Special Benefits $509,367
Estimated Assessment Revenues for Fiscal Year 2023-24 $568,433
Budget Allocation to Property
Total Assessment Budget $568,433
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 13,534.12
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit $42.00
Orangevale Recreation and Park District o —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SClConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 82



Page 7

Assessment District Debt

The park and recreation improvements constructed within the assessment district and
listed on Table 1 have been financed through issuance of Certificates of Participation by
Orangevale Recreation and Park District known as Orangevale Recreation and Park
District Certificates of Participation 1992 Series A and Refunding Certificates of
Participation 1996 Series A (the “Bonds”).

In order to facilitate the issuance of the Bonds and the funding of the District’s Capital
Improvement Master Plan, the Board, in Resolution 92-06-51, opted to levy an annual
installment assessment which, under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets
& Highways Code, § 22500 et seq.) (the “Act”) is a procedure for financing capital
improvements, the cost of which exceeds the amount of assessment revenue that can
be collected in any single fiscal year. The annual instaliment assessment levied by the
Board of Directors in this Resolution is a one-time assessment to be levied in annual
installments through fiscal year 2012-13 sufficient to pay the principal and interest on
the outstanding Bonds. The provisions of the Act specifically allow the Board to assess
an annual installment assessment on a one time basis to be collected over any period of
time less than thirty (30) years. The Bonds were used to finance the costs of the
construction of the Capital Improvement Plan and were secured by a pledge of 100% of
all assessment revenues for repayment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

This pledge of 100% of the assessment revenues for principal and interest payments on
the Bonds was facilitated by the requirement in the Bond documents that the District
establish a “Special Lease Payment Fund” and deposit all assessment revenues collected
each year into the Special Lease Payment Fund administered by the Bond trustee. The
trustee is then authorized to utilize the assessment revenues deposited into the Special
Lease Payment Fund to make principal and interest payments on the Bonds when due.
This is the mechanism which ensures that the District’s irrevocable pledge of 100% of its
assessment revenues to bond payments provides a security interest and first lien on
such assessment revenues in favor of the bondholders. The assessment revenues on
deposit in the Special Lease Payment Fund are not subject to levy, attachment, or lien
by or for the benefit of any creditor of the District, and the District is prohibited from
pledging those assessment revenues to any other obligation other than the principal
and interest on the Bonds. The District also promised in the bond documents not to
reduce the amount of its assessments while any of the Bonds are outstanding and
unpaid.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District oo ) —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 83



Page 8

To the extent that assessment revenues on deposit in the Special Lease Payment Fund
exceed the principal and interest payments owing on the Bonds in any year, then the
bond trustee is authorized to release those excess assessment revenues back to the
District to be utilized to fund maintenance, repair, replacement, and servicing
expenditures required by the District to maintain all park and recreational
improvements in good condition throughout their useful life.

Upon full repayment of the principal and interest on the Bonds in fiscal year 2012-13,
District legal counsel has opined that the Board of Directors of District has the discretion
to levy annual assessments thereafter based on an annual budget of expenditures for
the Assessment District for each ensuing fiscal year for additional capital improvements,
additional maintenance, repair or replacement of existing capital improvements, and
the payment of servicing costs of those improvements pursuant to the provisions of the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (the “Act”), Proposition 218 and Articles XIIIC and
D of the California Constitution so long as the amount of assessments per parcel and the
methodology of assessment initially established by the Board in 1992 is not changed.
The Act authorizes continuing assessments on an annual basis after a public hearing
upon a majority vote of the District’s Board of Directors each year.

Exemption From Proposition 218

The districtwide assessment district was formed and the District issued its bonds
secured by assessment revenues in 1990, prior to the passage of Proposition 218, the
Right to Vote on Taxes Act, which was approved by the voters of California on
November 6, 1996, and now comprises Articles Xill C and Xlll D of the California
Constitution. Proposition 218 provides that all assessments levied by local governments
after the adoption of Proposition 218 in 1996 must comply with the following two
criteria: (1) assessments must be demonstrated to provide “special benefits” to the
parcels of real property upon which the assessment is levied, and not for general benefit
to the public and society at large, including non-property owners such as tenants and
visitors to District Facilities; and (2) no assessment may be imposed on any parcel of real
property which exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit
conferred on that parcel.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ~r¥'———-—-\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 84



Page 9

The assessment levied by the districtwide assessment district prior to the passage of
Proposition 218 in 1996 is exempt as an assessment existing on the effective date of
Article XIl! D imposed exclusively to repay bonded indebtedness of which the failure to
pay would violate the contract impairment clause of the United States Constitution (See
Cal. Const., art. Xlll D, 5(c)). The assessment district’s Certificates of Participation 1992
Series A, and the District’s Refunding Certificates of Participation 1996 Series A, all
represent contractual obligations to which the District pledged 100% of the assessment
revenues received in the assessment district. The District’s contractual pledge to levy
and collect all of the assessments within the assessment district to pay principal and
interest on the Certificate of Participation obligations are protected from impairment by
the prohibition against impairment of the obligation of contract contained in the United
States Constitution. (See section entitled Assessment District Debt.)

In addition, Government Code section 53753.5, which is part of the Proposition 218
Omnibus Implementation Act, provides that this exemption means that all such
assessments in the assessment district are exempt from “the procedures and approval
process” defined in Section 4 of Article Xl D. Section 53753.5(c)(2) goes on to state that
the definition of exemption from the “procedures and approval process” means
exemption from the requirements to separate general benefit from special benefit, and
the requirement to assess publicly owned parcels within the assessment district.

In addition, Government Code section 53753.3(b)(4) specifically provides that any
subsequent increases in such assessment district assessments must comply with such
procedures and approval processes except for those assessments which preexist the
adoption of Proposition 218 and are exempt since the proceeds of such assessments are
pledged to pay bonded indebtedness. Therefore, any subsequent increases in the
assessments pledged to debt are also exempt from the procedures and approval
processes of Article Xl D.

Despite this exemption from the requirements of Proposition 218 to separate general
benefit from special benefit, this Engineer’s Report nevertheless demonstrates that the
assessments levied in the assessment district are limited to funding special benefits to
property within the assessment district, and any potential general benefit to the public
and others not paying assessments has been excluded in the calculation of the
assessments and the funding of the assessment district budget.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District - fg-s--—"'"—'--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District &ClConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 85



Page 10

Method of Apportionment

Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be
derived from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout
the Park District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to
properties within the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District. The method used for apportioning the
assessments is based upon the proportional special benefits conferred to the properties
over and above the general benefits conferred to real property in the Assessment
District or to the public at large. Special benefit is calculated for each parcel in the
Assessment District using the following process:

= |dentification of all benefit factors derived from the Improvements

= Calculation of the proportion of these benefits that are special and general, and
quantification of the general benefits

s Determination of the relative special benefit per property type

= Calculation of the specific assessment for each individual parcel based upon
special vs. general benefit; property type, property characteristics,
improvements on property and other supporting attributes

Discussion of Benefit

Assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property conferred by
the capital improvements or services funded with the assessment revenue. This special
benefit to assessed real property must be demonstrated to be over and above any
general benefits. Proposition 218 has clarified that the assessment levied by the Park
District must comply with the following two criteria: (1) assessments must be
demonstrated to provide “special benefit” to the parcels of real property upon which
the assessment is levied, and not for general benefit to the public and society at large,
including nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors to district facilities; and (2)
no assessment may be imposed on any parcel of real property which exceeds the
reasonable costs of the proportional special benefit conferred on that particular parcel.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ,*"“"_—_-‘“
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 86



Page 11

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the installation,
maintenance and servicing of landscaping improvements to be provided with
assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are derived from the statutes
passed by the California Legislature and other studies which describe the types of
special benefit received by property from maintenance and improvements of park and
recreational facilities such as those proposed by the assessment district. These types of
special benefit are summarized below. Specifically, the Legislature at Public Resources
Code section 5506 states its intent that land acquisition, improvement and services by a
park district specifically benefit the properties assessed and the persons paying those
assessments in the following respects.

When the assessments were first formed in 1992, the Engineer’s Report and Board
established the following special benefits from the assessments:

1. Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational
facilities for all residents, customers and guests.

2. Protection of open space, views, scenery and other resources values and
environmental benefits enjoyed by residents, employees, customers and
guests and preservation of public assets maintained by the Park District.

3. Increased economic activity.

4. Expanded employment opportunity.

5. Reduced cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care,
fire prevention and natural disaster response.

6. Specific enhancement of property values.

For more discussion see the section entitled Special Benefits below.

The legislative history behind Proposition 218, the adoption by the Legislature of the
Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and appellate case law interpreting the
provisions of Proposition 218 demonstrate the analysis that the Board of Directors of
the Assessment District must undertake in order to determine the amount of special
benefit to assessed real property from the park and recreation facilities and
maintenance funded by assessment revenues, and the limitation that such assessments
should not exceed the costs of the proportional special benefit to each such parcel as
required by Proposition 218.

e ———_

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s
SCiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 87



Page 12

The State of California Legislative Analyst’s impartial analysis of Proposition 218 states
that first, local governments must estimate the amount of “special benefit” landowners
receive, or would receive, from a capital improvement project or service. If such a
capital improvement project or service provides both special benefits to that parcel of
real property and general benefits to members of the public and nonproperty owners
such as tenants and visitors, then the District may charge landowners only for the cost
of providing the special benefit. The District must use general revenue such as property
taxes and user fees to pay the remaining portion of the costs of a project or service.
Second, the District must ensure that no property owner’s assessment is greater than
the cost to the District to provide those capital improvements or maintenance services
to benefit that particular owner’s property.

The District, by means of this Engineer’s Report, must estimate the amount of “special
benefit” landowners receive from the park and recreation facilities and maintenance,
repair and replacement services funded with assessment revenues. If these park and
recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and replacement services provide both
special benefits to property owners within the District and general benefits to
nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors, then the District must quantify the
special benefit properties received from those park and recreational improvements and
maintenance and repair services, and also quantify the amount of general benefit
received by nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors from such improvements
and maintenance services.

In addition, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 provides as
follows:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among
all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by
each such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Five recent court cases construing the assessment provisions of Proposition 218
demonstrate the process that the District must utilize to satisfy Proposition 218’s special
benefit and proportionality requirements.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District - __,:_,u:—-—-._...___‘
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 88



Page 13

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open
Space Authority

The first of those cases is the Supreme Court’s decision in Silicon Valley Taxpayers
Association v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (2008) 44 Cal.4th 431. That case
dealt with an open space assessment. The Court emphasized that the Engineer’s Report
must demonstrate distinct benefits to particular properties above and beyond those
which the general public using and enjoying the open space receives. The Court also
noted that such special benefits would likely result from factors such as proximity,
improved access, and views.

Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District

A similar holding can be found in the Court of Appeals 2009 decision upholding the
business improvement district assessment to fund supplemental municipal services in
the case of Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District
(2009) 174 Cal.App.4th 708. In that case, the Court held that services provided to
assessed property including security, street maintenance, and marketing, promotion
and special events for property owners within the Assessment District were all special
benefits conferred on parcels within the Assessment District because they “affected the
assessed property in a way that is particular and distinct from their effect on other
parcels and that real property in general and the public at large do not share.” The Court
further held that under Proposition 218, the cap on the total assessment is the entirety
of the reasonable cost of the special benefit conferred on all parcels by the
improvements and services funded by assessment revenue. The Court also noted that if
special benefits themselves produce certain general benefits to the public at large, the
value of those general benefits need not be deducted before the caps on the special
benefits which the assessments provide are calculated. Therefore, the Court concluded
that security, maintenance, and special event services specially benefit property within
an Assessment District and may be apportioned according to the cost of providing those
services without respect to the cost of generating general benefits.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ::'—-———-_
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCIiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 89



Beutz v. County of Riverside

The case of Beutz v. County of Riverside (2010) 194 Cal.App.4th 1516 dealt with an
assessment under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and concluded that
Proposition 218 permits assessments to fund maintenance, repair and replacement of
park and recreational facilities when supported by an adequate Engineer’s Report. The
Court concluded that park and recreational improvements, maintenance, and park and
recreational services confer special benefit on property. However, the Court noted that
the Engineer’s Report in that case did not separate and quantify the degree of special
benefit to properties being assessed for such services, as opposed to the general benefit
conferred on members of the public such as nonproperty owners, tenants and visitors
from such park improvements and services. The Court noted that the nature and extent
of general and special benefits from the park improvements and maintenance services
must be quantified in relationship to each other based on credible solid evidence.

Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego

In the recent Court of Appeal case of Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of
San Diego (2011) 199 Cal.App.4th 416, the city levied an assessment under the
Landscaping and Lighting Act for maintenance services consisting of trash removal,
sidewalk sweeping and washing, landscaping, graffiti abatement and trail and canyon
beautification. The Court implicitly found that such services do provide special benefit to
the property being assessed from those services pursuant to the requirements of
Proposition 218. However, similar to the Beutz decision, which was issued after the
creation of the Engineer’s Report for the Golden Hill assessment, the Court found that
the Engineer’s Report must specifically quantify the special and general benefits from
the assessment.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District :)f»-im
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District :CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 90



Page 15

Bonander v. Town of Tiburon

In the Court of Appeal case of Bonander v. Town of Tiburon, the town of Tiburon formed
an assessment district to fund the cost of moving overhead utility lines underground.
The engineer identified special benefits of improved aesthetics, increased safety, and
improved service reliability. The degree of benefit to an individual property was
dependent on proximity to existing overhead utility lines. The assessment district was
divided into three zones. The Court found that undergrounding of utility lines did
constitute a special benefit conferred on real property and it is a proper subject for
assessment. The Court also found that it is permissible to conclude that all properties in
a district benefit equally from a certain type of special benefit, and therefore assess all
such properties an equal assessment amount. The Court concluded that just because a
particular benefit is conferred equally upon all properties in an assessment district does
not compel the conclusion that such benefit is not tied to particular parcels of property.
Finally, the Court found that Proposition 218 requires that the proportional special
benefit derived by each parcel shall be determined depending on the entirety of the
capital cost of a public improvement, or its maintenance and operation expenses, and
not just as costs incurred in each zone. The Court noted that Proposition 218 requires
the amount of the assessment to be proportional to the benefits conferred on the
property, not the costs incurred.

Compliance with Current Law

This Engineer’s Report, and the process used to establish these proposed assessments
are consistent with the case law described above and with the requirements of Articles
X1l € and X1l D of the California Constitution based on the following factors:

1. The fact that the park and recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and
replacement services for those improvements have some general benefit to the
public at large including non-property owners, tenants and visitors, does not
mean that they do not also have a special benefit to property owners whose
parcels are assessed. While many government facilities and services may
provide public benefits, when special benefits can be identified, they may be
separated from general public benefits and their costs imposed as assessments
on the properties to which those special benefits accrue.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e -*-;—‘“ﬂ".’———--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ClConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 91



Page 16

2. This Engineer’s Report is consistent with Beutz, Dahms and Greater Golden Hill
cases because the Improvements will directly benefit property in the
Assessment District and the general benefits have been explicitly calculated and
quantified and excluded from the Assessments. The fact that the park and
recreational facilities and maintenance repair replacement services have some
general benefit to the public at large does not mean that they do not also have
special benefit to property owners whose parcels are assessed.

3. The Engineer’s Report is also consistent with the Bonander decision because the
Assessments have been apportioned based on the entirety of the capital cost of
the Improvements and based on proportional special benefit to each property in
each zone.

Special Benefits

This Engineer’s Report, in the following sections, identifies the special benefits for the
various types of properties within the Assessment District which are proposed to be
assessed. This Report also quantifies the special and general benefits from the
assessments. A description of the types of special benefits conferred on real properties
within the District by the park and recreational facilities and maintenance funded with
assessment revenues follows.

These special benefit factors are derived from Legislative findings and intent established
in statute before the adoption of Proposition 218 as specified above, and as such, must
be harmonized with the provisions of Proposition 218 in implementing the assessments.

The applicable provisions of Proposition 218 regarding assessments were described in
the Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision described above, which provides
specific guidance that parks and recreational areas may confer the following special
benefits:

= Proximity to recreational and open space
= Expanded or improved access to recreational and open space
= Views of recreational and open space

The Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a
service or improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or
derivative advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or
improvement are general benefits. This decision also provides specific guidance that
park improvements constitute a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is
proximate to a park or open space, the improvement of which is funded by an
assessment:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ":“-‘—'---\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 92



Page 17

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a
direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an
indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the
improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district’s property values).
In summary, from the case law interpreting Proposition 218 requirements regarding
such assessments, the District’s assessments fund specific park and recreation
improvements, maintenance and servicing costs that can be described by additional
special benefit categories as summarized as follows:

= Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities.

= Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas.
® |mproved views.

= Enhanced recreational opportunities

The grounds for validity of the foregoing special benefit categories are supported by the
following evidence:

Benefit Factors

Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational
areas for all property owners, residents, employees and customers
throughout the Assessment District.

Residential properties specifically benefit from the enhanced recreational opportunities
provided by the Improvements made throughout the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District. These include, among others, new parks and open spaces, areas for
nature based recreational activities, and higher levels of maintenance of parks,
recreation areas, and trails than would be provided in absence of the assessment.

in "Trends: Parks, Practice and Program" by Love, L. and Crompton, J. {1993) the authors
found that:

“The provision of parks and recreation services play an influential role in a
community's economic development efforts. When companies choose to set up
business or relocate, the availability of recreation, parks and open space is high
on the priority list for site selection. Recreation and parks have a significant
influence on people's preferred living locations.”

The "Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America’s 1993 State of the Industry Report”
found that:

"From rock climbing to biking to backpacking, the outdoor recreation industry --
worth at least $132 billion annually to the U.S. economy-- is growing by leaps
and bounds. The biggest and most noticeable effect has been on public lands:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District x_,,_,_,_{_,g__.—._._____\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 93



Page 18

Visits to parks and other spaces increased by well over 100 million in the last
decade just as funding dwindled."
All properties within the assessment district will specially benefit from the assessments
that will be used to expand, protect and maintain public recreational lands, parks, open
space areas, trails and other public resources.

Increased economic activity.

The Assessment District creates expanded and improved parks and recreation areas that
are also better maintained. This specifically increases the desirability of the area and
enhances recreational and wildlife education opportunities, which, in turn, leads to
expanded use. Expanded use and activities facilitated by new and existing parks and
open space areas brings greater numbers of visitors into the area who can utilize the
services of businesses within the Assessment Districts. The visitors to the Park District’s
open space will be more likely to shop and eat locally. Increased use leads to increased
economic activity in the area, which is a special benefit ultimately to residential,
commercial, industrial and institutional property located within the assessment district.

“California’s public parks generate more than 535 million annually from
businesses for local events. Visitors to public parks and outdoor recreation areas
support approximately 235,000 jobs in California’s economy."

"Numerous studies demonstrate that linear parks can increase property values,
which can in turn increase local tax revenues. Spending by residents on
greenway-related activities helps support recreation-oriented businesses and
employment, as well as other businesses that are patronized by greenway users.
Greenways often provide new business opportunities and locations for
commercial activities like bed and breakfast establishments, and bike and canoe
rental shops. Greenways are often major tourist attractions which generate
expenditures on lodging, food, and recreation-oriented services. Finally,
greenways can reduce public expenditures by lowering the costs associated with
flooding and other natural hazards.”

“Although the chief reason for providing outdoor recreation is the broad social
and individual benefits it produces, it also brings about desirable economic
effects. Its provision enhances community values by creating a better place to
live and increasing land values. In some underdeveloped areas, it can be a
mainstay of the local economy. And it is a basis for big business as the millions
and millions of people seeking the outdoors generate an estimated 520 billion a
year market for goods and services.””

"People are spending increasing amounts of money on recreation. In California
people spent an average of 12 percent of their total personal consumption on
recreation and leisure, which was the third largest industry in the state. Also,
many recreational activities that can be pursued in locally protected areas (such

Orangevale Recreation and Park District — =~r=—'—'—--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 94



Page 19

as biking, hiking, bird-watching, cross country skiing, and canoeing) entail
equipment costs that support local businesses, providing new jobs and tax
revenue.”®

Expanded employment opportunity.

Improved recreational areas and public resources foster business growth, which in turn
creates additional employment opportunities for Assessment District residents. In
addition, the assessments expand local employment opportunities by funding new
projects that may create the need for additional construction or maintenance jobs.

Improved and well-maintained parks, open space and recreational areas also provide
business properties with an opportunity to attract and keep employees due to the
benefits provided by these areas.

Non-residential properties also will specifically benefit from the maintenance and
improvement of parks, recreation areas and open space areas in many ways. Employees
will have additional wildlife and recreation areas to utilize for exercise, recreational
activities, picnics, company gatherings or other uses. These Improvements, therefore,
enhance an employer's ability to attract and keep quality employees. The benefits to
employers ultimately flow to the property because better employees improve the
business prospects for companies and enhanced economic conditions specially benefit
the property by making it more valuable.

The California Park and Recreation Society, in 1997 found that:

“Recreation and park amenities are central components in establishing the
quality of life in @ community, a business’ main resource is their employees for
whom quality of life is an important issue. The availability and attractiveness of
local parks and programs influences some companies relocation decisions and
the presence of a park encourages real estate development around it.””

Enhanced protection of property through reduction of the risk of fire and
reduced cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care
and natural disaster response.

The assessment also benefits properties in the Assessment District by funding
maintenance services and park safety and security patrols that preserve the level of
special benefits from park and open space in the Assessment District and protect the
public’s parks, recreational facilities and open space resources by reducing the risk of
damage or harm and maintaining public access to these important public resources.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e Jﬂ_--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 95



Page 20

Improved and well-maintained recreational areas and open space lands can also serve
to improve public safety and reduce the cost to local government by providing a healthy
alternative for youth and adult activities. Studies have shown that adequate park and
recreation areas and recreation programs help to reduce crime and vandalism.

“Natural parks and open space require few public services - no roads, no schools,
no sewage, no solid waste disposal, no water, and minimal fire and police
protection.”®

"Exercise derived from recreational activities lessens health related problems
and subsequent health care costs. Every year, premature deaths cost American
companies an estimated 132 million lost work days at a price tag of 525 billion.
Finding and training replacements costs industry more than S700 million each
year. In addition, American businesses lose an estimated 53 billion every year
because of employee health problems.”®
High quality recreational and open space areas allow residents and employees in the
Assessment District to enjoy activities close to home, thereby not spending time driving
to other areas. Moreover, parks, open space and trails in these lands promote healthy
activities that help to reduce the cost of health care. Such cost reduction frees public
funds for other services that benefit properties.

All of these factors ultimately specially benefit property within the Assessment District
by specifically reducing the risk of damage to property, and specifically making the
property within the assessment district more usable and desirable and ultimately, more
valuable.

Specific enhancement of property values due to Enhanced quality of life
and desirability of the area.

The assessments will provide funding to maintain, improve and preserve parks,
recreational facilities and open space areas that otherwise may not be preserved for the
public benefit. Additional development, and the congestion it causes, reduces the
desirability of property within the Assessment District. Therefore, improved open space
areas and public wildlife areas enhance the overall quality of life and desirability of
properties within the Assessment District. This is a special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other properties.

The Presidents Commission on American's Outdoors (1987) found natural beauty
was the single most important factor in deciding tourist destination.*°

“The importance of quality-of-life in business location decisions has been
repeatedly verified in the literature. (Boyle, 1988; Bramlage, 1988, Carn &
Rabianski, 1991; Conway, 1985; Epping, 1986; Sarvis, 1989; Tosh, et.al., 1988)""

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e ,,_,,__.____\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 96



Page 21

“Home buyers over age 55 considering a move were surveyed about the amenities that
‘Would seriously influence them in selecting a new community’ ”*? the following results

were found:
Amenity Group % Seeking Amenity Rank on List
Walking and jogging trails 55+ 52 1
Walking and jogging trails S5 >57Skiper 65
year
QOutdoor spaces 55+ 51 2
Outdoor spaces (park) 35+, mavingto 55
suburbs
Open Spaces 55+ 46 4

Extensive park and open space, nature lands and wildlife areas are one of the most
important public resources and features for property owners in the Assessment District.
Therefore, the acquisition and preservation of park and open space properties is a very
important feature for property owners in the Assessment District that enhances the
quality of life and desirability of property located in the Assessment District.

In addition, the assessments provide funding to significantly expand, improve and
maintain the public parks, open space lands, recreational areas, wildlife and nature
habitats, wildlife corridors and other public resources. The Improvements funded by the
assessments also specifically benefit properties by limiting urban sprawl and large lot
development that negatively impacts existing improved properties in the Assessment
Districts. In turn, property values are specifically enhanced by the availability of
expanded, improved, safe, preserved and maintained parks and open space lands within
a community. Values of commercial and industrial property increase based on these
same elements and the enhanced economic activity derived from the greater quantity
and quality of public resources in the area.

The correlation between enhanced property values and expanded and well-maintained
open space areas and recreational areas has been documented. The United States
Department of the Interior, National Park Service determined that:

“An investment in parks and recreation helps reduce pollution and noise, makes
communities more livable, and increases property value. Parks and recreation
stimulate business and generate tax revenues. Parks and recreation help
conserve land, energy and resources. Public recreation benefits all employers by
providing continuing opportunities to maintain a level of fitness throughout

Orangevale Recreation and Park District _,:/;gm
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 97



Page 22

one’s working life, and through helping individuals cope with the stress of a fast-
paced and demanding life.”*

Additionally, the National Recreation and Park Association, in June 1985, stated:

“The recreation value is realized as a rise in the value of land and other property
in or near the recreation area, and is of both private interest to the landowner
and others, holding an economic stake in the area, and of public interest to the
taxpayers, who have a stake in @ maximum of total assessed values.”*

Moreover, the Supreme Court of California and the United States Supreme Court have
found that improved and well-maintained park facilities confer special benefits to
property by enhancing property values. In Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4th 132, 143
(1993) the Supreme Court of California found that:

“Plaintiff’s basic argument that a special assessment is never appropriate to
fund park improvements is unconvincing. Significantly, plaintiff’s attempt to
differentiate between street lights, sewers, sidewalks and flood control as
constituting proper subjects for special assessment, and public parks as matters
of such a general nature as to not justify a special assessment, is virtually
identical to an argument rejected nearly a century ago by the United States
Supreme Court in Wilson v. Lambert.”*

In Wilson v. Lambert (1898) the United States Supreme Court stated:

“The residents and property holders in the District of Columbia must be regarded
as coming within the class of beneficiaries; and, so far from being injured by the
declaration that the park shall also have national character, it is apparent that
thereby the welfare of the inhabitants of the Assessment District will be
promoted. Whatever tends to increase the attractiveness of the City of
Washington, as a place of permanent or temporary residence, will operate to
enhance the value of private property situated therein or adjacent thereto.”*®

In addition, professional property appraisers and instructional books on the subject find
that well-maintained public recreational grounds and areas enhance property values in
a community. Enhancement value is the tendency of open space to enhance the
property value of adjacent properties. It is also explicitly recognized by federal income
tax law:

U.S. Treasury regulation Sec. 14(h)(3)(i) requires that the valuation of a
conservation easement take into account (i.e., be offset by) any resulting
increase in the value of other property owned by the donor of the easement or a
related person. Section 14(h)(4) sites as an example a landowner who owns 10
one-acre lots and donates an easement over eight of them: “By perpetually
restricting development on this portion of the land, (the landowner) has ensured
that the two remaining acres will always be bordered by parkland, thereby
increasing their fair market value.”

ConsultingGroup

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 98



Page 23

The special benefits from the Improvements are further detailed below:

Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities, and zones of
benefit

According to the industry-standard guidelines established by the National Park and
Recreation Association (the “NPRA”), neighborhood parks in urban areas have a service
area radius of generally one-half mile and community parks have a service area radius of
approximately two miles. Sacramento County also provides similar to slightly larger park
service area radii guidelines. The service radii for neighborhood parks and neighborhood
green spaces were specifically established to give all properties within this service radii
close proximity and easy walking access to such public land areas. Since proximate and
accessible parks serve as an extension of the usable land area for property in the service
radii and since the service radii was specifically designed to provide close proximity and
access, the parcels within this service area clearly receive a direct advantage and special
benefit from the Improvements - and this advantage is not received by other properties
or the public at large.

An analysis of the service radii for the Improvements finds that all properties in the
Assessment District enjoy the distinct and direct advantage of being close and proximate
to one or often multiple parks within the Assessment District, and lie within the
recommended service radius for such facilities. The benefiting properties in the
Assessment District therefore uniquely and specially benefit from the Improvements.

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the Improvements are included in
the Assessment District. All properties within each of the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District enjoys unique and valuable proximity and access to the
Improvements within the established service radii, discussed above, that the public at
large and property outside the Assessment District do not share.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed
projects combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property
within a particular land use category, regardiess of the location of that property within
the boundaries of the Assessment District.

The reasons for this determination are as follows:

_,-77_—1-*—__‘_\

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
E£CiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 99



Page 24

1. The capital development plan provides for major new and/or expanded and
renovated neighborhood park and recreational facilities in each of the four
planning quadrants utilized by the Park District, disbursed equally
throughout the geographic area comprising the proposed Assessment
District. The total area served by the Park District is approximately sixteen
square miles. Each of these planning quadrants contains an average area of
approximately four square miles. The maximum distance from a parcel of
real property to a new or expanded neighborhood park and recreational
facility in the northwest quadrant is 1.5 miles. In the northeast quadrant,
the distance is approximately 1.6 miles. The distance is 1.5 in the southwest
quadrant and 1 mile in the southeast quadrant. Therefore, all parcels of real
property within the proposed Assessment District are located within an
average maximum one and one-half mile radius from a new or expanded
neighborhood park and recreational facility constructed, maintained and
improved with assessment proceeds.

2. The most significant of these projects is a fourteen-acre community park
with a 12,000 square foot community center with pool, located in the
geographic center of the Assessment District and easily accessible to all
residents of the District. All parcels of real property within the proposed
Assessment District are located within a two-and-one-half mile radius of the
proposed community center, well within the Sacramento County planning
guidelines for such community centers.

The boundaries of the Assessment District have been carefully drawn to include the
properties in the Orangevale Recreation and Park District that are proximate to the
proposed Improvements and that would materially benefit from the Improvements.
The Assessment District is coterminous with the District boundaries. As the properties in
the District have developed over time, regional and neighborhood parks have been
strategically located throughout the community as it has been built out. Park size and
location have been carefully incorporated into the design of the community, consistent
with the NPRA and Sacramento County park planning guidelines. Now, with a mature
community, all parcels in the District are located in close proximity to at least one park.
It therefore is appropriate to provide a District-wide Assessment District because all
parcels benefit similarly.

In the Assessment District, the advantage that each parcel receives from the
Improvements is direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels
that benefit from the Assessment. Since all parcels in the Assessment District have good
access, additional proximity is not considered to be a factor in determining benefit
within the Assessment District. Therefore, zones of benefit are not justified or needed
within the Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District _A/wa’;—":m
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 100



Page 25

Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas

Since all of the parcels within the Assessment District enjoy close access to the
improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved parks,
open space and recreation areas that are provided by the Assessments. This is a direct
advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.

Improved views

The Park District, by maintaining the landscaping at its park, recreation and open space
facilities provides improved views to properties in the Assessment District. The
properties in the Assessment District enjoy close and unique proximity, access and
therefore views of the Improvements; therefore, the improved and protected views
provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely
conferred upon property in the Assessment District.

General versus Special Benefit

Article XIIIC of the California Constitution requires any local agency proposing to
increase or impose a benefit assessment to “separate the general benefits from the
special benefits conferred on a parcel.” The rationale for separating special and general
benefits is to ensure that property owners subject to the benefit assessment are not
paying for general benefits. The assessment can fund special benefits but cannot fund
general benefits. Accordingly, a separate estimate of the special and general benefit is
given in this section.

In other words:

Total __  General Special
Benefit ~—  Benefit Benefit

There is no widely accepted or statutory formula for general benefit. General benefits
are benefits from improvements or services that are not special in nature, are not
“particular and distinct” and are not “over and above” benefits received by other
properties. The SVTA decision provides some clarification by indicating that general
benefits provide “an indirect, derivative advantage” and are not necessarily proximate
to the improvements.

In this report, the general benefit is conservatively estimated and described, and then
budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the assessment.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ﬂ»«@—‘m—\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CIConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 101



Page 26

The starting point for evaluating general and special benefits is the current, baseline
level of service. The baseline level of service is defined as the extent and level of park
and recreation facilities that would exist in absence of the assessments. The assessment
funds Improvements “over and above” this general, baseline level and the general
benefits estimated in this section are over and above the baseline.

A formula to estimate the general benefit is listed below:

Benefit to Real Benefit to Real Property X
N ) Benefit to
General - PropertyOutside . Inside the Assessment +  the Public
Benefit the Assessment District that is Indirect and at Large
District Derivative g

Special benefit, on the other hand, is defined in the state constitution as “a particular
and distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred on real property located
in the district or to the public at large.” The SVTA decision indicates that a special
benefit is conferred to a property if it “receives a direct advantage from the
improvement (e.g., proximity to a park).” In this assessment, as noted, properties in the
Assessment District have close and unique proximity, views and access to the
Improvements and uniquely improved desirability from the Improvements and other
properties and the public at large do not receive significant benefits because they do
not have proximity, access or views of the Improvements. Therefore, the overwhelming
proportion of the benefits conferred to property is special, and is only minimally
received by property outside the Assessment District or the public at large.

In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit
on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided
within the assessment district. It is also important to note that the improvements and
services funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and
services funded by the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report and the Court
found these improvements and services to be 100% special benefit. Also similar to the
assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report fund
improvements and services directly provided within the Assessment District and every
benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys proximity and access to the
Improvements. Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general
benefits from the Assessments. However, in this Report, the general benefit is more
conservatively estimated and described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by
sources other than the Assessment.

Calculating General Benefit

In this section, the general benefit is conservatively quantified.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District #_c,.-—-——:——-x\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 102



Benefit to Property Outside the Assessment District

Properties within the Assessment District receive almost all of the special benefits from
the Improvements because properties in the Assessment District enjoy unique close
proximity and access to the Improvements that is not enjoyed by other properties or the
public at large. However, certain properties within the proximity/access radius of the
Improvements, but outside of the boundaries of the Assessment District, may receive
some benefit from the Improvements. Since this benefit is conferred to properties
outside the Assessment District boundaries, it contributes to the overall general benefit
calculation and will not be funded by the Assessments.

The properties outside the Assessment District and within the proximity radii for
neighborhood or community parks in the Assessment District may receive some benefits
from the Improvements. Since these properties are not assessed for their benefits
because they are outside of the area that can be assessed by the District, this is form of
general benefit to the public at large and other property. A 50% reduction factor is
applied to these properties because they are all geographically on only one side of the
Improvements and are over twice the average distance from the Improvements
compared to properties in the Assessment District.

The general benefit to property outside of the Assessment District is calculated as
follows with the parcel and data analysis performed by SCI Consulting Group.

Assumptions:

11,563 parcels outside the district but within either 0.5 miles of a neighborhood
park or 2.0 miles of a community park within the Assessment District

11, 816 parcels in the Assessment District

50% relative benefit compared to property within the Assessment district
Calculation

General Benefit to Property Outside the Improvement District =

(11,563/(11,563+11,816))*.5 = 24.7%

Although it can reasonably be argued that Improvements inside, but near the Park
District boundaries are offset by similar park and recreational improvements provided
outside, but near the Park District’s boundaries, we use the more conservative approach
of finding that 24.7% of the Improvements may be of general benefit to property
outside the Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e ~—-*"""";'——----\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCl1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 103



Page 28

Benefit to Property within the Assessment District

The “indirect and derivative” benefit to property within the Assessment District is
particularly difficult to calculate. A solid argument can be presented that all benefit
within the Assessment District is special, because the Improvements are clearly “over
and above” and “particular and distinct” when compared with the baseline level of
service and the unique proximity, access and views of the Improvements enjoyed by
benefiting properties in the Assessment District.

Nevertheless, the SVTA decision indicates there may be general benefit “conferred on
real property located in the district” A measure of the general benefits to property
within the Assessment area is the percentage of land area within the Assessment
District that is publicly owned and used for regional purposes such as major roads, rail
lines and other regional facilities because such properties, while physically within the
Assessment District, are used for regional purposes and could provide indirect benefits
to the public at large. Approximately 2.5% of the land area in the Assessment District is
used for such regional purposes, so this is a measure of the general benefits to property
within the Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District '=“‘""""'—'*--
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ECiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 104



Page 29

Benefit to the Public at Large

In Beutz, the Court opined that general benefits from parks and recreation facilities
could be quantified by measuring the use of parks and recreation facilities by people
who do not live within the assessment boundaries. This Report uses this general benefit
measure as the third component of our overall general benefit quantification.
Therefore, the general benefit to the public at large can be estimated by the
proportionate amount of time that the Park District’s parks and recreational facilities
are used and enjoyed by individuals who are not residents, employees, customers or
property owners in the Park District’. SCI has conducted numerous surveys of similar
parks and recreation districts in the Sacramento area and other areas in California and
has determined that use by the public at large is nearly always less than 20%. Moreover,
a second quantification of benefits to the public at large is based on solid, credible
evidence consisting of District records which document the percentage of participants in
the District’s recreation programs conducted within the District’s park and recreational
facilities who reside within the District and the percentage of those who utilize the
District’s recreational programs and services and reside outside of the District. The
percentage of participants in the District’s recreation programs who do not reside within
the Assessment District provides another estimate of the percentage of general benefit
to the public at large. This analysis found that 20% of recreation program participants do
not reside in the District. Based on this data and analysis, we conclude that the general
benefits to the public at large equal 20%.

Total General Benefits

Using a sum of these three measures of general benefit, we find that approximately
47.2% of the benefits conferred by the Improvements may be general in nature and
should be funded by sources other than the assessment.

1. When District facilities are used by those individuals, the facilities are not providing benefit to
property within the Park District. Use under these circumstances is a measure of general benefit.
For example, a non-resident who is drawn to utilize the Park District facilities and shops at local
businesses while in the area would provide special benefit to business properties as a result of
his or her use of the Improvements. Conversely, one who uses Park District facilities but does
not reside, work, shop or own property within the Park District boundaries does not provide
special benefits to any property and is considered to be a measure of the general benefits.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e -«-”-’——-—n\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CIConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 105



Page 30

General Benefit Calculation

24.7% ({Outside the Assessment District)
+ 2.5% (Property within the Assessment District)
+ 20.0% (Public at Large)

=47.2% (Total General Benefit)

Although this analysis finds that 47.2% of the assessment may provide general benefits,
the Assessment Engineer establishes a requirement for a minimum contribution from
sources other than the assessments of 50.0%. This minimum contribution above the
measure of general benefits will serve to provide additional coverage for any other
possible general benefits.

The Assessment District’s total budget for installation, maintenance and servicing of the
Improvements is $2,155,600. Of this total budget amount, the District and other partner
agencies and contributors will contribute $1,587,167 from sources other than the
assessments. This contribution equates to approximately 73.6% of the total budget for
installation, maintenance and servicing of the park and recreational improvements and
constitutes more than the measure of 50.0% general benefits from the Improvements.

Benefit Finding

As extensively described in this Report, the assessment funds will be used to improve,
maintain and preserve a well distributed set of important local resource lands and
improvements in the Assessment District. Any general benefits from the Improvements
to the public at large or property in the Assessment District are more than offset by the
District’s contributions, which are well above the cost of the Improvements providing
special benefits to property in the Assessment District. Therefore, this Engineer’s Report
finds that the Improvements are a significant, tangible benefit that should reasonably
and rationally confer more special benefit to properties in the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District than the assessment rate of $42.00 per benefit unit.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s .i.,?___,,g.-_..____\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ECiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 106



Page 31

Method of Assessment

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by
each property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of
Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the
purposes of this Engineer’s Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is
each property’s relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. In this
case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one
Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

Assessment Apportionment

To estimate the relative benefit to each land use class from the proposed
improvements, a point system was created prior to Proposition 218 utilizing the single
family residential parcel as the "benchmark property". A Benefit Assessment Matrix,
illustrating relative scoring of points by land use class and the grandfathered benefit
categories and the total points for each land use class, is set forth at the Benefit
Assessment Matrix Section of this Report, and indicates the point scoring and totals for
each land use class.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed
projects combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property
within a particular land use category, regardless of the location of that property within
the boundaries of the assessment district.

The following is a brief description of the resulting assignment of points for each land
use class:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e f#-""—'_—'--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 107



Page 32

Land Use Classes

Land Use Class A: Single Family Residential /Condominium Parcels

This is the "benchmark property" for determining benefit, which will be conferred on
each parcel by the proposed projects to be constructed with assessment proceeds. A
base rating of five (5) points has been assigned for single family residential parcels with
respect to the following benefits: enhanced recreation opportunities Benefit Category
1); preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets Benefit Category 2);
expanded employment opportunities (Benefit Category 4); reduced costs of local
government for law enforcement and public healthcare (Benefit Category 5); and
increased property values Benefit Category 6). No points were assigned for Category 3
regarding economic activity as residential properties were viewed as not receiving any
such benefit. Benefit Category 3 describes a direct economic benefit to commercial and
industrial properties, and is not applicable to single family residential parcels. Therefore,
each single-family residential parcel was assigned a point total of twenty-five (25)
points.

Condominium parcels were judged to benefit the same as single family residential
parcels in these benefit categories, and therefore the same point total of twenty-five
(25) points was assigned to condominium parcels and they are included as part of the
single family residential land use class. Condominium parcels will be assessed on a per
unit basis since the ownership of condominium units is carried on the Sacramento
County Assessor's records on a per unit basis.

Land Use Class B: Multi-Residential and Apartment Parcels

Multi-residential and apartment parcels are reported on the Sacramento County
Assessor's records by the number of multi-family dwelling units on each parcel. Each
multi-family dwelling unit was judged to benefit the same from the proposed
improvements as will a single family residential parcel with respect to enhanced
recreational opportunities (Benefit Category 1), preservation of open space, scenery and
cultural assets (Benefit Category 2), expanded employment opportunities (Benefit
Category 4), and increased property values (Benefit Category 6).

S

Orangevale Recreation and Park District =
SCIConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 108



Page 33

However, unlike single family residential/condominium parcels, multi-residential and
apartment parcels were judged to receive some benefit in the form of increased
economic activity resulting in the attraction of customers, most notably prospective
tenants, which could be expected to occur as a result of expanded and improved park
and recreational facilities available for use by prospective tenants. Therefore, a point
total of two (2) was assigned to multi-residential and apartment parcels in Benefit
Category 3. With respect to Benefit Category 5, reduced costs of local government for
law enforcement and public healthcare, multi-residential and apartment parcels were
judged to benefit somewhat less than the single family residential/condominium parcels
because some multi-residential units provide their own private security services.

Therefore, three (3) points were assigned in Benefit Category 5 for multi-residential and
apartment parcels. Each multi-residential or apartment unit was therefore assigned a
total of twenty-five (25) points.

Land Use Class C: Mobile Home Residential Parcels

Mobile home residential parcels were judged to benefit essentially the same as single-
family residential/condominium parcels and multi -residential and apartment parcels in
all benefit categories. A base rating of three (3) points has been assigned for each
benefit category. Therefore, each such parcel is assigned a total of fifteen (15) points.

Land Use Class D: Commercial Property

The commercial land use class has been broken down into various subcategories
consisting of retail stores, service stations, restaurants, hotel/motel, theaters,
recreation, private golf course/country club, shopping center, other commercial/service
sector and other commercial/product sector.

Commercial parcels are judged to benefit substantially less than do single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the enhanced recreational
opportunities afforded by the proposed improvements (Benefit Category 1). Therefore,
two (2) points were assigned to the commercial land use class in that category.
Commercial properties were also perceived to benefit less than single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the benefit of preservation of open
space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit Category 2) and only one (1) point was
assigned to the commercial land use category in this Benefit Category 2.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District #f—‘f':z‘m\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 109



Page 34

On the other hand, commercial properties will benefit from construction and
maintenance of the proposed improvements in terms of the increased economic activity
and the attraction of customers and clients that will result benefit Category 3) and thus
five (5) points were assigned to the commercial land use category in this Benefit
Category 3, whereas single family residential/condominium parcels received zero points
in this Benefit Category 3. In Benefit Category 4 regarding expanded employment
opportunities, commercial properties are also assigned five (5) points upon the rationale
that the increased business activity generated by construction of new park and
recreational facilities and expanded recreational programs will not only make the
community a better place to live, but it will also make it a better place to work, making
it easier for a local business to attract and keep quality employees.

Commercial properties were judged to benefit somewhat less (4 points) than single
family residential/condominium parcels with respect to the benefit of reduced cost of
local government for law enforcement or public healthcare, primarily because most
commercial parcels within the assessment district are not located in close proximity to
District facilities and therefore the effects of the District's expanded security program
will benefit commercial property somewhat less than residential properties.

With respect to the benefit of increased property value (Benefit Category 6) commercial
properties were perceived to benefit to the same extent, although in a slightly different
way, than single family residential parcels and five (5) points were assigned to the
commercial land use category in Benefit Category 6. Values of commercial properties
increase based on (a) increased economic and business activity generated by the
construction of the proposed park and recreational improvements; and (b) the
increased volume of business generated by expanded recreational activities and special
events facilitated by such new and refurbished facilities which creates a greater number
of users of the facilities who will also utilize the services of businesses within the
Assessment District boundaries.

These considerations lead to a point total of twenty-two (22) points for the commercial
land use class which is slightly less than the twenty-five (25) points assigned to the single
family residential/condominium class. This reflects the fact that commercial properties
are judged to benefit less than residential properties from the construction of the
proposed improvements once all of the potential benefits to real property from the
proposed improvements are evaluated.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District - JP""-——'--
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 110



Page 35

Land Use Category E: Industrial and Mini Storage Parcels

Industrial and mini storage parcels have been judged to benefit less than will
commercial properties from the construction of the proposed improvements. Such
parcels only benefit incidentally from the enhanced recreational opportunities benefit
Category 1) and preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit
Category 2). Therefore, such parcels have been assigned a rating of one (1) point in each
of those benefit categories. However, industrial and mini storage parcels were assigned
a point rating of three (3) in Benefit Category 3, the benefit of increased economic
activity, since the construction of the proposed improvements will benefit some local
industries in the areas of construction supplies, hardware, etc. Such parcels will
probably benefit less than retail commercial parcels from the increased economic
activity generated by greater numbers of users of the proposed park and recreational
improvements to be constructed. With respect to expanded employment opportunity
Benefit Category 4), a rating of one (1) point was assigned since mini storage
employment opportunities are negligible and industrial employment opportunities are
driven by market factors unrelated to usage by people who also utilize the park and
recreational improvements and the expanded recreation opportunities afforded by
those facilities. Industrial parcels have been assigned a rating of two (2) in Benefit
Category 6 regarding increased property value which is less than the five (5) points
assigned in this category to commercial property because industrial parcels are not
judged to increase in value as a result of construction of the proposed improvements to
the same extent as will commercial properties. Industrial properties will not experience
increased economic activity generated by users of the proposed facilities as will
commercial properties, and therefore the value of such industrial parcels will be
affected to a smaller degree than will the value of commercial parcels. With respect to
the reduced cost of local government for law enforcement and public healthcare
(Benefit Category 5), industrial and mini storage parcels were only assigned a rating of
two (2), less than all other land use classes. Such parcels are perceived to benefit less in
this area since many such parcel owners provide their own security and because
industrial and mini storage uses are perceived to generate less law enforcement activity
and cost than do commercial properties, particularly retail properties. On the other
hand, industrial parcels should benefit from reduced costs of public healthcare in the
same way and to the same general extent as will commercial properties. Therefore, a
rating of two (2) points was assigned to industrial/mini storage uses in this Benefit
Category 5.

The total point score for industrial/mini storage parcels is ten (10) points per assessable
unit, reflecting the fact that these parcels will benefit less from the proposed
improvements than will the other land use classes.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e __,ﬁ.,.__._._.______\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 111



Page 36

Land Use Class F: Exempt Parcels

This land use class includes all parcels which are classified as exempt from real property
tax by the Sacramento County Tax Assessor and includes all parcels classified as exempt
from this type of assessment by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. Therefore,
vacant properties will not be assessed until they are put to some use. At the time that
they are put to use, they will be assessed based on the land use category into which the
vacant property falls.

Properties owned by governmental entities such as the federal government, State
government, and other special districts, such as water districts, school districts, and fire
districts, also will not be assessed. It has been determined that these parcels are not the
type of property for which the park and recreational facilities funded with assessment
proceeds were planned, designed, constructed, operated and maintained. The Board
has determined that these publicly owned properties do not receive the same special
benefits from the construction of these facilities as do the other land use classes
described above. In addition public schools have entered into joint use agreements with
the District which provide economic value to the District which offsets the cost of any
incidental special benefits received by these publicly owned parcels. Likewise, property
consisting of a railroad, gas, water, or electric utility right-of-way shall not be assessed,
since such utility-related property is not deemed to benefit at all from the construction
of the proposed improvements. Finally, properties owned by churches, vacant and
agricultural parcels will not be assessed.

Since the exempt land use class receives a zero point rating in all benefit categories, it is
not included in the Benefit Assessment Matrix.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District V;ﬂﬁi-‘@“’m\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCliConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 112



Page 37

Non-Residential Assessment Units

In order to equalize the assessment among residential and non-residential land use
classes in terms of the area of land to be benefited by the construction of the proposed
improvements, an assessment methodology has been used to convert the acreage of
each non-residential parcel into an equivalent number of single family residential
parcels that could have been developed on each non-residential parcel but for the
commercial and/or industrial use to which the parcel has been put. Approximately
eighty-eight percent (88%) of the parcels within the proposed Assessment District are
traditional single-family residential subdivision lots. The average gross density of these
subdivisions is approximately 3.6 gross dwelling units per acre. Assuming ten percent
(10%) of the gross acreage of a subdivision is consumed in public streets, the average
net density of these subdivisions is approximately 4.0 dwelling units per net acre and
the average residential lot size is approximately one-quarter acre. Accordingly, the
number of assessment units for each commercial and industrial parcel has been
determined by dividing the parcel acreage of each parcel by four. Therefore, each
commercial and industrial parcel within the Assessment District will be assessed on a
quarter acre basis and each one-quarter acre of each commercial and/or industrial
parcel will generate a separate assessment. This methodology equalizes the assessment
and the distribution of benefit between residential and non-residential parcels by
insuring that each non-residential assessment unit represents essentially the same land
area to be benefited by the construction of the improvements with assessment
proceeds as the average single family residential parcel.

Benefit Factor Index

The Assessment Matrix also shows the Benefit Factor Index for each land use category.
Since a single family residential parcel is the "benchmark property", the relative scores
of all other land use classes were related to the benchmark by indexing. A single family
residential parcel was assigned a relative Benefit Factor Index of 1.00. The Benefit Factor
Index for other land use classes was determined by dividing the point total for each
particular land use class by the point total for the single family/condominium residential
class.

Assessment Per Parcel

The total number of units (either dwelling unit or one-quarter acre parcel count) for
each land use class was multiplied by its respective Benefit Factor Index to determine
the number of Single Family Equivalent (SFE) assessment benefit units for each land use
class. The sum of the Assessment Units for all land use classes was then divided into the
annual assessment amount to determine a Base Assessment.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District i ——
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District $CIConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 113



Page 38

The final assessment per parcel was determined by multiplying the Base Assessment
times the SFE units for the parcel.

Benefit Assessment Matrix

In an effort to categorize the special benefit that each parcel of land would receive by
the formation of a landscaping and lighting assessment district and the levying of an
assessment to cover the improvements intended, a matrix of impacts was developed.
The matrix follows this section. The matrix was developed as follows.

The determining factor as to how a benefit was derived was the use of the land as
determined by the Sacramento County Assessor’s Department. Each parcel is assigned a
one digit code based upon the use of the property and in most cases, the zoning of the
land. Using the Assessor’s Code numbers, the various uses of land within the District
boundaries were broken down into five different uses. It was determined that there are
six different ways that a parcel of land can be benefited by enhancing the park system.
Each different category of land use is affected differently by these types of benefit.

Each type of benefit was applied to each category of use and rated on a scale of one to
five, with five being the most intense level of benefit. The number of points assigned by
the rating is shown on the following page. The points for the six types of benefit were
tallied and an overall number was determined for each category of land use. The
resultant number is then used in assigning the annual assessment to the various parcels
of land within the District boundaries. An annual check is made of property usage to
ensure that the latest information is used in assigning the assessment levy.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o /—’fm\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 114



ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 ASSESSMENT
BENEFIT ASSESSMENT MATRIX

Page 39

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Land Use Classes
Per Unit Per 1/4 Acre
Single Family/ Industrial/
Condominium Multi-Family Mobile Home Commercial _Mini-Storage
1 Enhanced recreation opportunities and
expanded access to recreation facilities for 5 5 5 2 1
residents, customers and guests
2 Preservation of open space, wildlife, scenery,
views and other environmental benefits
enjoyed by residents, customers and guests; 5 5 5 1 1
protection of historical and cultural assets of
the region.
3 Increased economic activity resulting in the 0 2 0 5 3
attraction of customers and guests.
4 Expanded employment opportunities. 5 5 5 5 1
5 Reduced cost of local government in law
N 5 3 3 4 2
enforcement and public health care.
6 Increased property values. 5 5 4 5 2
Total Points 25 25 22 22 10
Units/ 1/4 Acre 10,677 1,752 414 780 136
Benefit Factor Index 1.00 1.00 0.88 0.88 0.40
Single Family Equivalent Units (SFE) 10,677.00 1,752.00 364.32 686.40 54.40
Total SFE Units 13,534.12
Annual Assessment Amount $568,433.04
Base Assessment $42.00
Assessment per Unit $42.00 $42.00 $36.96 $36.96 $16.80
Assessment per SFE $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00
Assessment Subtotals $448,434.00  $73,584.00 $15301.44  $28,828.80 $2,284.80
Total Assessment $568,433.04
Orangevale Recreation and Park District e
. 9. [T 3
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District &CiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Board of Directors Meeting

June 15,2023

Page 115



Page 40

Assessment

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2023 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within
the Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively “the
Act”), to proceed with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and
file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and
an assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels
within the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said
improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the
assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2023-24 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE
FY 2023-24
Budget
Capital Improvements and Maintenance Expenditures $1,073,200
Incidental Expenses $25,100
Debt Service $1,300
Salaries and Benefits $1,056,000
TOTAL BUDGET $2,155,600
Less: Confributions
District Confribution for General Benefits ($1,077,800)
District Contribution toward Special Benefits ($509,367)
NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $568,433
Orangevale Recreation and Park District - pm——————
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 116



Page 41

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part
hereof showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive
number of each parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel
Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

| do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and
lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth
in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made
a part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District
in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from
said improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal
year 2023-24. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby
made to the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder
of said County.

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2023-24 for each
parcel or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: June 9, 2023

Engineer of Work

LASEL

By

John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e -T:-'-'—ﬂ"—"—-u-\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 117



Page 42

Assessment Diagram

The Assessment District includes all properties within the boundaries of the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District. The area within the boundaries of the Park District is
primarily developed for urban residential and commercial use.

The boundaries of the Parks Maintenance and Assessment District are displayed on the
following Assessment Diagram.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District el - —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 118



Page 43

WVHEDVIA LNTWSSASSY

JLOTLLSIA INIWSSISSY ONLLHOTT (INV ONIIVISANY]
LOIMLSIA MYV ¥ NOLLYTH DA TTVATINV O

"HIAATN TADUYG S SUOSSISIY IALINLSIA St
AY Savi GIvS NID3WILNGON $11030ve HOY3 '$1308YY
HINE 40 SNOSNANKD CHY S3NET SHL DNIRKIONCD
STWLSG TI¥ B0 NHINOD TIVHE Stk 380HL "NIFUIR

NAMQOHS §130UV ANY JO SKCIENSHIO QN S3N) SHL 30
NOILII$30 OFWWLIQY 403 OANIAVHINE 30 ALNNOD
3HL JOYOSSITHY IAL 40 31230 FHL NI QUCOR 40
SOFIC ONY SdV 3HL G4 SOV ABILAH 51 3ONIY343n
SN

HOLYHLSININOY

'ONV 40 TIDUVS HOYI LENNOY DN INSVESISSY
HOVE 0 1MIOINY L10¥X 3 IHL 80 TI0H JNFRSSISSY
OICMODTY GIVE OU FQVIN 483D SI 30N 3uDiT
=0z ) —
OANFTYUTNG JO ALNNDD SHL 30 HOLIAMY ALNNOD
FHs O D440 THL N CT N U3 HYBA TYISH OIS HOd
TIOH INFAOSIBSY 3L TNV MVHOYIC LNINGBIISY QIVS
QNY D2 WY3A WDSIa 341804 €2 40 AYG
FHi NO WYHOVI LNSASSISEY SiHa HO NVY 90

AR QZATTONY T NOD SWA ANSINBSHBSY N

HOLYYLSININGY

ozt 30 AVD

BIM, VIBOSI TYD CINZNAHIVE 40 AINNOS
“LOWLSIC Myd ONY K 2UYSHOT ITPAIONWVIO 3HL
3O HOLVHLSINAICY ZHL. S0 IS0 WL N 00B0IIY

BOLVULZININOY

e 40

AVA SML VINEQATING DUNINVHOVE 40

ALKNOD "LIRLS D X Vel ONY NOWLWIRI3H SWASONVEC
FHE 30 SOLVEISINIAGY 3HL 40 TR0 3L NI 0TS

PESHE VO ENA

A PR geir

dnousy Bauusine 3 18

Aiepunog 10UISI] g pUe uoies.osy ajeAsBueiQ D

puaban

w, ey L L

= 3onvi = e
b I i T
- ro zmm, p—y Wau_:o:
- k] L
4 T s S e
=g i NAYaROTD.
6 F R e E O e e s
B TIvMIZIHY | o I o L
-omwaname - i \W -
gy i =4 ETIN Tﬂ«mkw
IWAIDIYED g Leaaw — N ke B
0 m i [ —" e

—

SCiConsultingGroup

Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Page 119

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



Page 44

This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e ————
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 120



Page 45

Assessment Roll 2023-24

An Assessment Roll (a listing of all parcels assessed within the Assessment District and
the amount of the assessment) will be filed with the Clerk of the Board and is, by
reference, made part of this report and is available for public inspection during normal
office hours.

Each lot or parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is shown and illustrated on the latest
County Assessor records and these records are, by reference made part of this report.
These records shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or
parcels.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ‘,,,.--——-'—-—-\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 121



Page 46

!Love, L. and Crompton, J. Trends: Parks, Practice and Program. Oxford University
Press-USA. New York, NY. 1993.

2 1993 State of the Industry Report . Widdekind, L. ed. The Outdoor Industry Association
(The Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America and the Sporting Goods Manufacturers
Association's Outdoor Products. pub.) Boulder CO. 1993.

3 California Parks and Recreation. The California Parks and Recreation Society, pub.
Sacramento, CA. (http://www.cprs.org.)

4 PKF Consulting. San Francisco, CA. “Analysis of the Economic Impacts of the Northern
Central Rail Trail.” For the Greenways Commission, Maryland Department of Natural
Resources, Annapolis, Maryland. June 1994.

5 Qutdoor Recreation Resources Review Commission, Qutdoor Recreation For America: A
Report To The President And The Congress. January 2002.

% |bid. Smith, Van.

7 |bid. California Parks and Recreation. 1997.

8 parks and Recreation, National Recreation and Park Association, pub. Ashburn,
Virginia. January 2001. (http://www.nrpa.org/)

% National Park Service. NPS Technical Information Center. Washington D.C, 1983.

10 Report of the President Commission on Americans Outdoors, U.S. Government
Printing Office: Management. Washington D.C. 1987.

1 Crompton, J., Love L., More T., An Empirical Study of the Role of Recreation, Parks and
Open Space in Companies’ (Re)Location Decisions, Journal of Park and Recreation
Administration, Spring, 1997, vol 15 no. 1, p p37, 40.

12 \Wylde, Boomers on the Horizon: Housing Preferences of the 55+ Market, National
Association of Home Builders, 2002.

13 )hid. NPS.
Orangevale Recreation and Park District el T
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District S$CiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 122



Page 47

1% |bid. NPRA. June 1985.

15 Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4™ 132, 143 (1993) the Supreme Court of California.

16 Wilson v. Lambert (1898) 168 U.S. 611, 616 [42 L.Ed. 599, 601, 185.Ct.217] the United
States Supreme Court.

e ————

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
S£CiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 123



‘.\U*{z

OVrarks

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 23-06-707

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ADOPTING THE KENNETH GROVE
LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves were
reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2022/2023; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2023/2024,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(1) Salaries & Employee Benefits $

2) Services & Supplies 5,582
3) Other charges
4) Fixed Assets
(a) Land
(b) Structures & Improvements
(c) Equipment
5) Expenditure transfers
(6) Contingencies
(7N Provision for reserve increases

TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 5,582

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program will
be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and Property
Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues, and methods of financing for the 2023 /2024 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 15th

day of June 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 124



LINIT J3ANN/AFIAO

L1INIT O1 193rans SNOILYIJdOdddv

1IN SNOLLYIHdOdddY

£60'8C $

£60'8C $ STvV10L

l91'ze $

- $ - $ la'ze $ 19V IIVAY

3JONV1vd NN

- d3H10

- FONVAEGNNONI

2€6'S

T€6'S IVYINGD

JONVIvd
anNnd aatsnrav

CERVERE S3SVIHONI 0¢/10/L 40 SV SIAHISTY

JONVIvd 3INA3IHOS ALIND3 ANN4

ONIONVNIF 3T78V1IVAY TV10L
- SA3300dd NVOT WA L-ONOT A3aLVINILST
3SY3YO3A 19V 1IVAY JONV VA ANNd

- d3Sv3d03d 39 OL SIAHISTA TVIOL

- 3ASY3HO3A SIAYISTY U3HLO

- 3ASVY3403d IONVIEEWNNONI

- 3SY3A03A SIALYISTY TVIINTIO

a3sv3yo3a 39 OL S3IAY3ISIA

00'28S'S

$

(zess) $

SINIWIHINDIY 1390Ng IHL ONIONVNI JO SNV3IW

ENNENERNCETRANEE]

‘JONFH344IA TV1IOL
INIFNIFINOIH AdV139aNd V10l

SENCECEERERITe]
SIAAYISTA TVHINTO

SISYIHONI JAUISTY HO4 SNOISIAOEd

S3ILIAOWWOD Y3HLO - 08 103rao
S3IIDNIONILNOD HOd SNOILYIAdOHddY - 62 103rao
1N0 HO NI SY3I4SNYHL ANNAVHLNI - 09 103rdo

NI SH34SNVYL SANN4 - 66 103rdo
1N0 SY34SNVYL SANN4 - 0§ 103rdo

SI3SSV @axid - 0¥ 103ra0 101
IN3IWdINOT - € 153ra0
SINIWIAOHJNT ANV STINLIONYALS - 2v 103rd0
NOILISINDOV ANV - Ly 103ra0

SI3SSV G3xid - 0v 103rao

S3SN ONIONVNIF §3HLO - 0€ 103rg0 V101

SIOVIVA/SININOSANT

SININSSISSV/SISNIOIT/SIAXVL
IVdIONIAd ANV LS3HILNI

SININAVLTA 3ASYIT ANV NVO

S3SN ONIDNYNIA ¥3HLO - 0€ 103rd0
S31ddNS ANV S3DIAHETS - 0¢ LO3Arao
S1143N39 33A0TdWI ANV STVIVS - 0L LO3rdo

FANLIANIdX3 40 103rd0 Ad SNOILVIAdOdddY

1O111SId LNJWSSISSY JAOUO HLINNIM

gv.€ ANN4 Y04 3TNAIHIS SINIFNIHINDIY ONIONVNIL

o43SIg Mied 3 uoneaioay ojeArsbuelp

139aNg AYVNINITI™d ¥202-€20¢ dVvIA 1TvOSid

Page 125

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 _ 0 0 0 __o _ 0 _ 0 Zv 108lqo

_ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ — SAUNLONYLS| 0020Z¥Zh
_ 0 0 28s's $85'c 28s's 896'C _ 610°c _ 0z 12lqo

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDHEVHI ONMEVd SO| 00296202
0 (05) 00l 0 0s1 0 0 S1S0D SSYdNOD| 00516202
0 0 [4*]4 0 sy 0 0 S3DIAYAS - ASNIJXT ONILVYHIHO ¥3HLO| 00668202
0 (00t) 00 0 008 0 0 SIDINGAS TYNOISSIJ0Hd ¥3IHLO| 00165202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SAVINYIS ONIGIJOSNVHL| 00295202
0 0 00} 0 00L 0 0 SAVINY3S TvO3I1| 00LESZOL
0 0 0001 0004 0001 0001 168¢ S3IDINYIS ONIYIIANIONI| 00525¢0¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3IVINGIS NOILOITTIOD/LNINSSISSY| 00.L0520C
0 0s 0S9 €9 009 699 048 S3IDINY3S ONILNNOJJY| 00505202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ddnS LNIVIN O3 dOHS| 00282202
0 00¢ 0001 00ct 008 992 €9ll SINVOIHENT ® 13Nd| 009€Z20C
0 0 0 0 0 S3ADINGIS FONVYNILNIVN OLNY| 00502202
0 0 062 0S. 0S. €€9 9G¥ H3LVYM| 00861202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3INddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
0 0 08 0 08 0 0 S317ddNS IVHNLINDILHOHIYENLTINOINOY| 00701202
0 0 008§ 0 005 0 0 FOIAHAS VHNLINDILHOH/IVENLTNOIEOY| 00€01202
0 0 0S 0 0S 0 0 SNOIS| <209.020¢
0 0 ool 0 00} 0 0 S3INddNS 301440| 00920202
0 (oot) 00v 0 008 0 0 S3DILON TWOIV/ONISILY3IAAY| 00S0020¢C

jabpng sabueysn yabpng wijaid s|enjoy jabpng s|enjoy s|enjoy uonduoseq way
leuiy ¥2-€C Ad 1s3 €Z-CT Ad ¢c-lZ Ad 12-02 Ad jusuniwwo)
VZ-€2 A4 €2-2C Ad

INIWSSIASSY IAOYO HLINNIN - av.L€ ANNL
1O1H1S10 MdVd ? NOILLVIHOIY FTVAIONVIHO

139aNg AYVNINITI™ ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS T1IVLIA JHuNLIANIdXS

Page 126

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 z85°S 12184 _ z8s°s _ 896°C 610'S a¥.¢ Tvi0l aNnd
0 c8s’s ¥85‘c z8S's 896'C 6L0°G GL€6.€6 ¥ILNID ANNS
0 0 0 0 0 0 64 199lq0
0 ; _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _o _ 0 0 SNOILVIYdOYddY AONIDNILNOD| 00106262
jabpng sabueysn jabpng wijaid s|enjoy jebpng sjenjoy s|enjoy uonduasag waj|
leuty ¥2-€C Ad 183 €2-2Z Ad CC-lC Ad 12-02 Ad jusuwwod
¥2-€T Ad €2-2¢ Ad

LNIWSSISSY IAOUO HLANNIN - av.L€ ANNS
101¥4.1S1d MiVd '@ NOILVI™UOIY FTVAIONVHO

139aN9 AYVNINITTYd ¥2-€202 Ad - 3TNA3IHIS 1IvVL3A FHNLIANIdX3

Page 127

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



[0 |0 | |(z8s’s) | |(z8s’s) | |(e8s's) | |(oes’s) | |(015°5) | g v.€ V101 aNN4

E || 0 | [(z8s°s) | |(z8s's) | |(z8s’s) | [(oes’s) | |(o1s's) | §1£6.€6 ¥ILNID ANNA

|0 |0 | [(82¥'s) | |(8z¥'s) | |(8z¥'s) | |(s8e’s) | |(e9e’s) _ 96 399[q0

|0 |0 | [(82¥'S) | [(82¥°S) ||(82¥'S) | |(s8e’s) | [(€9e’s) | | LINJWSS3SSY VIO3dS|  00£09696

E |0 |[(Fst) | |(ps1) |{bs1) D | [(21) _ 6 192[q0

[0 [0 | [(¥S1) | [(¥S1) | [{¥G1) | [(151) [ [(2#1) | IWOONI LSTHTINI[  000Lv6¥6 |
JA0YO HLINN3IM anNnd

jebpng [eut4 sebuey) Jebpng wijeld  s[enjoy 33 jebpng sjenjoy s|enjoy way
v2-€2 Ad vZ-€2 Ad £€2-2Z Ad €2-2Z Ad TT1Z Ad 12-0Z A4 JuswWwWon

10141810 MAVd ' NOILVIYHIIAY FTVAIONVHEO

INJINSSISSY A0UO HLANNIM - Gv.L€ ANNL

139ang AYVNINITIAd ¥2-€20¢ Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1Iv1i3d SNNIATA

Page 128

June 15, 2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



RESOLUTION NO: 23-06-708

OV‘ - , A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
PARKS | ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT APPROVING
ORANGEVALE | THE ENGINEER'S REPORT,

RECREATION & CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT,

PARK DISTRICT | AND ORDERING THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 FOR THE
KENNETH GROVE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

RESOLVED, by the Governing Board (the "Board") of the Kenneth Grove
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the "District"), County of
Sacramento, State of California, that

WHEREAS, the formation of the Kenneth Grove Recreation and Park
District Maintenance Assessment District (the “Assessment District”), pursuant to
the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 has previously been
ordered through Resolution 94-05-86A; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of financing certain park and recreation
improvements and refurbishments, as specified in the District’s updated Master
Plan and for the purpose of funding maintenance operations of the District, as
described in the Engineer’s Report; and

WHEREAS, by its Resolution No. 23-02-700, A Resolution Directing
Preparation of the 2023-24 Engineer’s Report for the Kenneth Grove
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the "Park District"), this Board
designated SCI Consulting Group as Engineer of Work and ordered said
Engineer to make and file a report in writing in accordance with and pursuant to
the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and

WHEREAS, the report was duly made and filed with the Clerk of the
Board and duly considered by this Board and found to be sufficient in every
particular, whereupon it was determined that the report should stand as the
Engineer's Report for all subsequent proceedings under and pursuant to the
aforesaid resolution, and that June 15, 2023 at the hour of 6:30 p.m. at the
District offices of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel
Avenue, Orangevale, California, 95662, were appointed as the time and place for
a hearing by this Board on the question of the levy of the proposed assessment,
notice of which hearing was given as required by law; and

WHEREAS, at the appointed time and place the hearing was duly and
regularly held, and all persons interested and desiring to be heard were given an
opportunity to be heard, and all matters and things pertaining to the levy were

e fully heard and considered by this Board, and all oral statements and all written
Orangevale, CA 95662 protests or communications were duly heard, considered and overruled, and this
916-988-4373 ' Board thereby acquired jurisdiction to order the levy and the confirmation of the
OVparks.com | diagram and assessment prepared by and made a part of the Engineer's Report to

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 129



pay the costs and expenses thereof;

O \/ PARKS NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FOUND, DETERMINED AND ORDERED,
ORANGEVALE ghat:
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT 1. The public interest, convenience and necessity require that the levy be
made.
E 2. The Assessment District benefited by the improvements and assessed to
' pay the costs and expenses thereof, and the exterior boundaries thereof,
are as shown by a map thereof filed in the office of the Clerk of the
Board, which map is made a part hereof by reference thereto.
3. The assessment is levied without regard to property valuation.
4. The Engineer's Report as a whole and each part thereof, to wit:

)] the Engineer's estimate of the itemized and total
costs and expenses of maintaining the improvements and of the
incidental expenses in connection therewith;

®) the diagram showing the assessment district,
plans and specifications for the improvements to be maintained
and the boundaries and dimensions of the respective lots and
parcels of land within the Assessment District; and

() the assessment of the total amount of the cost
and expenses of the proposed maintenance of the improvements
upon the several lots and parcels of land in the Assessment
District in proportion to the estimated special benefits to be
received by such lots and parcels, respectively, from the
maintenance, and of the expenses incidental thereto;

are finally approved and confirmed.

S Final adoption and approval of the Engineer's Report as a whole, and of
the plans and specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses, the
diagram and the assessment, as contained in the report as hereinabove
determined and ordered, is intended to and shall refer and apply to the
report, or any portion thereof as amended, modified, or revised or
corrected by, or pursuant to and in accordance with, any resolution or
order, if any, heretofore duly adopted or made by this Board.

6. The assessment to pay the costs and expenses of the maintenance of the
improvements for fiscal year 2023-24 is hereby levied. For further
particulars pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting
Act of 1972, reference is hereby made to the Resolution Directing
Preparation of Engineer's Report.

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373

OVparks.com E

3

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 130



N
OVrarks
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

7. Based on the oral and documentary evidence, including the Engineer's
Report, offered and received at the hearing, this Board expressly finds
and determines (a) that each of the several lots and parcels of land will
be specially benefited by the maintenance of the improvements at least
in the amount if not more than the amount, of the assessment
apportioned against the lots and parcels of land, respectively, and (b)
that there is substantial evidence to support, and the weight of the
evidence preponderates in favor of, the aforesaid finding and
determination as to special benefits.

8. Immediately upon the adoption of this resolution, but in no event later
than the third Monday in August following such adoption, the Clerk of
the Board shall file a certified copy of the diagram and assessment and a
certified copy of this resolution with the Auditor of the County of
Sacramento. Upon such filing, the County Auditor shall enter on the
County assessment roll opposite each lot or parcel of land the amount of
assessment thereupon as shown in the assessment. The assessments shall
be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes
are collected and all laws providing for the collection and enforcement
of County taxes shall apply to the collection and enforcement of the
assessments. After collection by the County, the net amount of the
assessments, after deduction of any compensation due the County for
collection, shall be paid to the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District.

9. The moneys representing assessments collected by the County shall be
deposited in the District Treasury to the credit of the improvement fund
previously established under the distinctive designation of the
Assessment District. Moneys in the improvement fund shall be
expended only for the maintenance, servicing, construction, or
installation of the improvements.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15% day of June, 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CLERK OF THE BOARD

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 131



June 2023

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

- Board of Directors Meeting

ENGINEER’S REPORT

Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Kenneth Grove Assessment District

Engineer of Work:

ﬂ
SCiConsultingGroup

Public Finance Consulting Services

4745 Mangels Boulevard
Fairfield, California 94534
707.430.4300
WWW.SCI-CZ.com

June 15,2023 Page 132



This page intentionally left blank.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 133



Pagei

Kenneth Grove Assessment District

Board of Directors
Michael Stickney, Chair
Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Arica Presinal, Secretary
Sharon Brunberg, Director
Manie Meraz, Director

District Administrator
Barry Ross

District’s Attorney
David W. McMurchie

Engineer of Work
SCI Consulting Group

Orangevale Recreation and Park District i —_—
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 134



Page ii

This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e —
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 135



Page iii

Table of Contents

Introduction......cc.cveereeereacrannnes Asassnssnsssanssssansnennnsensaneseussssasesanaiosenns iansanannssanasasnn 1
Formation of Assessment DiStriCh .....uveereirriiiirierriiirr e e eere st ere e re s ecasnaaiines 1
Substantive Requirements of Proposition 218 ..........cccccveeiniiinniiiminiinieeennnenns 4

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space

Authority 4
Plans & Specifications........ccccocvcrcicccrcccricnnennnnnannns sssssananannsssgessiEacte 23T sTesnnnsTre st
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Estimate of Cost And Budget........c.cceeecriiccniciisccsccnnnensenane. 6
Method of Apportionment .........cccocrereeeeeee ceresretsasteseseseasanan cesereserasensressssesaesanes 7

Method of ApPOrtioNMENT........cccviieimiiiiiiien e 7
DiSCUSSION OF BENETIL ...uvviieieiiiiiicerereeree e ee e rteseeree s et s san e e s ree e ereeser e saeesearasseaasssinenss 7
MEthOd OF ASSESSIMENT.......eeiieviiereereireerierrerreeeertireesseessastesseeesestessasessantesiansasnneeesnnne 10
Assessment APPOrtiONMENt......cocoeveiiiiiimiiniiiiir e 10
Assessment.....c.ccciecrniiniineniienniiinneae, etserssestanistsasiserasesnnesrrsesssntssssnnestnsnssnnns 11
Assessment Diagram....... ssasesamsssmEesssrasenanssnanansnsasnansmnnsbananres veseecssnsennsrssssesssess 13
Appendix A - 2023-24 Assessment ROl ........ccooiiimmniniicnicininnneneiincccncnnnannans 14
Orangevale Recreation and Park District ; ——

o -
Kenneth Grove Assessment District ECiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 136



Page iv

This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ——————
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 137



Page 1

l:ntr.od uction

Formation of Assessment District

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed pursuant the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District commencing with
Resolution No. 94-02-83 dated February 10, 1994 (hereinafter the "Resolution of
Intention"). The Resolution of Intention provides the following: (1) formation of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District; and (2) a description of
the improvements which the Assessment District is authorized to construct and
maintain including the following: (a) installation of sound walls and other ornamental
structures and facilities which are necessary or convenient for the maintenance or
servicing of curbs, gutters, walls, sidewalks, paving, water irrigation, drainage or
electrical facilities; and (b) land preparation such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling,
sod landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage; and (c) the maintenance or
servicing of all of the above including repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any
improvement or other typical maintenance services.

The Engineer's Report, diagram and assessment and Resolution of Formation of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District was adopted by the Board
of Directors of Orangevale Recreation and Park District by Resolution No. 94-05-86A on
May 12, 1994. That resolution confirmed the findings in the Resolution of Intention and
was adopted after a public hearing during which members of the public were offered
the opportunity to protest against the formation of the Assessment District. The
Resolution of Formation notes that the owners of the affected properties included
within the proposed Assessment District have filed with the District written consents to
the proposed formation of the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment
District and the proposed levying of assessments as specified in the Engineer's Report.
The Resolution of Formation included a provision that a perpetual contingency reserve
fund be established in the amount of the first year's total assessment revenue to be
paid by the developer by agreement in order to cover the costs of any contingencies
which may occur throughout the duration of the Assessment District. The Resolution of
Formation also provided that should any new subdivision be annexed into the Kenneth
Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District in the future, that a separate
perpetual contingency reserve fund is required to be established for operations within
that particular annexed area calculated as the amount of the first year's assessment
levied against real property within that annexed area to be paid by the developer of the
annexed area to fund contingencies with respect to maintenance and operations in
future years with respect to the property annexed to the Assessment District.

.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District R
SCiConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 138



Page 2

The initial assessment levied upon each parcel of real property within the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District for fiscal year 1994-95 was $150.78 per parcel. The Kenneth
Grove Assessment District has continued to levy the same annual assessment per parcel
of $150.78 per fiscal year from the date of formation to the present time.

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was also formed for the purposes of providing
park and recreational improvements in addition to landscape corridors and streetscapes
to the residents of the assessment district. The Assessment District may utilize
assessment revenue to fund these additional purposes in the future.

Exemptions from Proposition 218

Having been formed in 1994, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District assessments were
existing on November 6, 1996, the effective date of Article XHID of the California
Constitution (Proposition 218). Proposition 218 identified preexisting assessments which
fell within one of four exemptions identified in section 5 of Article XIlID as exempt from
the procedures and approval process for assessments detailed in Proposition 218.

The four "exemptions" delineated in Proposition 218 that are applicable to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District are as follows:

(1) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital cost or maintenance and
operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water, flood control, drainage
systems, or vector control (Cal. Const., art. XIlID, § 5, subd. (a)); and

(2) Any assessment imposed pursuant to a petition signed by the persons owning all of
the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially imposed
(Cal. Const., art. XIlID, § 5, subd. (b)).

Both of these exemptions from the provisions of Proposition 218 apply to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District. First, the Assessment District was formed pursuant to a
petition signed by all of the current owners of the real property subject to the
assessment (the developer of the Kenneth Grove Subdivision) at the time the
assessment was initially imposed which meets the requirements of California
Constitution Article XIIID, section 5(b).

In addition, the initial purpose of the assessment was to finance the capital costs and
maintenance and operation costs for constructing sidewalks, sidewalk and street
landscaping, irrigation and drainage to enhance the parcels of property comprising the
Kenneth Grove Assessment District.

Both of these exemptions from the procedures and approval process for assessments
specified in Proposition 218 have been satisfied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment
District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ﬁ:ﬂaﬂ—"'_————-\
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 139



Page 3

First, the exemption which is an assessment imposed by a petition signed by the persons
owning all the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially
imposed is evidenced by the Resolutions of the District and the written consents filed by
the then current owners of the real property subject to the assessment in 1994 before
the Assessment District was formed.

The second exemption available for capital and maintenance costs associated with
sidewalks, streets, and landscaping and irrigation associated with sidewalks and streets
is supported by case law decided under the provisions of California Constitution Article
XD, section 5(b) (hereinafter "Proposition 218"). The Board of Directors of the District
has adopted the position that street and sidewalk landscaping is an integral part of
"streets" and "sidewalks" and therefore an existing assessment for the maintenance of
such landscaping is exempt under Proposition 218. Streets and Highways Code section
29 provides that "roadside planting and weed control" is included within the definition
of construction and maintenance of streets.

The assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District prior to the
passage of Proposition 218 are exempt under both of these exceptions articulated in
Proposition 218.

Those procedures and approval processes with respect to which the Kenneth Grove
Assessment District is exempt are as follows:

(1) Procedural requirements regarding the imposition of assessments including (a)
identification of all parcels which will have special benefit conferred upon them by
the improvements or services funded by the assessment; and (b) differentiation
between "special benefit" and "general benefit" conferred on properties from the
improvement and/or services funded with assessment proceeds; and (c) allocation
of assessments per parcel dependent upon the proportion of special benefit to
each property in relationship to the entirety of the costs of acquiring or
constructing an improvement or of maintaining and operating such an
improvement among the parcels to be assessed; and (d) the assessment on a
parcel may not exceed the reasonable cost of the "proportional special benefit"
conferred on that parcel by the improvements or services funded with assessment
proceeds; and (e) procedural requirements including the 45-day mailed notice to
property owners of the proposed assessment; an opportunity for property owners
to protest by ballot against the proposed assessment at a public hearing; and
prohibition of any assessment if a majority protest exists, A "majority protest" is
defined as ballots from property owners submitted in opposition to the
assessments amounting to more than 50% of the total ballots submitted by
property owners, with ballots submitted weighted according to the proportional
financial obligation for paying assessments for each affected parcel.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District pmm——
Kenneth Grove Assessment District £CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 140



Page 4

In light of the fact that the Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed prior to the
imposition of Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996 and complies with the definitions of
two of the exemptions in Proposition 218 as specified above, the assessments levied
within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District are exempt from the substantive and
procedural requirements outlined above.

Despite that exemption, this Engineer's Report specifies the facts and circumstances
demonstrating that the assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment
District comply with the substantive requirements of Proposition 218.

Substantive Requirements of Proposition 218

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space
Authority

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley
Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (“SVTA”). This
ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive
assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important elements of
the ruling included further emphasis that:

= Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit

= The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly
defined

= Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to
property in the assessment district

This Engineer’s Report is consistent with the SVTA decision and with the requirements
of Article 13C and 13D of the California Constitution because the improvements to be
funded are clearly defined; the benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys
close and unique proximity, access and views to the Improvements; the Improvements
serve as an extension of usable land area for benefiting properties in the Assessment
District and such special benefits provide a direct advantage to property in the
Assessment District that is not enjoyed by the public at large or other property.

e ———————

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e
SCiConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 141



Page 5

Plans & Specifications

The work and improvements proposed to be undertaken by the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District’s Kenneth Grove Assessment District (the “Assessment District”) and
the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual assessment provide special benefit to
Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as defined in the Method of Assessment
herein. In addition to the definitions provided by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of
1972, (the “Act”) the work and improvements are generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and
improvements including landscape corridors, streetscapes and other park and
recreational improvements. The plans and specifications for these improvements have
been filed with the District Administrator of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
and are incorporated herein by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the construction of recreational improvements,
including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling, cutting and
filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights, playground
equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and
usual maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair,
removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life,
growth, health, and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming,
spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish,
debris, and other solid waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and
other improvements to remove or cover graffiti.

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District _h
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 142



Page 6

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Estimate of Cost And Budget

Total
Budget
Installation, Maintenance & Senicing Costs
Improvements $0
Operating Expenses
Ag/Horticulture Services & Supplies $500
Water $800
Fuel $750
Maintenance Contract $0
Subtotal $2,050
Incidental Expenses
Adwertising/Legal Notices $500
Administration & Inspection $1,130
Annual Engineer's Report $1,000
Professional Senvices $500
Other Expenses $248
Subtotal $3,378
Contribution to/(from) Reserves Fund Balance Available
Contribution to (from) Contingency $0
Total Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District Budget $5,428
(Net Amount to be Assessed)
Budget Allocation to Property
Total Assessment Budget $5,428
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 36.00
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit $150.78
Orangevale Recreation and Park District ——
Kenneth Grove Assessment District $CiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 143



Page 7

‘Methqq .Sf _A,pportionment

Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be
derived from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout
the Park District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to
properties within the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Assessment Diagram as included within this Engineer's Report. The method used for
apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special benefits to be
derived by the properties in the Assessment District over and above general benefits
conferred on real property or to the public at large. The apportionment of special
benefit is a two step process: the first step is to identify the types of special benefit
arising from the improvements, and the second step is to allocate the assessments to
property based on the estimated relative special benefit for each type of property.

Discussion of Benefit

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to
property. This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits.
Moreover, such benefit is not based on any one property owner’s use of the Park
District’s recreational facilities or a property owner’s specific demographic status. With
reference to the requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 states:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among
all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by
each such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XIIID of the California Constitution, has confirmed
that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property and that the value of
the special benefits must reasonably exceed the cost of the assessment:

"No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of
the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel."

Orangevale Recreation and Park District — aﬁ
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 144



Page 8

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District consists solely of residential parcels populated
with single family residences which receive the benefit of sidewalks and streetscape
landscaping constructed adjacent to major streets within the subdivision, which
improvements were constructed by the developer of the subdivision and are maintained
by the Kenneth Grove Assessment District. The Assessment District also was formed
with the power to levy assessments for additional park and recreational improvements
to serve the residents of the assessment district. All of the parcels within the boundaries
of the Assessment District enjoy close proximity to the sidewalk and streetscape
improvements constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds. The Assessment
District consists of only 36 parcels comprising the subdivision, and the improvements
consisting of sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and maintenance uniquely benefit
this small subdivision as a "special benefit.” Existing improvements are not of sufficient
magnitude to significantly benefit adjacent residential parcels located outside the
Assessment District.

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
parcels resulting from the installation, maintenance and servicing of existing sidewalk
and streetscape landscaping improvements and future park and recreational
improvements to be provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special
benefit are summarized as follows:

a. Extension of a walkable areas and green spaces for properties within close
proximity to the Improvements.

b. Proximity to improved sidewalks and streetscape landscaping and other
park and recreational improvements.

c. Access to improved sidewalks and landscaping and other park and
recreational improvements constructed to serve the residents and property
of the assessment district.

d. Improved local views regarding sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and
future park and recreational improvements.

In this case, the recent the SVTA decision provides enhanced clarity to the definitions of
special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

= Proximity
= Expanded or improved access
= Views

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ,,,,-————--.\
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 145



Page 9

The SVTA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or improvement that
provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative advantages
resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are general
benefits. The SVTA decision also provides specific guidance that landscape and park and
recreational improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is
proximate to such landscape and park and recreational improvements constructed and
maintained with assessment proceeds:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a
direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an
indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the
improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district’s property values).
Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed
above further strengthen the argument that these assessments comply with the
provisions of Proposition 218, despite the fact that they are exempt from such
constitutional requirements as set forth above.

Although it could be argued that there are no general benefits from these
Improvements, it is possible that there are some visual benefits received by parcels
which are not in the Assessment District. This is a measure of the general benefits to the
public at large. We estimate this benefit to be no more than 5%.

Special Benefit 95%
General Benefit 5%
Total Benefit 100%

The maintenance and servicing of these Improvements is also partially funded, directly
and indirectly, from other sources including the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, the local water provider, and the State of California. This funding
may come in the form of grants, development fees, special programs, and general
funds, as well as direct maintenance and servicing of facilities (e.g., curbs, gutters,
streets, drainage systems, etc.). This funding from other sources more than
compensates for general benefits, if any, received by the properties within the
Assessment District. The sum total of this contribution exceeds the 5% minimum needed
to offset any general benefit, as noted above.

Therefore, despite its exemptions from the procedural and substantive requirements of
Proposition 218, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District complies with the substantive
requirements of Proposition 218 regarding the differentiation between special benefit
to properties within the assessment district from the improvements and maintenance
funded with assessment proceeds and general benefit to properties outside the
assessment district.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District . 7_-:?«—-.——-..___\
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 146



Page 10

Method of Assessment

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by
each property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of
Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the
purposes of this Engineer’s Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is
each property’s relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. In this
case, the "benchmark” property is the single family detached dwelling which is one
Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

Assessment Apportionment

The benefits from the Assessment District are deemed to be received by property on a
dwelling unit basis, with equal benefit to each dwelling unit on a parcel. Therefore, all
improved residential properties that represent a single residential dwelling unit are
assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Traditional houses, zero-lot line houses
and town homes are included in this category. Multi-family parcels are also assigned
one SFE per dwelling unit. Property owned by the District does not benefit from the
assessments and therefore is assighed zero SFE units. Currently, all assessed properties
within the Assessment District are in single family residential use.

—

Orangevale Recreation and Park District m—
SCiCensultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 147



Page 11

Assessment

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2023 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within
the Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XIiID of the California Constitution (collectively “the
Act”), to proceed with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and
file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and
an assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels
within the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said
improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the
assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2023-24 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE

FY 2023-24
Budget

Capital Improvements and Maintenance Expenditures $2,050

Incidental Expenses $3,378
TOTAL BUDGET $5,428

Less: Contributions

Contributions to/(from) Reserves and Contingency $0
NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $5,428

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part
hereof showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive
number of each parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel
Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ot T~
Kenneth Grove Assessment District $CIConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 148



Page 12

| do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and
lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth
in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made
a part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District
in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from
said improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal
year 2023-24. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby
made to the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder
of said County.

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2023-24 for each
parcel or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: April 28, 2023

Engineer of Work

L&

By

John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

Orangevale Recreation and Park District — —=—-—'-_—--\
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 149



Page 13

Assessment Diagram

The boundaries of the Assessment District are displayed on the Assessment Diagram
below.

261-067

Assessor’s Map Bk.261 Pg. 067
County of Sacramento, Calif.

Tt P

2@“ F1¢
o
$© -~ %
L@~ |

[

-t
, RM Bk.227Py. 5 (6-30-93)

-Rl?)?-l

POR. SEC.32,T.10N.,R.7E.M.D.B.&M.

@
Kenneth Grove

REFIFeE

Orangevale Recreation and Park District J— —
Kenneth Grove Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 150



Assessment Number

Appendix A - 2023-24 Assessment Ro

i

Page 14

Orangevale RPD,
Orangevale RPD Kenneth Grove
Assessment Roll FY 2023-24

Assessment Number

& Assessor Owner Site SFE Assess- & Assessor
Parcel Number Name(s) Address Units ment Parcel Number
26106700350000 BALAKRISHNA VI 8504 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700200000 BALLUCHTIMOTH 8539 HEATHERC 1 $150.78
26106700020000 BELMONTE FAMIL 8505 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700360000 CHAVEZ ALBERTO 8500 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700060000 DALE BARTLETT 8527 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700070000 DARLEEN M GURW 8531 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700110000 DAVID WRIGHT/C 8536 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700280000 DIAZ GONZALEZ 6209 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700240000 FORD THOMAS 6204 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700040000 GOLTZ SURVIVOR 8519 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700270000 GROVER MORRIS 6205 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700050000 IRMA DOT LEBAS 8523 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700330000 JOAN D OXFORD 6225 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700080000 JOHNSON JEANF 8535 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700140000 KAMATH BASAVAN 8524 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700260000 LANDI ROBERTC 6201 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700210000 LE NIKKI KHIET 8543 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700030000 MANUEL R/IRIS 8509 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700230000 MARK J CHRISTE 6208 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700250000 MAXIMA BARTLET 6200 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700170000 MAXIMA BARTLET 8527 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700150000 MCCANN FAMILY 6238 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700310000 MELEOBELLE LP 6210 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
261068700370000 ORANGEVALE REC GREENBACKLN 0 $0.00
26106700160000 PAMELA JEAN HE 8523 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700090000 PEDERSEN JAMES 8543 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700190000 REIMCHE TROY A 8535 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700130000 ROUSSEL JOHNT 8528 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700100000 SEGURA TREADWE 8542 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700010000 SHARLENE DAVID 8501 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700180000 SHARLENE DAVID 8531 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700340000 SHARLENE DAVID 8508 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700300000 SHARLENE DAVID 6214 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700320000 SMITH RODNEY R 6221 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700290000 STADLER FAMILY 6218 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700220000 SULEYMANOV EDU 8547 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700120000 ZANDIDOLABI MA 8532 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
e —

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2023-24

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Board of Directors Meeting

S‘Cﬁ?ConsultingGroup

June 15,2023

Page 151



" RESOLUTION NO. 23-06-709
X7 | RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGEVALE
OVPARK S | RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

AMENDING THE DISTRICT SALARY SCHEDULE

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &

DISTRICT |
PARK DISTRI | WHEREAS, the ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

(the “District”) a political subdivision of the State of California, and a recreation
and park district formed pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5780, et seq.,
| is authorized to appoint the necessary employees, define qualifications and
duties, and provide a schedule of compensation for performance of those duties
pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5786.1.

WHEREAS, all employees of the District are employed on an at-will
basis, meaning that either party may terminate the employment relationship at
any time, with or without cause, and it is not the intention of the District to alter
that relationship by virtue of this Resolution;

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2015, the District adopted the Salary
Resolution of Orangevale Recreation & Park District (the “Salary Resolution”)
which established a basic compensation plan for all classifications of employees
and adopted a salary schedule and compensation plan; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The District hereby amends the salary and compensation
plan attached as Exhibit A to the Salary Resolution by increasing the salary
ranges stated therein as follows:

e A 5 percent salary adjustment to seven of the nine job categories as
approved by the Board of Directors on March 16, 2023, and justified
by a salary study with five other recreation and park districts of
similar size. This increase is effective the first day of the pay period
that includes July 1, 2023.

e A 4 percent cost of living adjustment for all full-time employees as
recommended by the Finance Committee during their committee
meeting on May 19, 2023, and justified by the Consumer Price Index
increase of 4.9 percent for this area over the past 12-month period. If
approved, this increase would be effective the first day of the pay
period that includes July 1, 2023.

The salary schedule and compensation plan attached hereto as Exhibit A
is hereby adopted and replaces the Exhibit A salary schedule from fiscal year
2022-2023.

Section 2. All other provisions of the Salary Resolution are still in
full force and effect.

Section 3. Unless otherwise indicated, all provisions of this Resolution

i s i shall become effective as of the date it is adopted.

Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2023 Page 152



P
OVearks |

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION & . . .
Passed and adopted this 15th day of June 2023 on motion by Director
PARK DISTRICT , seconded by Director , and by the following
vote:
AYES:
NOES:
; ABSENT:
' ABSTAIN:

ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

|
i

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 153



V 1IgIHX3

SHIAOTdINA HNIL TINA IDNVH AAV'IVS
LOTILSIA MAVd ANV NOILVIRIOHA A'TVAEDNVHO

ISI'6S  |bee9s  |Ts9'es  [L60°1S  |#99°8y  |9vEor  |obIhy  |8€0°Th  [9€0°0F

626y S69% 1LYy 8Ty S50y 798°¢ 8L9°¢ £0S°¢ 9€€‘e [ J93I0A) 20UBUUIEN T ISOH/ASND) SuIpfing ‘I JHO[D SIVIALS UIPY | 6
08L°L9 |€SS'P9  |6L¥'19  [1SS8S  |€9L°6S  |80I°CS  |6LS°0S  |OLI'8Y  |9L8'SP

8¥9°S 6LE'S €TI°S 6L8Y LYY 9Ty SIT'y 710 £T8°¢ T1 3310 SOUBUSIUIEIN “[] JSOHASND) SuIpjing ‘[ 39[)) $IMAIOG UMIPY| 8
1€L°0L  |€9€°L9  [SSI°¥9  |001°19  |061°8S  |614'SS  |08LTS  |L9T0S  |EL8'LY

#68°S ¥19°¢ 9pE’S 60°S 6v8‘y 819 86€Y 681°% 686°¢ 111 33O SOUBUSIUIE] “IOJBUIPIOO)) UOIEaIoy| [
10€'v8  [L8T°08 |b9¥‘9L  [€T8'TL  [SSE69  [TS099  |L06T9  [1166S  [6S0°LS

STO°L 1699 TLE'D 690°9 08L°S ¥08°S we's €66 SSLY UBWIOIO, JIOM SOURUSIUIR| 9
6L588  |19¢'v8  |ppE08  [81S9L  [bL8TL  [bOV'69  |660°99  [TS6T9  [S6°6S

T8¢€°L 0£0°L $69°9 LLE'9 €L0°9 ¥8L°S 805°S 9bT‘S 966t [ 10SIAIdNG UONELIONY T J0SIAIRANG SAIMAIDG UIUPY |  §
€20°c6  |£6S°88  |SLE'P8  |LSE08  |0€S°9L  |988°CTL  |SI¥'69  [011°99  [Z96°T9

TSLL £8€°L 1€0°L 9699 8LE9 $L0%9 S8L‘S 605°S LVvT'S I Jostazodng uoneatody | ¢
8s¥'66  |TTL'v6  |11T°06  |916°S8  [bZ8°I8  [8TELL  |LITWL |€89°0L  |LIE'L9

8878 £68°L 8IS°L 091°L 6189 ¥61°9 $81°9 068°S 019°s 1o8eurA UONEaINdY ‘JoSeur|A YH/ouRUL]| €
898°CTT |ISE0IT [960°S01 [Z60°00T |STE'S6  |98L°06  |€9¥°98  |9p€T8  [vTv'8L

9596 9616 86L°8 €8 yr6'L $96°L S0TL 7989 $¢s‘9 Juapudjupadng o0y ‘JuSpusjuLIRdNg Yyied ‘Juopusjuiadng YH/eouvuLY| T
290°sP1  |T10°I¥]  |L6TPEl  [206°LTT [T1SITI |TT10°9TI |98%°0T1 |STT'SOI |#1T001

6€€TT  |ISLTT  |T6T°TT (85901  [ISTOT  |899°6 LOZ'6 69L°8 15€°8 IojensmuIupy Ws|

6 8 L 9 S 14 € (4 1 NOILLISOd|LVD
%S %S %S
SIA0Z | SIAST | SIAOI V10D %t + PV 19S %S+ £20Z Anr ATLLIL 90r
ALIAZDNOT
Jduey Are[es y70T/€70T

Page 154

June 15,2023

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



STAFF REPORT

z ) DATE: 6-15-23

v

’lé\ TO: Board of Directors
OVrarks

ORANGEVALE
%Eﬁﬁ%{ﬁ?c&f SUBJECT: Grant permission to District staff and the Shady Oaks Disc Golf
Club to begin addressing course improvements that both parties

have identified as priorities.

FROM: Barry Ross, District Administrator

PURPOSE

Permit the District staff and the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Club to work together in a fiscally and
environmentally responsible way to make course improvements that both parties have
identified as priorities.

BACKGROUND

The Planning Committee met at the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Course on May 26 and June 9 to walk
the course and identify areas where improvements would be most helpful for the safe and
sustainable benefit of the course and its users. On May 26 the committee was joined by Casey
Burgess, President of the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Club, and Jennifer Knisley, co-owner of the Final
9 pro shop. Both parties were in agreement that many of the benches along the course are in
poor condition, damaged, or unsafe. We would like to identify and remove the unsafe benches
and begin replacing them with new metal benches. Both parties agreed that the course would
benefit by moving the tee pad for hole #4 back about 75 feet. Several concrete tee pads are
showing extensive wear, and the club will create a priority list for those that are most in need
of being replaced. There are many areas where significant soil erosion and compaction are
obvious. All agreed to bring in additional soil and wood chips to help combat this problem.
Both parties agree that the hole #1 tee box is in a bad location due to soil erosion and
mud/water during the rainy months. Details still need to be worked out regarding the location
to move the tee box, the benches, and the Shady Oaks course sign, and then conducting tree
and irrigation work. The division of labor and financial responsibilities are details that still
need to be discussed and agreed to.

RECOMMENDED MOTION

| move we grant permission to the District staff and the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Club to work
together in a fiscally and environmentally responsible way to make course improvements that
both parties have identified as priorities for the safety and sustainability of the course for

its users, and to provide periodic progress reports to the Board.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 15,2023 Page 155



Tentative Timeline for Pool Renovation

Rev. 6-9-23

TASK

Responsible Party

Status

Determine which Code Issues and Maintenance Issues
are to be addressed

OVparks & ADG

Complete

Contact County Health Dept. to notify them that this
project is on the horizon and will be time sensitive

OVparks

Complete

Early Sept 22

Complete the 90% Schematic Design Phase

ADG

Complete

June-22
Oct 22

Review and approve Schematic Design

OVparks

Complete

B
Sept—22:-0Oct ‘22

Construction Documents are ready

ADG

Complete

Construction Documents are sent to the County
Environmental Health Dept.

ADG and OVparks

Completed Nov.
1

Oct-Now22

Q 522; 'alclgg;
Feb'23

By Sept ‘23

County Health Dept. approval

County

Approval on
hold until
contractor
submits.

Apr-May-23
May-June ‘23

Create Bid Packet Documents & Approved by Legal

OVparks

Document work
has begun

Advertise and solicit bids

ADG

6/7/23

Bid and Award Contract

OVparks and ADG

Bids due 8/3.
Award bid by
8/17

Aug- Sept ‘23

Construction Begins

ADG & Contractor

Spring-23
By March 24

Construction Completed

OVparks

NOTES:

e Construction phase could vary greatly upon contractor availability.

e Once construction begins, the project should be complete within 2.5 months. This could vary greatly
depending upon weather, and the possibility of an undesirable discovery. A 2-4 month construction
period is safe to assume.

e ADG will provide us with updated cost projections during both the Schematic Design Phase and the
Construction Document Phase.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Board of Directors Meeting

June 15,2023

Page 156




Tentative Timeline for Driveway & Trail Projects

at Community Center Park

Rev. 6-9-23
DATE TASK Responsible Party Status
Sept 21 Architect Drawings MTW Group Complete
April 22 Topography Drawings from Marty Gee, Engineer | Complete
Engineer
June ‘22 Geotechnical Study Report Wallace Kuhl & Assoc. | Complete
Sept 22 CEQA Study County of Sac Completed 10/3/22
Sept’22;-0et-22 Deed Restriction Application OVparks Completed
Nov ‘22 Documents 11/22/22
Sept 22 Preliminary Construction MTW Group Complete
Documents
Sept-Oet-22 Construction Documents MTW Group Complete
Jan.9 ‘23
Oet-22 District Review of Construction OVparks and MTW Complete
Oet-Nov2d; Dee—22 Documents Group
Jan. 10 23
Nov-Dee-22 Submit project to County for OVparks and MTW Submitted 3/21.
Secis SR = , approval. Lengthy application Group County returned 1%
WW process. review 5/3.
y-June Requires 2™
submittal.
Apr-May-23 Create Bid Packet Documents & OVparks Document work has
May-June ‘23 Approval from Legal begun
Neov-22 Advertise and Solicit Bids MTW Group
Nov-Dec’22: Jan 23
Feb-Mar'23: Apr-May<23
June '23-July ‘23
Dee22; Dee22dan-23 Bid and Award Contract OVparks and MTW
Jan—Feb—Z%—MaF-ApF—Z% Group
June-July; July-Aug 23
Jan-Feb-23;Feb-Mar-23 Construction Begins MTW Group and
Apr-May-23-May-Jen23 Contractor
Aug-Sept ‘23
Mar-Apr-23Jun-duly-23 | Project is complete MTW Group and
Suby-Aug23-July-Sept23 Contractor
Aug-Sept; Sept-Nov ‘23
July-Dec23 Final Grant Documents are OVparks
Aug-Dee’23; Oct-Dec 23 | Sybmitted to the State

NOTES:

e County permit process should take about 30 days but can vary greatly. Current rate is 6 weeks.

e Construction phase would ideally begin within 30 days of awarding contract but could vary greatly upon
contractor availability and weather.

e Once construction begins, the project should be complete within two months. This could vary greatly
depending upon weather, and the possibility of an undesirable discovery.

e MTW Group will provide updated cost projections during the Construction Document Phase.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

- Board of Directors Meeting

June 15, 2023

Page 157




